Meeting Date:
Sponsor(s):
Type:

Title:

Committee(s) Assignment:

ciyoroncago | IHINIHUIMININ

02014-9684

Office of the City Clerk

Document Tracking Sheet

12/10/2014
Dept./Agency
Ordinance

Scope of services, budget and management agreement for
Special Service Area No. 29-2014

Committee on Finance



ORDINANCE

WHEREAS, special service areas may be established pursuant to Article Vil, Sections
6(l) and 7(6) of the Constitution of the State of lilinois, and pursuant to the provisions of the
Special Service Area Tax Law, 35 ILCS 200/27-5 et seq., as amended from time to time (the
“Act”) and pursuant to the Property Tax Code, 35 ILCS 200/1-1 et seq., as amended from time
to time (the “Code”); and

WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Chicago (the “City Council”) determines that it
is in the best interests of the City of Chicago (the "City”) to establish a special service area to be
known and designated as Special Service Area Number 29-2014 (the “Area”) to provide certain
special governmental services in addition to services provided generally by the City, all as
further provided in this ordinance (the “Special Services"), and further determines to authorize
the levy of an annual ad valorem real property tax in the Area for a period of fifteen (15) years
sufficient to produce revenues required to provide those Special Services (the “Services Tax"),
and

WHEREAS, the City Council desires to authorize the execution of an agreement with a
service provider for the provision of the Special Services in and for the Area in fiscal year 2015;
now, therefore,

Be It Ordained by the City Council of the City of Chicago:

SECTION 1. Incorporation of Preambles. The preambles of this ordinance are hereby
incorporated into this text as if set out herein in full. '

SECTION 2. Findings. The City Council finds and declares as follows:

(a) The Area, as established by this ordinance, consists of contiguous territory in the
City;

(b) The City Council enacted an ordinance authorizing a public hearing on September
10, 2014 and such public hearing was held pursuant to such ordinance, and the City Council
then enacted an ordinance authorizing a second public hearing on November 5, 2014 (the
“Second Public Hearing") to consider the establishment of the Area and the levy of the Services
Tax on the taxable property located in the Area to provide the Special Services;

(c) Notice of the Second Public Hearing was given by publication at least once not less
than fifteen days prior to the hearing in the Chicago Sun-Times, a newspaper published in and
of general circulation within the City, and notice of the Second Public Hearing was also given by
depositing said notice in the United States mail addressed to the person or persons in whose
name the general taxes for the last preceding year were paid on each property lying within the
Area, not less than ten days prior to the time set for the Second Public Hearing. For any
properties for which taxes for the last preceding year were not paid, the notice was sent to the
person last listed on the tax rolls prior to that year as the owner of the property;
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(d) The notice complied with all of the applicable provisions of the Act;

(e) The Second Public Hearing was held on November 24, 2014, by the Committee on
Finance of the City Council. All interested persons, including all persons owning real property
located within the Area, were given an opportunity to be heard at the Second Public Hearing
regarding any issues embodied in the notice and have had an opportunity to file with the City
Clerk of the City of Chicago (the “City Cierk”) written objections on such issues;

() The Committee on Finance of the City Council has heard and considered all of the
comments, objections, protests and statements made at the Second Public Hearing with regard
to the issues embodied in the notice and has determined to recommend to the City Council that
it is in the public interest and in the interest of the City and the Area to establish the Area and to
authorize the levy of the Services Tax, all as provided in this ordinance;

(g) The Second Public Hearing was finally adjourned on November 24, 2014;

(h) The sixty day period as described in Section 27-55 of the Act, in which an objection
petition to this ordinance may be filed, commenced on November 24, 2014; and

(i) The City Council hereby finds and determines that it is in the best interests of the City
that the Area be established and the Services Tax be authorized, all as set forth herein.

SECTION 3. Area Established. There is hereby established a special service area
located within the City to be known and designated as City of Chicago Special Service Area
Number 29-2014. The approximate street location of said territory consists of Chicago Avenue
from Western Avenue to Halsted Street; Damen Avenue from Chicago Avenue to Huron Street;
Milwaukee Avenue from Augusta Avenue to Erie Street on both sides of the street and Division
Street to Augusta Avenue on the East side of the street; Ogden Avenue from Fry Street to the
Kennedy Expressway; Ashland Avenue from Division Street to Chicago Avenue; and Division
Street from Milwaukee Avenue to the Kennedy Expressway on the South side of the street. A
legal description of the Area is attached as Exhibit 1 hereto and hereby incorporated herein. A
map of the Area is attached as Exhibit 2 hereto and hereby incorporated herein. A list of
Permanent Index Numbers for the properties in the Area is attached hereto as Exhibit 3 and
hereby incorporated herein.

SECTION 4. Special Services Authorized. The Special Services authorized hereby
include, but are not limited to: recruitment of new businesses to the area, rehabilitation activities,
maintenance and beautification activities, security, coordination of promotional and advertising
activities, strategic planning for the area, and other technical assistance activities to promote
commercial and economic development including, but not limited to: streetscape improvements;
strategic planning including parking management studies; and enhanced land use oversight and
control initiatives, which will be hereinafter referred to collectively as the “Special Services.” The
Special Services shall be in addition to services provided to and by the City of Chicago
generally.
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SECTION 5. Authorization of Levy. There is hereby authorized to be levied in each
year beginning in 2014 through and including 2028 the Services Tax upon the taxable property
within the Area to produce revenues required to provide the Special Services, said Services Tax
not to exceed an annual rate of 0.47 percent (0.47%) of the equalized assessed value of the
taxable property within the Area. The Services Tax shall be in addition to all other taxes
provided by law and shall be levied pursuant to the provisions of the Code. The levy of the
Services Tax for each year shall be made by annual ordinance, commencing with this
ordinance.

SECTION 6. Appropriations. Based on the recommendation of the Department of
Planning and Development, there is hereby appropriated the following sum in the amount and
for the purposes necessary to provide the Special Services in and for the Area indicated as
follows:

SPECIAL SERVICE AREA NUMBER 29-2014
SPECIAL SERVICE AREA BUDGET

For the fiscal year beginning January 1, 2015 and ending December 31, 2015.

EXPENDITURES
Service Provider Agreement
for the provision of Special
Services $539,785
TOTAL BUDGET REQUEST $539,785
SOURCE OF FUNDING
Tax levy not to exceed an annual rate of
0.47(%) of the equalized assessed value,
of taxable property within
Special Service Area Number 29-2014 $539,785
Carryover funds currently available
from prior tax years $0
Late collections received by the City of Chicago
attributable to the levy of the Services Tax
in prior tax years, along with interest income
thereon, if any 30
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SECTION 7. Levy of Taxes. There is hereby levied pursuant to the provisions of Article
VII, Sections 6(a) and 6(1)(2) of the Constitution of the State of lllinois and pursuant to the
provisions of the Act and pursuant to the provisions of this ordinance, the sum of $539,785 as
the amount of the Services Tax for the tax year 2014.

SECTION 8. Commission Authorized. There is hereby established the West Town
Special Service Area Commission (the “Commission”) which shall consist of nine members.
The Mayor, with the approval of the City Council, shall appoint the initial Commission members.
Of the initial Commission members, five members shall be appointed to serve for three year
terms, and four members shall be appointed to serve for two years. Upon the expiration of the
term of any Commission member, the Mayor, with the approval of City Council, shall appoint a
successor Commission member. Other than the initial terms, each Commission member shall
be appointed to serve for a term of two years and until a successor is appointed. In the event of
a vacancy on the Commission due to resignation, death, inability to serve, removal by the
Mayor, or other reason, the Mayor, with the approval of City Council, shall appoint a successor.
Each successor so appointed shall serve for the remaining term for which he/she was
appointed. The Commission shall designate one member as the Chairman of the Commission,
and he/she shall serve not more than two successive two year terms. The Commission may
establish bylaws for its procedural operation.

The Commission shall have the powers delegated to it in Section 9 hereof. The terms
and powers of the Commission members shall cease upon the termination of the time period for
which the levy of the Services Tax is authorized. The members of the Commission shall serve
without compensation.

SECTION 9. Powers of the Commission. The Commission is hereby granted the
following powers:

(a) to recommend the rate or amount of the Services Tax and an annual budget to the
City Council; and

(b) to recommend a sole service provider contract, including a scope of services and a
contractor therefor, to the City Council for the provision of the Special Services.

SECTION 10. Service Provider Agreement. The Commissioner of the Department of
Planning and Development (the “Commissioner”), or a designee of the Commissioner, are each
hereby authorized, subject to approval by the Corporation Counsel as to form and legality, to
enter into, execute and deliver an agreement with West Town Chicago Chamber of Commerce |,
an lllinois not-for-profit corporation (the “Organization”), in substantially the form attached hereto
as Exhibit 5 and hereby made a part hereof (the “Service Provider Agreement”), and such other
supporting documents, if any, as may be necessary to carry out and comply with the provisions
of the Service Provider Agreement, with such changes, deletions and insertions as shall be
approved by the persons executing the Service Provider Agreement.
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SECTION 11. Protests And Objections. If a petition of objection is filed with the

Office of the City Clerk signed by at least fifty-one percent (51%) of the electors residing within
the boundaries of the Area and by at least fifty-one percent (51%) of the owners of record of the
property included within the boundaries of the Area within sixty (60) days following the
adjournment of the Second Public Hearing, all as provided for in Section 27-55 of the Act, as a
result of such filing this ordinance shall be deemed to be null and void, the Area shall not be
created, the Services Tax shall not be levied, and the Service Provider Agreement shall not be
entered into or shall be deemed to be null and void and no compensation in connection
therewith shall be provided to the Organization.

SECTION 12. Severability. If any provision of this ordinance or the application of any
such provision to any person or circumstances shall be invalid, such invalidity shall not affect
the provisions or application of this ordinance which can be given effect without the invalid
provision or application, and to this end each provision of this ordinance is declared to be
severable.

SECTION 13. Filing. The City Clerk is hereby ordered and directed to file in the Office
of the County Clerk of Cook County, lllinois (the “County Clerk”), in accordance with Section 27-
75 of the Act, a certified copy of this ordinance containing an accurate map of the Area and a
copy of the public hearing notice attached as Exhibit 4. The City Clerk is hereby further ordered
and directed to file in the Office of the Recorder of Deeds of Cook County, in accordance with
Section 27-40 of the Act, a certified copy of this ordinance containing a description of the Area,
within 60 days of the effective date of this ordinance. In addition, the City Clerk is hereby further
ordered and directed to file in the Office of the County Clerk, in accordance with Section 27-75
of the Act, a certified copy of this ordinance on or prior to December 31, 2014, and the County
Clerk shall thereafter extend for collection together with all other taxes to be levied by the City,
the Services Tax herein provided for, said Services Tax to be extended for collection by the
County Clerk for the tax year 2014 against all the taxable property within the Area, the amount
of the Services Tax herein levied to be in addition to and in excess of all other taxes to be levied
and extended against all taxable property within the Area.

SECTION 14. Conflict. This ordinance shall control over any provision of any other
ordinance, resolution, motion or order in conflict with this ordinance, to the extent of such
conflict.

SECTION 15. Publication. This ordinance shall be published by the City Clerk, in
special pamphlet form, and made available in her office for public inspection and distribution to
members of the public who may wish to avail themselves of a copy of this ordinance.

SECTION 16. Effective Date. This ordinance shall take effect 10 days after its passage
and publication.
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EXHIBIT 1

Legal Description

See attached pages.
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] Legal Description SSA 29-2014 West Town — Chicago, Illinois

That part of the South 2 of Sections 5 and 6, and the North Y2 of Sections 7 and 8 in Township
39 North, Range 14 East of the Third Principal Meridian, in Cook County, llinois, bounded and
described as follows:

Beginning at the intersection of the east line of North Western Avenue with the north line of
West Chicago Avenue, being in the West % of the Southwest 4 of said Section 6;

Thence north along said east line of North Western Avenue to a line 60.2 feet north of and
parallel with the north line of West Chicago Avenue;

Thence cast along said line 60.2 feet north of and parallel with the north line of West Chicago
Avenue to the west line of Lot 27 in the Subdivision of the south part of Block 14 in Suffern’s
Subdivision, according to the plat thereof recorded March 2, 1894 as Document 2003020;

Thence north along said west line of Lot 27 to the north line of al6 foot east-west alley lying
south of and contiguous to Lots 15 through 27 in E. A. Cummings and Company’s Subdivision,
according to the plat thereof recorded April 16, 1912 as Document 4947622;

Thence east along the north line of the aforesaid 16 foot east-west alley to west line of North
Oakley Boulevard;

Thence east across North Oakley Boulevard to the intersection of the east line of said North
Oakley Boulevard with the north line of a 16 foot east-west alley lying north of and contiguous
to Lots 26 through 50 in the Subdivision of the south part of Block 14 in Suffern’s Subdivision,
according to the plat thereof recorded March 2, 1894 as Document 2003020;

Thence east along the north line of the aforesaid 16 foot east-west alley to the west line of North
Leavitt Avenue;

Thence east across North Leavitt Avenue to the intersection of the east line of said North Leavitt
Avenue with the north line of a 16 foot east-west alley lying north of and contiguous to Lots 13
through 24 in the Subdivision of the West 2z of Sub-block 2 of Block 15 in Suffern’s
Subdivision, according to the plat thereof recorded January 26, 1883 as Document 445285;

Thence east along the north line of the aforesaid 16 foot cast-west alley to the west line of Lot 1
in F. J. Dewes’ Subdivision, according to the plat thereof recorded April 9, 1884 as Document
536363;

Thence south along the west line of the aforesaid Lot 1 in F. J. Dewes’ Subdivision to the south
line of said Lot 1;

Thence east along the south line of the aforesaid Lot | in IF. J. Dewes” Subdivision to the
northwest corner of Lot 7 in said F. J. Dewes’ Subdivision;



Thence north along the northerly extension of the west line of the aforesaid Lot 7 in F. J. Dewes’
Subdivision to the north line of the south 5 feet of Lot 1 in F. J. Dewes’ Subdivision;

Thence east along the north line of the south 5 feet of Lot 1 in F. J. Dewes’ Subdivision to the
west line of North Hoyne Avenuc;

Thence north along the west line of North Hoyne Avenue to the westerly extension of the north
line of a 16 foot east-west alley lying north of and contiguous to Lots 78 through 102 in the
Subdivision of the south portion of Block 16 in Suffern’s Subdivision, according to the plat
thereof recorded May 1, 1877 as Document 132545;

Thence east along the westerly extension, the north line of the aforesaid 16 foot east-west alley
and its east extension to the west line of North Winchester Avenue;

Thence southeast across North Winchester Avenue to the intersection of the east line of said
North Winchester Avenue with the south line of a 10 foot east-west alley as dedicated by
Document 3922311 recorded September 11, 1906,

Thence east along the aforesaid south line of a 10 foot east-west alley, and its easterly extension,
to the west line of North Wolcott Street;

Thence northeast across North Wolcott Street to the intersection of the east line of North Wolcott
Street with the north line of a 16 foot east-west alley lying north of and contiguous to Lots 1
through 12 in Webb’s Subdivision of Lot 3 in Superior Court Partition of the South % of Block 8
of Cochran and Others Subdivision, according to the plat thereof recorded January 15, 1886 as
Document 684463 and Lots 1 through 12 in the Subdivision of Lot 4 in Superior Court Partition
of the South %2 of Block 8 of Cochran and Others Subdivision, according to the plat thereof
recorded May 12, 1880 as Document 271625;

Thence east along the north line of the aforesaid 16 foot east-west alley to the west line of North
Wood Street;

Thence southeast across North Wood Street to the intersection of the east line of said North
Wood Street with the north line of a 16 foot east-west alley lying north of and contiguous to Lots
1 through 5 in Block 21 and Lots 1 through 5 in Block 22 in Johnston’s Subdivision, according
to the plat thereof recorded December 8, 1851;

Thence cast along the north line of the aforesaid 16 foot east-west alley and its east extension to
the east line of the alley first west of North Ashland Avenue and lying between West Walton
Street and West Chicago Avenue;

Thence north along said east line to the north line of West Walton Street;

Thence west along said north line to the east line of vacated North Marshfield Avenue lying
between West Walton Street and West Augusta Street;



Thence north along said east line and its north extension to the north line of West Augusta Street;

Thence east along said north line to the cast line of the alley first west of North Ashland Avenue
lying between West Augusta Street and West Cortez Street;

Thence north along said east line and its north extension to the north line of the south 22 feet of
Lot 5 in Assessor’s Division of Block 1 in Johnston’s Subdivision;

Thence east along said north linc to the west linc of North Ashland Avenue;

Thence south along said west line to the west extension of the north line of Lot 27 in Block 1 of
Canal Trustees’ Subdivision of the west half of Section 5, Township 39, Range 14 East of the
Third Principal Meridian (except the southeast quarter of the northwest quarter and the northeast

quarter of the southwest quarter);

Thence east along said west extension and said north line to the east line of Lot 23 in said Block
1;

Thence south along said east line to the north line of West Haddon Avenue;

Thence west along said north line to the north extension of the west line of the alley first east of
North Ashland Avenue lying between West Haddon Avenue and West Thomas Street;

Thence south along said west line to the south line of West Thomas Street;
Thence west along said south line to a line 35.17 feet west of the east line of Lots 19 and 20 in
Bauwen’s and Stewart’s Subdivision of the west part of Block 20 of said Canal Trustees’

Subdivision;

Thence south along said line to the north line of Lot 21 in Bauwen’s and Stewart’s Subdivision
of the west part of Block 20 of said Canal Trustees’ Subdivision;

Thence east along said north line to the west line of the alley first east of North Ashland Avenue
lying between West Thomas Street and West Cortez Street;

Thence south along said west line and its south extension to the south line of West Cortez Street;

Thence east along said south line to the west line of the alley first east of North Ashland Avenue
lying between West Cortez Street and West Augusta Boulevard;

Thence south along said west line to the south line of West Augusta Boulevard;

Thence west along said south line to the west line of the alley first east of North Ashland Avenue
lying between West Augusta Boulevard and West Chestnut Street;

Thence south along said west line to the south line of West Chestnut Street;



Thence west along said south line to a line 62.5 feet cast of the cast line of North Ashland
Avenue;

Thence south along said line and its south extension to the south line of West Pearson Street;

Thence east along said south line to the to the west line of the north/south alley first east of North
Ashland Avenue lying between West Pearson Strect and West Fry Street;

Thence south along said west line and its south extension to the south line of West Fry Street;

Thence east along said south line to the west line of the alley first east of North Ashland Avenue
lying between West Fry Street and West Chicago Avenue;

Thence south along said west line to the westerly extension of the north line ot a 10 foot east-
west alley lying south of and contiguous to Lots 21 through 26 in the aforesaid Subdivision of
part of Block 29 and south of and contiguous to I.ots 1 through 10 in Block 1 of the Subdivision
of part of Block 29, according to the plat thereof recorded January 9, 1854;

Thence east along the aforesaid westerly extension and the north line of said 10 foot east-west
alley to the southeast corner of Lot 1 in Block 1 of the Subdivision of part of Block 29, according
to the plat thereof recorded January 9, 1854;

Thence south along the southerly extension of the east line of said Lot 1 to the southwest corner
of Lot 26 in Block 2 of the Subdivision of 1 acre in the Southeast ¥ of Block 29, according to
the plat thereof recorded April 23, 1855;

Thence east along the south line of Lots 24 through 26 in Block 2 of the aforesaid Subdivision of
1 acre in the Southeast Y of Block 29, to the west line of North Greenview Avenue;

Thence northeast across North Greenview Avenue to the southwest corner of Lot 6 in the
Subdivision of Lot | in Geistfield’s Subdivision, according to the plat thereof recorded May 18,
1868;

Thence east along the south line of Lots 4, 5, and 6 in the aforesaid Subdivision of Lot 1 in
Geistfield’s Subdivision to the southeast corner of Lot 4;

Thence south along the southerly extension of the east line of said Lot 4 to the southwest corner
of Lot 13 in the Subdivision of the West % of Block 28 of Canal Trustee’s Subdivision,
according to the plat thereof recorded December 2, 1854;

Thence east along the south line of Lots 13, 14, 15, and its casterly extension, to the east line of
Lot 20 in said Subdivision;



Thence north along the east line of said 1.ot 20 to the southwest corner of Lot 5 in the
Subdivision of Lot 21 of the West %4 of Block 28 of Canal Trustee’s Subdivision. according to
the plat thercof recorded April 22, 1864;

Thence east along the south line of Lots 1 through 5 in the Subdivision of Lot 21 of the West 2
of Block 28 of Canal Trustee’s Subdivision to the east line of North Bishop Street;

Thence south along the east line of said North Bishop Street to the north line of a 12 foot east-
west alley lying north of and contiguous to Lots 1 through 13 in Block 28 of O. J. Rose’s

Subdivision, according to the plat thereof recorded August 4, 1854;

Thence east along the north line of the aforesaid 12 foot cast-west alley to the west line of North
Noble Street;

Thence north along the west line of North Noble Street to the south line of West Chestnut Street;

Thence east across North Noble Street to the intersection of the east line of said North Noble
Street with the south line of West Chestnut Street;

Thence east along the south line of West Chestnut Street to the east line of North Elizabeth
Street;

Thence south along the east line of North Elizabeth Street to the north line of a 18 foot east-west
alley lying north of and contiguous to Lots 76 through 100 in the Subdivision of Block 26 in
Canal Trustee’s Subdivision, according to the plat thereof recorded July 27, 1853;

Thence east along the north line of the aforesaid 18 foot east-west alley to the center line of
North Racine Avenue;

Thence south along said center line of North Racine Avenue to the west extension of the south
line of Lot 30 in Harbine and Roman’s Subdivision;

Thence east along said south line of said Lot 30 and its easterly extension to the southwesterly
line of Lot 11 in said Harbine and Roman’s Subdivision;

Thence northwest along the southwesterly line of Lots 8 through 11 in said Harbine and
Roman’s Subdivision to the east extension of the south line of Lot 32 in said Harbine and
Roman’s Subdivision;

Thence west along said extension and said south line to the east line of North Racine Avenue;

Thence north along the east line of North Racine Avenue to the east extension of the south line
of Lot 29 in the Subdivision of Block 26 in Canal Trustees’ Subdivision;

Thence west along said extension and said south line to the west line of said Lot 29,



Thence north along said west line to the north line ot said Lot 29;

Thence east along said north line to the a point on said north line being 65.77 feet west of the
northeast corner of said Lot 29;

Thence north to the southeast line Lot 2 in Circuit Court partition of Lots 25 to 28 of Block 26 in
Canal Trustees’ Subdivision;

Thence northeast along said southeast line to a line 86.8 feet southwest of and parallel with, as
measured perpendicular to, the southwest line of North Milwaukee Avenue;

Thence northwest along said line 86.8 feet southwest of and parallel with, as measured
perpendicular to, the southwest line of North Milwaukee Avenue to the southeast line of Lot 23
in said Subdivision of Block 26 in Canal Trustees’® Subdivision;

Thence southwest along said southeast line to the northeast line of the northwest/southeast alley
first southwest of North Milwaukee Avenuc lying between West Fry Street and West Chestnut
Street;

Thence northwest along said line to the southeast line of Lot 17 in said Subdivision of Block 26
in Canal Trustees’ Subdivision;

Thence northeast along said southeast line to the east line of said Lot 17;
Thence north along said east line to the south line of West Chestnut Street;

Thence west along said south line to the southeast extension of the northeast line of the alley in J.
Dinet’s Subdivision of Outlot 25 in said Canal Trustees’ Subdivision, said alley lying between
West Walton Street and West Chestnut Street and first southwest of North Milwaukee Avenue;

Thence northwest along said extension and said northeast line to the southerly most southeast
corner of Lot 3 in the Second Resubdivision of Lots 2 to 6 in Block 25 of said Canal Trustees’
Subdivision;

Thence west along the south line of said Lot 3 and its westerly extension to the west line of said
Second Resubdivision;

Thence north along said west line and its north extension to the north line of West Walton Street;

Thence west along said north line to the northeast line of the alley first southwest of North
Milwaukee Avenue lying between West Walton Street and West Augusta Boulevard;

Thence northwest along said northeast line to the southerly most southeast corner of Lot 14 in
the Subdivision of Block 23 and 25 and locations of streets and alley in said Canal Trustees’
Subdivision, said corner also being the north line of the alley first south of West Augusta
Boulevard lying between North Noble Street and west of North Milwaukec Avenue;



Thence west along said north line to the west line of Lot 10 in the Subdivision of Block 23 and
25 and locations of streets and alley in said Canal Trustees” Subdivision;

Thence north along said west line and its north extension to the to the north line of West Augusta
Boulevard;

Thence east along said north line and its cast extension to the northeast line of North Milwaukee
Avenue;

Thence northwest along said northeast line to the south line of West Division Street;
Thence east along said south line to the west line of the east 14 feet of Lot 14 in Block 22 in
Elston’s Addition to Chicago in Section 5, Township 39 North, Range 14 East of the Third
Principal Meridian,;

Thence south along said west line to the north line of the alley first south of West Division

Street;

Thence continuing south across said alley to the intersection of the south line of said alley with
the west line of the east 14 feet of Lot 43 in said Block 22

Thence south along said west line to a point of intersection with the north line of Haddon
Avenue, said point being also the east line of vacated West Haddon Avenue
Thence south along said east line of vacated West Haddon Avenue to the center line of vacated

West Haddon Avenue;

Thence west along said center line of vacated West Haddon Avenue and its west extension to the
west line of North Noble Street;

Thence north along said west line to the south line of Lot 42 of Block | in Chatfield’s Addition
to Chicago, being a Subdivision of Blocks 16 and 17 in Canal Trustees’ Subdivision;

Thence west along said south line to the west line of said Lot 42 of Block 1;

Thence north along said west line and its north extension to the north line of the alley first south
of West Division Street lying between North Noble Street and North Cleaver Street;

Thence west along said north line and its west extension to the west line of North Cleaver Street;

Thence south along said west line to the south line of Lot 39 of Block 2 in said Chatfield’s
Addition to Chicago;



Thence west along said south linc and its west extension to the southwest line of the alley first
northeast of North Milwaukee Avenuc lying between West Division Street and North Noble
Street;

Thence southeast along said southwest line to the centerline of the vacated portion of North
Noble Street by Document 20583296;

Thence south along said centerline to the north line of the 20 foot vacated portion of West
Thomas Street, said vacated portion lying north of and abutting the north line of Lots 1 through 4

in the Resubdivision of Lots 51 to 54 of Block 15 in Elston’s Addition to Chicago;

Thence east along said north line to the cast line of said vacated portion of said West Thomas
Street;

Thence south along said east line to the south line of West Thomas Street;

Thence east along said south line to the southwest linc of West Cortez Street;

Thence southeast along said southwest line to the northwest line of Lot 44 in Block 15 in
Elston’s Addition to Chicago in Section 5, Township 39 North, Range 14 East of the Third
Principal Meridian;

Thence southwest along said line to the southwesterly line of Lots 40 to 44 in said Block 15

Thence southeast along said southwesterly line to the south corner of said Lot 40;

Thence southerly on a straight line to the north corner of Lot 16 in said Block 15, said line also
being located on the west line of the alley, southwest of West Cortez Street;

Thence southeast along the northeast line of said Lot 16 and its southeast extension to the
westerly line of the John Fitzgerald Kennedy Expressway;

Thence southerly along said westerly line to the northeast line of North Milwaukee Avenue;
Thence southeast along said northeast line to the south line of West Augusta Boulevard;

Thence east along said south line to the southwest line of the alley first northeast of North
Milwaukee Avenue, south of West Augusta Boulevard and west of North Willard Court;

Thence southeast along said southwest line to the west line of North Willard Court;

Thence south along said west line to the west extension of the north line of Lot 19 in Block 12 of
Canal Trustees’ Subdivision of the west half of Section 5, Township 39 North, Range 14 East of
the Third Principal Meridian (except the southeast quarter of the northwest quarter and the
northeast quarter of the southwest quarter);



Thence cast along said extension, said north line and its east extension to the centerline of the
alley vacated by Document Number 16860438, March 27. 1957,

Thence southeast along said centerline to the northeast extension of the southeast line of Lot 24
in said Block 12 of Canal Trustees™ Subdivision;

Thence southwest along said extension and said southeast line to the north line of Lot 25 in said
Block 12 of Canal Trustees”™ Subdivision;

Thence east along said north line to the west line of North Racine Avenue;

Thence south along said west line to the north line of Lot 26 in said Block 12 of Canal Trustees’
Subdivision;

Thence west along said north line to the west line of the east 40 feet of said Lot 26;

Thence south along said west line 1o the south line of said Lot 26;

Thence east along séid south line to the west line of North Racine Avenue;

Thence south along said west line to the northeast line of North Mil\&aukee Avenue;

Thence southeast along said northeast line to the west line of Lot 1 in Massuda’s Resubdivision
of Lots 61 to 64, both inclusive, in Block 11 in Elston’s Addition to Chicago, also that part of
Lot 65 in Assessor’s Plat;

Thence north along said west line to the north line of said Lot 1;

Thence east along said north line to the west line of North Elston Avenue;

Thence south along said west line to the west extension of the south line of West Fry Street;

Thence east along said extension across North Elston Avenue to the intersection of the east line
of said North Elston Avenue with the south line of West Fry Streeet;

Thence east along the south line of West Fry Street to the northernmost northeast corner of Lot 1
in Block 8 of Elston’s Addition to Chicago;

Thence southcast along the northeasterly line of Lots 1 through 13 in the aforesaid Block 8 of
Elston’s Addition to Chicago to the west line of North May Street;

Thence east on a line drawn perpendicular to the east and west lines of North May Street to the
east line of North May Street;

Thence south along the east line of North May Street to the southwest corner of Lot 9 in Block 7
of Elston’s Addition to Chicago;



Thence east along the south line of said Lot 9 to the west line of Lot 10 in Block 7 of Elston’s
Addition to Chicago;

Thence north along the west line of said Lot 10 to the south line of Lot 7 in Block 7 of Elston’s
Addition to Chicago;

Thence east along the south line of said Lot 7 to the southeast corner of Lot 7;

Thence north along the east line of said Lot 7 to the westerly extension of the south line of Lots
21 through 24 in Block 7 of Elston’s Addition to Chicago;

Thence east along the aforesaid westerly extension and the south line of Lots 21 through 24 to
the northwest line of North Ogden Avenue;

Thence northeast along the aforesaid northwest line of North Ogden Avenue to the east line of
Lot 19 in Block 7 of Elston’s Addition to Chicago;

Thence east along a line drawn perpendicular to the east line of North Carpenter Street, across
North Ogden Avenue and North Carpenter Street, to the east line of said North Carpenter Street;

Thence south along the east line of North Carpenter Street to the northwest corner of Lot 1 in
Assessor’s Division of Block 2 of Elston’s Addition to Chicago, according to the plat thereof
recorded August 20, 1868; '

Thence east along the north line of Lots 1 through 9 in the aforesaid Assessor’s Division of
Block 2 to the northeast corner of Lot 9, also being the southeast corner of Lot 10 in said
Assessor’s Division;

Thence north along the east line of said Lot 10 to the westerly extension of the south line of Lot
111inJ. A. Yale’s Resubdivision of Block 9, according to the plat thereof recorded April 25,
1873 as Document 94836;

Thence east along the aforesaid westerly extension and the south line of Lot 11 to the west line
of North Sangamon Street;

Thence east across North Sangamon Street to the southwest corner of Lot 9 in J. A. Yale’s
Resubdivision of Block 10;

Thence continuing east along the south line of the aforesaid Lot 9 to the west line of Lot 8 in
Block 10 of Wight’s Addition to Chicago, according to the plat thereof recorded November 30,
1835;

Thence south along the west line of the aforesaid Lot 8 and the west line of Lot 9 to the
southwest corner of Lot 9 in Block 10 of Wight’s Addition to Chicago;



Thence east along the south line of the aforesaid Lot 9 1o a point 34.17 [eet west of the east line
of said Lot 9;

Thence southeast 10 a point on the west linc of North Lessing Street, said point being 47.65 feel
south of the southeast corner of said Lot 9 as measured along said west line;

Thence north along the west line of North Lessing Street to the westerly extension of the north
line of Lots 7 through 10 in J. A. Yale’s Resubdivision of Block 11;

Thence east along the aforesaid westerly extension and the north line of Lots 7 through 10 to the
northeast corner of said Lot 7;

Thence south along the cast line of said Lot 7 to the southwest corner of Lot 9 in Block 11 of
Wight’s Addition to Chicago;

Thence east along the south line of the aforesaid Lot 9 to the west line of North Peoria Street;

Thence north along the west line of North Peoria Street to the westerly extension of the north
line of Lots 5 through 8 in J. A. Yale’s Resubdivision of Block 12;

Thence east along the aforesaid westerly extension and the north line of Lots 5 through 8 to the
northeast corner of said Lot 5;

Thence south along the east line of said Lot 5 to the northwest corner of Lot 4;

Thence east along the north linc of Lots 1 through 4 in said J. A. Yale’s Resubdivision of Block
12 to the west line of North Green Street;

Thence south along the west line of North Green Street to the north line of West Chicago
Avenue;

Thence east along the north linc of West Chicago Avenue to the northwesterly extension of the
westerly line of the Chicago and North Western Railroad in the East /2 of the Northeast ¥4 of
Section 8, Township 39 North, Range 14 East;

Thence southeast along the aforesaid westerly line of the Chicago and North Western Railroad to
the east line of Lot 10 in Block 7 of Ridgely’s Addition to Chicago, according to the plat thereof
re-recorded September 19, 1878 as Document 194914;

Thence South along said east line to the south line of said Lot 10:

Thence west along said south line of Lot 10 and its west extension to the southwest corner of Lot
7 in Block 7 of Ridgely’s Addition to Chicago:

Thence south along the southerly extension of the west line of the aforesaid Lot 7 to the easterly
cxtension of the south line of an 18 foot east-west alley lying south of and contiguous to Lots 1



through 6 in Block 7, Lots 1 through 23 in Block 6 and Lots 1 through 14 in Block 3 of
Ridgely’s Addition to Chicago;

Thence west along the aforesaid casterly extension and south line of an 18 foot east-west alley to
the east line of North Morgan Street;

Thence south along the east line of North Morgan Street to the casterly extension of the south
line of Lot 14 in Block 2 in Ridgely’s Addition to Chicago;

Thence west along said south line to the east line of Lot 7 in Assessor’s Division in the northeast
corner of the NE Y of Section 8, Township 39 North, Range 14;

Thence north along the east line of the aforesaid Lot 7, and its northerly extension, to the
centerline of a 16 foot east-west alley vacated by ordinance passed February 1, 1977 and
recorded March 24, 1977 as Document 23862844

Thence west along the aforesaid centerline of a vacated alley to the east line of North Carpenter
Street;

Thence south along the east line of North Carpenter Street to the north line of Lot 6 in Stow’s
Subdivision, according to the plat thereof recorded June 13, 1867 (ante-fire);

Thence east along the north line of the aforesaid Lot 6 to the west line of Lot 12 in Block 2 of
Ridgely’s Addition to Chicago, according to the plat thereof re-recorded September 19, 1878 as
Document 194914;

Thence south along the west line of said Lot 12 and Lots 6 through 11 in Block 2 of
Ridgely’s Addition to Chicago to the southwest corner of said Lot 6;

Thence east along the south line of said Lot 6 to the northcast corner of Lot 5 in Block 2 of
Ridgely’s Addition to Chicago;

Thence south along the east line of said Lot 5 to the centerline of a 12 foot east-west alley
vacated by Ordinance recorded September 1, 1987 as Document 87-481208, said alley lies north
of and contiguous to Lot 4 in Block 2 of Ridgely’s Addition to Chicago;

Thence east along the aforesaid centerline of the vacated alley to the northerly extension of the
east line of Lot 4 in Block 2 of Ridgely’s Addition to Chicago;

Thence south along the aforesaid northerly extension of the east line of said Lot 4 to the
northeast corner of said Lot 4;

Thence east along the north line of Lots 1 through 3 in Block 2 of said Ridgely’s Addition to
Chicago to the west line of North Morgan Street;



Thence south along the west line of North Morgan Street to the northwesterly line of North
Morgan Street;

Thence southwest along the northwesterly line of North Morgan Street to a line drawn
g Y g
perpendicular to the northwesterly line of North Morgan Street from the northwest corner of Lot

21 in Block 1 of Ridgely’s Addition to Chicago:

Thence southeast along the aforesaid perpendicular line to the northwest corner of Lot 21 in
Block 1 of Ridgely’s Addition to Chicago;

Thence east along the north line of the aforesaid Lot 21, also being the south line of West Huron
Street, and its easterly extension, to the east linc of Lot 19 in Block 1 of Ridgely’s Addition to

Chicago;

Thence south along the east line of said Lot 19 and the east line of Lot 18 to the northwest corner
of Lot 17 in Block 1 of Ridgely’s Addition to Chicago;

Thence southeasterly along the northeasterly line of Lots 5 through 17 in said Block 1 of
Ridgely’s Addition to Chicago, to the northwest corner of Lot 4 in said Block 1;

Thence east along the north line of said Lot 4 in Block 1 of Ridgely’s Addition to Chicago to the
west line of North Sangamon Street;

Thence south along the west line of North Sangamon Street, and its southerly extension, to the
westerly extension of the north line of West Ancona Street;

Thence east along the aforesaid westerly extension and the north line of West Ancona Street to
the northerly extension of the easterly most east line of Lot 2 the Subdivision of Lot 13 of Block
36 of Ogden’s Addition to Chicago;

Thence south along the aforesaid northerly extension and said east line of said Lot 2 to the
southeast line of said Lot 2;

Thence southwest along said southeast linc to the westerly most east line of said Lot 2;
Thence south along said east line to the north line of West Erie Street;

Thence west along the north line of West Erie Street to the west line of Lot 5 in Assessor’s
Division of Lots | to 6 inclusive in Block 37 of Ogden’s Addition to Chicago;

Thence north along said west line to the north line of Lots 7 and 8 in said Division;

Thence west along said north line and its west extension to the center linc of North Morgan
Street;



Thence north along said center line to the south line of the alley lying first South of Huron
Street;

Thence west along said south line of the alley lying first south of Huron Street to the east line of
Lot 12 in Block 12 in Ridgely’s Addition to Chicago, a subdivision of Blocks 5.9, 10, 11, 12,

14, 15 and 16 of Assessor’s Division in the northeast quarter of the northeast quarter of Section
8, Township 39 North, Range 14 East of the Third Principal Meridian;

Thence north along said east line of Lot 12 and its north extension to the south line of West
Huron Street;

Thence west along the said south line of West Huron Street, across North Carpenter Street, to the
west line of North Carpenter Street;

Thence north along the west line of North Carpenter Street to the northeast corner of Lot 1 in
Block 43 of Ogden’s Addition to Chicago;

Thence west along the north line of said Lot 1 and the north line of Lots 2 and 3 in Block 43 of
Ogden’s Addition to Chicago to the east line of North Curtis Street;

Thence west across North Curtis Street to the southeast corner of Lot 43 in the Subdivision of the
Southwest Part of Block 43 in Ogden’s Addition to Chicago, said corner also being on the west
line of North Curtis Street;

Thence northwesterly élong said west line of North Curtis Street to the east corner of Lot 37 in
said Subdivision;

Thence southwest along said southeast line to the east line of said Lot 37;

Thence south along said east line to a line drawn from the angle point in the west and
northwesterly line of said Lot 37 to the southerly most southeast corner of Lot 38 in said
Subdivision;

Thence northwest to the intersection of the west line and the northwesterly line of said Lot 37 in
the Subdivision of the Southwest Part of Block 43 in Ogden’s Addition to Chicago;

Thence northwest along the southwesterly line of Lots 10 through 13 in the Subdivision of Lots
23, 25 to 34, both inclusive, in the Subdivision of Block 43 in Ogden’s Addition to Chicago,
according to the plat thereof recorded January 18, 1884 as Document 520270, to the southeast
line of North Ogden Avenue;

Thence west, across North Ogden Avenue, to the west line of North May Street;
Thence north along the west line of North May Street to the south line of an east-west public

alley lying north of and contiguous to Lots 19 through 29 in the Subdivision of Block 42 of
Ogden’s Addition to Chicago;



Thence west along the aforesaid south line of an east-west public alley and its west extension to
the west line of North Racine Avenuce:

Thence north along the west line of North Racine Avenue to the south line of'a 10 foot east-west
alley lying south of and contiguous to Lots 1 through 9 in Block 1 of Taylor’s Subdivision,
according to the plat thereol recorded June 8, 1866;

Thence west along the aforesaid south line of a 10 foot east-west alley, and its westerly extension
to the west line of a 13 foot north-south alley lying east ol and contiguous to Lots 10 through 25
in Block 1 of Taylor’s Subdivision;

Thence south along the aforesaid west line of a 13 foot north-south alley to the southeast corner
of Lot 18 in said Block 1;

Thence west along the south line of said [Lot 18 to the east line of North Willard Court;

Thence north along the east line of North Willard Court to the easterly extension of the north line
of Lot 47 in Block 2 of Taylor’s Subdivision;

Thence west along the aforesaid easterly extension, the north line of Lot 47 in Block 2 and its
west extension to the west line of a 13 foot north-south alley lying east of and contiguous to Lots
10 through 25 in Block 2 of Taylor’s Subdivision;

Thence north along the aforesaid west line of a 13 foot north-south alley to the northeast corner
of Lot 10 in Block 2 of Taylor’s Subdivision;

Thence west along the north line of Lot 10 in Block 2, the north line of Lots 10 and 50 in Block
3 and the north line of Lot 50 in Block 4 of Taylor’s Subdivision, to the east line of a 13 foot
north-south alley lying east of and contiguous to Lots 10 through 25 in Block 4 of Taylor’s
Subdivision;

Thence south along the aforesaid east line of a 13 foot north-south alley to the easterly extension
of the south line of Lot 18 in Block 4 ot Taylor’s Subdivision;

Thence west along said easterly extension, the south line of said Lot 18 and its west extension to
the west line of North Ada Street;

Thence north along the west line of North Ada Street to the northeast corner of Lot 50 in Block 5
of Taylor’s Subdivision;

Thence west along the north line of said Lot 50 and the north linc of Lot 10 in Block 5 to the east
line of North Noble Street;



Thence south along the cast line of North Noble Street to the easterly extension of the north line
of Lots 16 through 30 in Block 1 in the Subdivision of Blocks 1 and 2 in Bickerdike’s Addition
to Chicago, according to the plat thereof recorded June 1, 1859;

Thence west along the aforesaid casterly extension and the north line of Lots 16 through 30 in
Block 1 and along the north line of Lots 16 through 30 in Block 2 in the Subdivision of Blocks 1
and 2 in Bickerdike’s Addition to Chicago, to the east line of North Armour Street;

Thence west across North Armour Street to the northeast corner of Lot 30 in Block 3 of the
Subdivision of Blocks 3 to 6 in George Bickerdike’s Addition to Chicago;

Thence west along the north line of Lots 17 through 30 in the aforesaid Block 3 of the
Subdivision of Blocks 3 to 6 in George Bickerdike’s Addition to Chicago and its west extension
to the west linc of North Ashland Avenue;

Thence north along said west line to the south line of Lots 1 through 4 of the Subdivision of
Block 1 of Canal Trustees’ Subdivision;

Thence west along said south line to the east line of a 20 foot east-west alley, said alley being
vacated by ordinance passed May 19, 1937 and recorded July 16, 1937 as Document 12027968;

Thence south along said east line to the center line of said vacated alley;

Thence west along the centerline of the aforesaid vacated 20 foot east-west alley to the northerly
extension of the west line of Lot 41 in the Subdivision of Block 1 of Canal Trustee’s
Subdivision;

Thence south along the aforesaid northerly extension of the west line of Lot 41 to the northwest
corner of Lot 41;

Thence west along the north line of Lots 26 through 41 in the Subdivision of Block 1 of Canal
Trustee’s Subdivision to the east line of North Paulina Street;

Thence west across North Paulina Street to the northeast corner of Lot 49 in the Subdivision of
the North ' of Block 2 in Canal Trustee’s Subdivision, according to the plat thereof recorded
October 25, 1856;

Thence west along the north line of Lots 49 through 72 in the Subdivision of the North 2 of
Block 2 in Canal Trustee’s Subdivision to the east line of North Wood Street;

Thence west across North Wood Street to the northeast corner of Lot 24 in the Subdivision of the
East 4 of Block 3 in Canal Trustee’s Subdivision, according to the plat thereof recorded
November 19,1880 as Document 298114;



Thence west along the north line of Lots 13 through 24 in the aforesaid Subdivision and along
the north line of Lots 13 through 24 in John Nicolson’s Subdivision, according to the plat thereof
recorded October 4, 1878 as Document 196642, 1o the cast linc of North Wolcott Avenue;

Thence west across North Wolcott Avenue to the northeast corner of Lot 4 in the Resubdivision
of Lots 47 to 50, according to the plat thereof recorded June 3, 1887 as Document 836477

Thence west along the north line of the aforesaid Lot 4 and the north line of Lots 28 through 46
in H. M. Thompson’s Resubdivision of Block 4 to the northwest corner of Lot 28;

Thence south along the west line of the aforesaid Lot 28 and its southerly extension, to the south
line of West Superior Street;

Thence west along the south line of West Superior Strect to the northwest corner of Lot 74 in H.
M. Thompson’s Resubdivision of Block 4:

Thence south along the west line of Lots 74 and 77 in the aforesaid H. M. Thompson’s
Resubdivision of Block 4 to the north line of West Huron Street;

Thence west along said north line to the southwest corner of Lot 50 in Block 2 of J. W.
Cochran’s Subdivision of Block 5 in Canal Trustee’s Subdivision;

Thence north along the west line of the aforesaid Lot 50 and its north extension to the north line
of the alley first south of West Superior Street lying between North Damen Avenue and North

Hoyne Avenue;

Thence west along said north line to the west line of Lot 3 in Block 2 of J. W. Cochran’s
Subdivision;

Thence north along said west line and its north extension to the north line of West Superior
Street;

Thence east along said north line to the west line of Lot 1 in Block 3 of J. W. Cochran’s
Subdivision; '

Thence north along said west line to the south line of West Lee Place;

Thence west along the south line of West Lee Place to the southerly extension of the west line of
Lot 49 in Block 1 of J. W. Cochran’s Subdivision;

Thence north along the aforesaid southerly extension and the west line of Lot 49 to the northwest
corner of Lot 49;

Thence west along the north line of Lots 44 through 48 in said Block 1 of J. W. Cochran’s
Subdivision of Block 5 in Canal Trustec’s Subdivision to the northwest carner of Lot 44;



Thence south along the west line of said Lot 44 (o the north line of West Lee Place;

Thence west along the north line of West Lee Place to the southwest corner of Lot 40 in said
Block 1 of J. W. Cochran’s Subdivision;

Thence north along the west line of the aforesaid Lot 40 to the northwest corner of Lot 40;

Thence west along the north line of Lots 26 through 39 in said Block 1 of J. W. Cochran’s
Subdivision to the east line of North Hoyne Avenue;

Thence south along the east line of North Hoyne Avenue to the easterly extension of the north
line of Lots 26 through 50 in the Subdivision of Block 6 in Canal Trustee’s Subdivision;

Thence west along the aforesaid easterly extension and the north line of Lots 26 through 50 to
the east line of North Leavitt Street:

Thence west across North Leavitt Street to the intersection of the west line of North Leavitt
Street with the south line of the 18 foot cast-west alley lying south of and contiguous to Lots 1
through 25 in the Subdivision of Block 7 in Canal Trustee’s Subdivision;

Thence west along the aforesaid south line of the 18 foot east-west alley to the east line of North
Oakley Avenue;

Thence west across North Oakley Avenue to the intersection of the west line of North Oakley
Avenue with the south line of the 16 foot east-west alley lying south of and contiguous to Lots 1

through 27 in E. Manchester Nichol’s Addition to Chicago, according to the plat thereof
recorded April 17, 1901 as Document 3088258;

Thence west along the aforesaid south line of the 16 foot east-west alley to the east line of North
Western Avenue;

Thence north along said east line to the Point of Beginning, all in the City ot Chicago, Cook
County, Illinois.
Legal Description revised July 8, 2014

Alfred Benesch & Company

Hlinois Professional Land Survcyor-_f\lo. 3685
License expires November 30, 2014



EXHIBIT 2
Map

See attached.
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EXHIBIT 3
Permanent Index Numbers

See attached pages.
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17053020330000
17053030320000
17053030330000
17053030420000
17053100620000
17053190030000
17053210291001
17053210291002
17053210291004
17053220400000
17053220410000
17053240420000
17053240430000
17053240440000
17053240661001
17053240661002
17053240661004
17053250030000
17053250250000
17053250270000
17053250280000
17053250491001
17053250491002
17053250491004
17053250491005
17053250551006
17053250560000
17053260140000
17053260170000
17053260250000
17053260260000
17053290280000
17053290601002
17053290601007
17054150311001
17054150311014
17054150311035
17054170160000
17054170170000
17054200130000
17054200140000
17054200150000
17054200160000

SPECIAL SERVICE AREA 29-2014 WEST TOWN - LIST OF PINs

17054200170000
17054200180000
17063280310000
17063280320000
17063280370000
17063280390000
17063280400000
17063310360000
17063310370000
17063310380000
17063310390000
17063310410000
17063310420000
17063310440000
17063310510000
17063310541003
17064120130000
17064320300000
17064340180000
17064340190000
17064340200000
17064340471001
17064340471002
17064340471003
17064340471006
17064340471007
17064340471018
17064340471021
17064340471022
17064360070000
17064360090000
17064360100000
17064360110000
17064360120000
17064360130000
17064360160000
17064360170000
17064360200000
17064360210000
17064360220000
17064370180000
17064370190000
17064370200000

17064370230000
17064370240000
17064370260000
17064370270000
17064370280000
17064380200000
17064380401002
17064380401007
17064380401012
17064390180000
17064390240000
17064400160000
17064400170000
17064400180000
17064400190000
17064400210000
17064400240000
17064400370000
17071000010000
17071000020000
17071000030000
17071000040000
17071000050000
17071020110000
17071020120000
17071020150000
17071030010000
17072000110000
17072000170000
17072000240000
17072000491002
17072000521003
17072000541001
17072000541002
17072000561001
17072010070000
17072010080000
17072010160000
17072020020000
17072020060000
17072020090000
17072020100000
17072020110000

17072020120000
17072020150000
17072020160000
17072030040000
17072030401001
17072040501001
17081020010000
17081020020000
17081020030000
17081020040000
17081020050000
17081020120000
17081020330000
17081020350000
17081020370000
17081030010000
17081030030000
17081030060000
17081040020000
17081040030000
17081040380000
17081040391003
17081050511001
17081050511002

17081050511003

17081060500000
17081060551009
17082020020000
17082050151001
17082070020000
17082070110000
17082070150000
17082070200000
17082070220000
17082200010000
17082200030000
17082200040000
17082200070000
17082200090000
17082200100000
17082200190000
17082200200000
17082200431002

17082200591003
17082200591004
17082200611001
17082200631001
17082200631002
17082200631003
17082200631004
17082200631005
17082200631007
17053260180000
17053260210000-
17053260220000
17054150261003
17054150311002
17054150311015
17054150311016
17054150311018
17054150311033
17054150311034
17054230060000
17054240161001
17054240161011
17054240161029
17054240161031
17063290250000
17063290260000
17063290310000
17063300360000
17063300370000
17063300440000
17063310541002
17063310541004
17064200260000
17064280010000
17064320190000
17064330360000
17064380401006
17064380401008
17064380401014
17064390230000
17064400290000
17071010010000
17071010020000



17071010030000
17071010040000
17071010110000
17071020180000
17072000010000
17072000090000
17072000491003
17072010060000
17072010140000
17072010170000
17072010190000
17072010200000
17072010210000
17072020040000
17072020070000
17072030380000
17072030401004
17081000050000
17081020060000
17081040391002
17082050171017
17082050171071
17082050171091
17082050171092
17082200611002
17082200611004
17053040440000
17053240650000
17053250491007
17064360140000
17064360150000
17064360180000
17081020361001
17081020361002
17081020361003
17053250491008
17053250491009
17053250491010
17053250491011
17053250491012
17064390170000
17071020430000
17081000010000

SPECIAL SERVICE AREA 29-2014 WEST TOWN - LIST OF PINs

17081000020000
17081000040000
17053250491014
17053250491015
17053250491016
17064360190000
17054240161012
17072030401006
17053250491003
17053250491006
17053250491013
17053000070000
17053000280000
17053010010000
17053010020000
17053010030000
17053010040000
17053010050000
17053010060000
17053010070000
17053010080000
17053010090000
17053010100000
17053010110000
17053020250000
17053020340000
17053030400000
17053030410000
17053030431001
17053030431003
17053030431004
17053030431005
17053040460000
17053080020000
17053080030000
17053080040000
17G53080050000
17053080060000
17053080070000
17053080080000
17053080940000
17053050010000
17053090020000

17053090030000
17053090040000
17053090050000
17053090060000
17053090070000
17053090080000
17053090090000
17053090100000
17053090110000
17053100661001
17053100661002
17053100661003
17053100661004
17053100661005
17053100661006
17053100661007
17053100661008
17053100661009
17053100661010
17053100661011
17053140010000
17053140020000
17053140060000
17053140070000
17053140080000
17053140090000
17053140100000
17053140110000
17053140540000
17053140551001
17053140551002
17053140610000
17053140621001
17053140621004
17053160100000
17053160420000
17053160430000
17053160440000
17053170170000
17053170400000
17053170410000
17053170420000
17053170440000

17053180190000
17053180200000
17053180210000
17053180360000
17053180460000
17053180571001
17053180571002
17053180571003
17053180571004
17053180571005
17053180571006
17053180571007
17053180571008
17053180571009
17053190010000
17053190040000
17053190050000
17053190060000
17053150070000
17053190080000
17053190090000
17053191161001
17053191161002
17053191161003
17053200220000
17053200590000
17053210020000
17053210250000
17053210291003
17053210291005
17053210291006
17053210291007
17053210291008
17053220040000
17053220360000
17053220370000
17053220421001
17053220421002
17053220421003
17053220421004
17053220421005
17053220421006
17053240480000

17053240661003
17053250260000
17053250290000
17053250300000
17053250310000
17053250320000
17053250330000
17053250350000
17053250360000
17053250370000
17053250380000
17053250390000
17053250471001
17053250471002
17053250471003
17053250471004
17053250480000
17053250500000
17053250511001
17053250511002
17053250511003
17053250530000
17053250551001
17053250551002
17053250551003
17053250551004
17053250551005
17053250551007
17053260150000
17053260160000
17053260230000
17053260240000
17053260270000
17053260280000
17053260290000
17053260300000
17053270010000
17053280180000
17053280190000
17053280530000
17053280540000
17053280550000
17053280570000



17053280581003
17053290260000
17053290270000
17053290290000
17053290300000
17053290580000
17053290601001
17053290601003
17053290601004
17053290601005
17053290601006
17054120640000
17054120650000
17054150030000
17054150040000
17054150650000
17054150060000
17054150070000
17054150110000
17054150120000
17054150130000
17054150140000
17054150160000
17054150240000
17054150250000
17054150261001
17054150261002
17054150261004
17054150261005
17054150261006
17054150261007
17054150261008
17054150261009
17054150261010
17054150261011
17054150270000
17054150280000
17054150311003
17054150311004
17054150311005
17054150311006
17054150311007
17054150311008

SPECIAL SERVICE AREA 29-2014 WEST TOWN - LIST OF PINs

17054150311009
17054150311010
17054150311011
17054150311012
17054150311013
17054150311017
17054150311019
17054150311020
17054150311021
17054150311022
17054150311023
17054150311024
17054150311025
17054150311026
17054150311027
17054150311028
17054150311029
17054150311030
17054150311031
17054150311032
17054150311036
17054160010000
17054160020000
17054160030000
17054160090000
17054160100000
17054160110000
17054160120000
17054160241001
17054160241002
17054160241003
17054160241004
17054160251001
17054160251002
17054160251003
17054160251004
17054160261001
17054160261002
17054160261003
17054160261004
17054160281001
17054160281002
17054160281003

17054160291001
17054160291002
17054160291003
17054160291004
17054160291005
17054170180000
17054170220000
17054180050000
17054180090000
17054200190000
17054200200000
17054240120000
17054240130000
17054240140000
17054240161002
17054240161003
17054240161004
17054240161005
17054240161006
17054240161007
17054240161008
17054240161009
17054240161010
17054240161013
17054240161014
17054240161015
17054240161016
17054240161017
17054240161018
17054240161019
17054240161020
17054240161021
17054240161022
17054240161023
17054240161024
17054240161025
17054240161026
17054240161027
17054240161028
17054240161030
17054240161032
17054250080000
17054250090000

17054250100000
17063280360000
17063280380000
17063280420000
17063280441001
17063280441002
17063280441003
17063280441004
17063280471001
17063280471002
17063280471003
17063280471004
17063290210000
17063290240000
17063290270000
17063290280000
17063290290000
17063290300000
17063290320000
17063290340000
17063290350000
17063290360000
17063290370000
17063290401001
17063290401002
17063290401003
17063290401004
17063290401005
17063290401006
17063290401007
17063290401008
17063290401009
17063290401010
17063290401011
17063290401012
17063290401013
17063290401014
17063290401015
17063290401016
17063290401017
17063250401018
17063290401019
17063290401020

17063290401021
17063290410000
17063290420000
17063250430000
17063250441001
17063290441002
17063290441003
17063250450000
17063290461001
17063290461002
17063290461003
17063290461004
17063290461005
17063290461006
17063290461007
17063250461008
17063290461009
17063250461010
17063290461011
17063290461012
17063290461013
17063290461014
17063250461015
17063290461016
17063290461017
17063290461018
17063290461019
17063290461020
17063300160000
17063300170000
17063300180000
17063300190000
17063300200000
17063300210000
17063300220000
17063300240000
17063300250000
17063300270000
17063300280000
17063300310000
17063300320000
17063300330000
17063300390000



17063300470000
17063300481001
17063300481002
17063300481003
17063300481004
17063300481005
17063300501001
17063300501002
17063300501003
17063300501004
17063310250000
17063310260000
17063310270000
17063310290000
17063310300000
17063310320000
17063310330000
17063310340000
17063310350000
17063310400000
17063310430000
17063310450000
17063310460000
17063310470000
17063310520000
17063310541001
17063310551001
17063310551002
17063310551003
17063310551004
17064080060000
17064080070000
17064080080000
17064080090000
17064080100000
17064080110000
17064080120000
17064080130000
17064120140000
17064120150000
17064120160000
17064120200000
17064120250000

SPECIAL SERVICE AREA 29-2014 WEST TOWN - LIST OF PINs

17064120260000
17064120270000
17064120280000
170641202950000
17064120300000
17064120310000
17064120320000
17064200190000
17064200200000
17064200210000
17064200230000
17064200240000
17064200250000
17064200270000
17064200280000
17064200250000
17064200341001
17064200341002
17064200341003
17064200341004
17064200381001
17064200381002
17064200381003
17064200381004
17064200381005
17064200381006
17064200381007
17064200381008
17064200381009
17064200381010
17064200381011
17064200381012
17064200381013
17064200381014
17064200381015
17064320170000
17064320180000
17064320200000
17064320210000
17064320220000
17064320230000
17064320240000
17064320250000

17064320260000
17064320270000
17064320280000
17064320310000
17064320320000
17064320341001
17064320341002
17064320341003
17064320341004
17064330340000
17064330350000
17064330370000
17064330380000
17064330350000
17064330400000
17064330410000
17064330420000
17064340210000
17064340360000
17064340370000
17064340471004
17064340471005
17064340471008
17064340471009
17064340471010
17064340471011
17064340471012
17064340471013
17064340471014
17064340471015
17064340471016
17064340471017
17064340471019
17064340471020
17064340471023
17064340471024
17064360080000
17064380210000
17064380220000
17064380240000
17064380401001
17064380401003
17064380401004

17064380401005
17064380401009
17064380401010
17064380401011
17064380401013
17064380401015
17064350190000
17064330200000
17064390220000
17064390290000
17064390300000
17064400150000
17064400200000
17064400220000
17064400230000
17064400250000
17064400280000
17064400361001
17064400361002
17064400361003
17064400361004
17064400361005
17064400361006
17064400380000
17071000070000
17071000080000
17071000090000
17071000100000
17071000120000
17G71000330000
17071000340000
17071000350000
17071000361001
17071000361002
17071000361003
17071000361004
17071000401001
17071000401002
17071000401003
17071000401004
17071000411001
17071000411002
17071000411003

17071000411004
17071000421001
17071000421002
17071000421003
17071000421004
17071010090000
1771010100000
17071010120000
17071010130000
17071010150000
17071010160000
17071010380000
17071010391001
17071010391002
17071010391003
17071010391004
17071020010000
17071020020000
17071020030000
17071020040000
17071020050000
17071020060000
17071020070000
17071020080000
17071020090000
17071020100000
17071020190000
17071020200000
17071020210000
17071020460000
17071020471001
17071020471002
17071020471003
17071020480000
17071020491001
17071020491002
17071020491003
17071030020000
17071030030000
17071030040000
17071030050000
17071030060000
17071030070000



17071030080000
17071030090000
17071030100000
17071030110000
17071030160000
17071030170000
17071030180000
17071030190000
17071030200000
17071030490000
17071030510000
17071030520000
17071030530000
17071070250000
17071080470000
17071080591001
17071080591002
17071080591003
17071080591004
17071080591005
17071080591006
17071080591007
17071080591008
17071080591009
17072000020000
17072000030000
17072000060000
17072000070000
17072000080000
17072000100000
17072000120000
17072000130000
17072000150000
17072000160000
17072000180000
17072000190000
17072000491001
17072000501001
17072000501002
17072000501003
17072000501004
17072000501005
17072000501006

SPECIAL SERVICE AREA 29-2014 WEST TOWN - LIST OF PINs

17072000511001
17072000511002
17072000511003
17072000511004
17072000521001
17072000521002
17072000521004
17072000531001
17072000531002
17072000531003
17072000531004
17072000541003
17072000541004
17072000551001
17072000551002
17072000551003
17072000551004
17072000561002
17072000561003
17072000561004
17072010010000
17072010020000
17072010030000
17072010040000
17072010050000
17072010090000
17072010100000
17072010120000
17072010130000
17072010150000
17072010180000
17072010471001
17072010471002
17072010471003
17072020010000
17072020030000
17072020050000
17072020080000
17072020130000
17072020140000
17072020180000
17072020190000
17072020440000

17072020450000
17072030030000
17072030050000
17072030060000
17072030070000
17072030080000
17072030090000
17072030100000
17072030110000
17072030120000
17072030130000
17072030140000
17072030150000
17072030390000
17072030401002
17072030401003
17072030401005
17072040250000
17072040501002
17072040501003
17072040501004
17081000030000
17081000050000
17081000060000
17081000070000
17081000080000
17081000100000
17081010010000
17081010020000
17081010030000
17081010040000
17081010050000
17081010060000
17081010070000
17081010080000
17081010090000
17081010100000
17081010110000
17081020070000
17081020321001
17081020321002
17081020321003
17081020321004

17081020321005
17081020321006
17081020321007
17081020321008
17081020321009
17081020321010
17081020321011
17081020321012
17081020321013
17081020321014
17081020341001
17081020341002
17081020341003
17081020381001
17G81020381002
17081020381003
17081020381004
17081020381005
17081020381006
17081020381007
17081020381008
17081020381009
17081030020000
17081030040000
17081030050000
17081040010000
17081040391001
17081040391004
17081050020000
17081050030000
17081050040000
17081050050000
17081050060000
17081050070000
17081050080000
17081050090000
17081060020000
17081060030000
17081060510000
17081060530000
17081060540000
17081060551001
17081060551002

17081060551003
17081060551004
17081060551005
17081060551006
17081060551007
17081060551008
17081060551010
17081060551011
17081070510000
17082000040000
17082000050000
17082000060000
17082000070000
17082000080000
17G82000090000
17082000170000
17082020010000
17082020030000
17082020040000
17082030010000
17082030080000
17082030090000
17082030110000
17082030121001
17082030121002
17082030121003
17082030121004
17082040050000
17082040060000
17082040260000
17082040370000
17082050010000
17082050020000
17082050030000
17082050040000
17082050050000
17082050120000
17082050130000
17082050151002
17082050151003
17082050151004
17082050171001
17082050171002



17082050171003
17082050171004
17082050171005
17082050171006
17082050171007
17082050171008
17082050171009
17082050171010
17082050171011
17082050171012
17082050171013
17082050171014
17082050171015
17082050171016
17082050171018
17082050171019
17082050171020
17082050171021
17082050171022
17082050171023
17082050171024
17082050171025
17082050171026
17082050171027
17082050171028
17082050171029
17082050171030
17082050171031
17082050171032
17082050171033
17082050171034
17082050171035
17082050171036
17082050171037
17082050171038
17082050171039
17082050171040
17082050171041
17082050171042
17082050171043
17082050171044
17082050171045
17082050171046

SPECIAL SERVICE AREA 29-2014 WEST TOWN - LIST OF PINs

17082050171047
17082050171048
17082050171049
17082050171050
17082050171051
17082050171052
17082050171053
17082050171054
17082050171055
17082050171056
17082050171057
17082050171058
17082050171059
17082050171060
17082050171061
17082050171062
17082050171063
17082050171064
17082050171065
17082050171066
17082050171067
17082050171068
17082050171069
17082050171070
17082050171072
17082050171073
17082050171074
17082050171075
17082050171076
17082050171077
17082050171078
17082050171079
17082050171080
17082050171081
17082050171082
17082050171083
17082050171084
17082050171085
17082050171086
17082050171087
17082050171088
17082050171089
17082050171090

17082050180000
17082050190000
17082060170000
17082060180000
17082060190000
17082070160000
17082070170000
17082070180000
17082080110000
17082080120000
17082080130000
17082080140000
17082080210000
17082090030000
17082090040000
17082090050000
17082090160000
17082090170000
17082100010000
17082100060000
17082100090000
17082110010000
17082110050000
17082190100000
17082190110000
17082190120000
17082190130000
17082190140000
17082190280000
17082200080000
17082200130000
17082200140000
17082200150000
17082200160000
17082200431001
17082200431003
17082200491001
17082200491002
17082200491003
17082200491004
17082200491005
17082200491006
17082200491007

17082200491008
17082200491009
17082200491010
17082200491011
17082200491012
17082200491013
17082200491014
17082200491015
17082200491016
17082200491017
17082200491018
17082200580000
17082200591001
17082200591002
17082200611003
17082200611005
17082200611006
17082200611007
17082200621001
17082200621002
17082200621003
17082200621004
17082200631006
17082240010000
17082240020000
17082240040000
17082240050000
17082240060000
17082240070000
17082250050000
17082250191001
17082250191002
17082250191003
17082250191004
17082250191005
17082250191006
17082250191007
17082250191008
17082250191009
17082250191010
17082250191011
17082250191012
17082250191013

17082250191014
17082250191015
17082250191016
17082250191017
17082250191018
17082250191019
17082250191020
17082250191021
17082250191022
17082250191023
17082250191024
17082250191025
17082250191026
17082250191027
17082250191028
17082250191029
17082250191030
17082250191031
17082250191032
17082250191033
17082250191034
17082250191035
17082250191036



EXHIBIT 4

Public Hearing Notice

See attached pages.
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CITY OF CHICAGO. HOUSING AND ECONOMIC DE
SSA 29

ADORDERNUMBER: 0000867882-01
PO NUMBER: SSA29
AMOUNT 1.877 60
NO OF AFFIDAVITS: 3

Chicago Sun-Times
Certificate of Publication

State of lllinois - County of Cook

Chicago Sun-Tines, does hereby certify Il has published the attached adverhsments in
the following secular newspapers. All newspapers meet lllinois Compiled Statue
requirements for publication of Notices per Chapter 715 ILCS 5/0.01 et seq. R.S. 1874,
P728 Sec 1, EFF. July 1, 1874. Amended by Laws 1959, P1494, EFF. July 17, 1959.
Formerly lll. Rev. Stat. 1991, CH100, PI.

Note: Notice appeared in the following checked positions.

PUBLICATION DATE(S): 11/06/2014

Chicago Sun-Times

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the undersigned, being duly authonized, has caused
this Certificate to be signed and notarized

By

Jeremy Gates
Account Manager - Public Legal Notices

Subscnbed and sworn to before me this 6th Day of November 2014 AD

CITY OF CHICAGO, HOUSING AND ECONOMIC

DE

121 N LASALLE STREET
ROOM 1006

CHICAGO. IL 60602-1266
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ns m ard § and the zU:.J < of Sechions 7 anc

c 8, Township 3§

__.m B West nz_nwno x..,o;_s
re &0 2 _2_ :o:: o_ ang oaraliet :_5 ‘he nozin m 21 Wesl Chicago Avenue
4 1n Sulfern's Subdwastan
_\;:au 1894 as Ducumen: Ncc.amc
1lh alang said west Iine of Lot 27 10 the norih lne of 316 fog: easi-
ngs and Compaay s Subi
! therenl recordzd A0t 16 1312 as Document 4947622

Thence no

st 2tley kng soulh af
wisIon accarding 1o

ley tc west

Lnz g's,

e Infersechion of ine east

5t Lats 78

nl,

_J_n.mnn _S _u_ e 2ag|

2: eastowas: ailey lying ror of u,a con c_a_.m e Les 1 "Zo_&__
,o_ in m:; Ca uu:: or of lne uE__._ : of m_cn., 8 af Coe

_. dar bn.:.f aad Others m:nn__:m_n: nnnua_f 1o Sm [
5 Coc.ment 271625

hao_ reccreed __1: 12. _mmo

70 e ne ¢ Harta

ith the north tine of a 16 foot unm_.immm ailey _<_=n north of ang con L ous
Block 21 and Lots 1 through 5 in Black 22 in Johnston's m=an_<_ur: azst
«eo! recorded Decembar 8, 1851,

« eas! along the north ling of the uaa

e ol West Walton Street.
2 ot vacated North Marsh

Trence nofth along said east line te the nortn
nence west along said north Line 1o the cast

znge north along said east line and its ncn eviension to the north line of

nance east along said north line to the east Iiie of ire alley furst west of Nartk Askl

3hwisan West Augusta Street and West Corter Siveet,

_Z nce north along said east line and its nertn exiensicn 5 the north kne of the soutk 22 tee: ¢* Lot
€ 1n Assessar's Division of Block 1 in Johnston's &

Thence east along said narih line to the west i4e 5' Narth Ashiand Avenue,

T e south along said wesi line to the west exfension of the north line 6* Lot 27 17 Black 1 of

Canal Trusfees' Subdivision of the west katt 2! Suctisn 5, Township 39, Raagz 14 East f the Thid

Pr-rzipal Meridian {excapt the southaast quarts: o’ he northwest quarter ang tae neitheasl quarter

ol the scuthwest quarter),

Trence east along sald woest extansion ang said nartn iing to the east hne of Lot 22 10 sa 5 Black 1.

Trerce south along said east line to the north ling ¢f West Haddon Avenue,

Trence wesl along said north line to the north extensian of the west tine of the alley first east of Norih

Ashiang Avenue lying between West Haddon Aveniie and West Thomas Stree!

Agace south along sald west line to the soih ling of West Thomas Streel,

Tagnce west along said south line to a line 35 17 feet west ol the easi hne of Lois 19 and 201

ang Stawart’s m._mn_iu_n: of tha west pani of Block 20 of said Canal Trustees’ Subdvision,

Thence sauth along sad ling to the north hine of Lot 21 in Bauwen's.and Stewaart's Suadivision ot the

wes: part of Block 20 of said Canal Trustees” Subdwision,

Trence easi along Said north ling to the west line of the afley first east of North Ashland Aveaue lying

betvieen West Thomas Street and West Cortez Sirci

Taeace south along said west lina and its sauth exteasion to the south line of Wesi Cortez Stzeet,

Thence east along sald south line to ths west ke of the alley hirst east of North Ashland Averue lying

betwzen West Cortez Streat and West Augus:a Boulevard,

Thence south along said west line to the south ing of Wesl Augusta Boulevard,

Thence west along said south line to the wes: iinz of the alley first east of North Ashland Avenus lying

beeween West Augusta Baulevand and West Chestaut Street,

Thence south along said west lina 1o the south ling of West Chesinut Street,

Thence west atong said south ine to a line 62 5 feet east of the east bine of North Ashland Avenve,

Thence south along said line and its south extension to the south line of Wes: Pearsan Street,

Thence east along said south lins 10 the to the west kne of the northisouth aliey first east of Narth

Ashland Avanue lying between West Pearson Strzet and West Fry Street,

Thence south along sald wast line and its south extension to ths south Line of Wes! Fry Street,

Trence east along said south ling to the west iine af the alley first east of North Asklang Aveaue bying

beiween West Fry Street and West Chicago Avenue

Thence south along sald west line to the westerty exiension of the north line ot a 10 taot east-west

alley lying south of ang conbguous to Lats 21 through 26 in the aforesaid Subdivision of parl of Block

22 and south of and contiguous to Lots 1 thraigh 10 1 Block 1 of tha Subd:vision of part of Block

28. according to the plat thersof recarded Januasy 9. 1854,

Trence east along the aforesald westerty extension and the norih ltne of said 10 foot east-west alley

ta the southeast comer of Lot 1 in Block 1 of the Subdmision of part of Block 29, according 1o the

plat thereof recorded January 9, 1854,

Thence south along the southerly extension of tha east ine of said Lot 1 30 the soutaviest Coiner of

Lot 26 1n Block 2 of the Subdivision of 1 acre in the Southeast ' of Black 29, according to the plat

werec! recorded Apnl 23, 1855;

Thence east along the seuth kine of Lots 24 through 26 1n Block 2 of the alosesaid Sundivision of 1

acre in the Southeast % of Block 29, ta the west ling of Nodh Greenvicw Avenue

Thence northeast across North Greenview Avenue to the southwest comer ef Lot 6 in the Subawisian

i Lat 1.in Gelsttield's Subdivision, according 1a the plat thereof recorded May 12, 1863

Thence east along the south line of Lats 4,5 and 6 in the atoresaid Subdivision of Lot 1 1n Geist

Subdivision to the sautheast corner of Lot 4,

Tnence south along the southerty extension of the east kine of said Lot 4 to the scuthwes: coraer of

Lat 13 1n the Suddivision of the West % of Black 28 of Canal Trustee’s Subdrasian, accarding to tae

la: thereof recorded December 2, 1854,

Thence east along the south line of Lots 13 14 15, and its easterly exten!

201 said m=g_<_m_a

Wes? Augusta Streer.

nd Aver

Bauwen's

eld*

o

=

2 22t hing of Lot

n, io

Lot S n ihe Suddivisian
e's Subdmiston, according te she plat thereo!

Trerce cast along the south line of Lais 1 thicugh 5 in the Subdivision of Lot 21 ot the West % of
Blac*. 28 of Canal Trustee’s Subduvision to :he cast line of North Bishop Steeel,

tence south along the east lina of said North Biskop Street to the nonth line of 2 12 1241 e2
aliey lyng rorth of and contlguous ta Lols 1 through 13 n Block 28 6f O J Rose's Subal
arcording to the plat therzol recarded August 4 1354,

Tnence east alang the narth iine of the aforesaid 12 toot gast-west alley 15 the wast Iine of Horth
Heble Street,

_,m__; north along the west line of North Nodie
nce east across North Nobla Street ta the ini
ith the south line of West Chesinut Stree:
Trence east along the south line cf West Ches:
Thzace south along the east Ling of North Elizab
1ng north of and canhguous to Lols 76 through 100 n the Subdivision of Blazk 26 :n Caral Trusiee
Sugcivision, according to tha plat thereo! recarded July 27, 1853,

Trence east along the narth line of the atoresa:c 18 ool easl-west alley tc the center
Racine Avenus,

Thence south along said center line of North Facine Avenue {0 the west exiensicn of Ihe south nac of
Loi 30 in Harbine and Roman's Subdivisior

Tnence east along said sauth line al said Lot 30 and its easterly extensidn ta the southwester:
of Lot i1 In said Harbine and Roman’s Subdwvision.

Trence northwest along the southwesterly ine of Lots 8 through 11 1n said Harbine and Roman's
Suacvision to the east exiension of the scuth line of Lot 32 in said Haroine and Roman's
Subdwvision,

Tnence west along said extension and said south line ta the east line of North Racine Avenue,
Tnance north atong the east Line of North Racine Avenue to tha east extension of the soutn kne of Lot
26 n the Subdwvision of Block 26 in Ganal Trustees’ Subdwasion,

Trence west along sald extension and said south l:na to the west lins of sa:g Lt 28,

Thence north along said west liné 1o the narth line of said Lot 29, .

Thence east along said north line to the a point an said north ling being 65 77 feet viest of the
northeast corner of said Lot 29;

Thence north 1o the southsast lina Lot 2 in Circunt Court partition of Lots 25 1o 28 nf Block 26 in

West
SIGn,

Stieet 1o ine south bne of West Chestaut Stieed
ection of the east ine of sanf North Noblz Street

Street to the east line of Nortn £l zabeth Street
treel 10 the north line of a 18 foot casi-wes: alley
'S

ne of North

line

Tresnice .5:.52_ ua:a sa sputheast ine 13 3 lire 862 _n: southw2st ol &

o the ne ¢f Nerth Autrug

Thence nortkwest alsng said Ling 86 8 feet southwes! of and paralel wiik, ay measurea serpend sular

1o, 1he linz of Nosth Miiwankee Avanue 1 the hag of Lof 2317 52:2 Sbdivis 2

of Biock 26 1n Canal Trustees® Stbdwisiar,

Thence southwest along sa:d southeas! ng to t 2

sauihwest of Norih Milwau'ee Avenue lying belwoen Wesl Fy

Thence rorthwest along said l:re 20 tne saLtagast hne ¢! Lat 17 1n sad Sundr

aral Trustees” Subdivision

Thenze ncriheast along said southicas? line o thg east I'n

Taence neeth aleng said east knz to the sonth

Tnerce west along said sauth | ne ta the soalngast extznsion 2! 1

t's Subawision of Qutlnt 23 in said Canal Trustees’ Sul

Waitan Street ard West Chestaul Slreet and ! est scutwie

ence northwest along said exiarsion and sa 2 nerthaast ing 1o the sauthe ..mm_ ccrner

2' Lot 31n Ine Secend Resubd:vis-en of Lots & 1¢ € 1n Bicch 25 o1 said San: Sivis 50

Thence west along ihe south fne of saw Lot 3 and its westarly exiens 37 1 i€ wes! _.=.u ¢! saig

Second Resubdivisior.

Tnerce narth along said west fine and its north exicnsion 1o the nasta ine ¢! Wi

Thence west along sard north line to the nertheast ine ef the alley hrst sauth

Avenie lying between West Walion Streel and west Augusta Boulevare

Thence nanthwes: along sa: northeasi g 10 the southe:ly most southeast zarnzr gf Let 1410 the

Subaw:sion a! Block 23 and 25 and Iscatians cf steaets and alley n said Canal Ty

sald carner also being ihe ncrth line of the zlley first south of Wes) Acgusta Bsulevard iying Setwesn

Korth Noblz Street and west of North Milwaukes Avenue

Taenze wiest along said narth line 1o the west ine of Let 10 10 the Suadmision of 5t

Iccanions of strests and allzy in said Canal Trusiess” Subcivision,

Therce narth along said west kne and its narta exiensian to the {a the acrin

Boulevar

Thence east alang said rorth fine and its east exiension o the northea:

Avenue,

Thence northwesi along said northzast fine to the scuth line of West Division Street

Thence east along sa:d south line 1o the west line of the east 14 feet ol Lc: 14 16 Block 22 1n Elstons

Additign ta Chicago in Section 5. Townshin 39 North, Range 14 Eas? of the Thied Principal Menichan,

Thence south along said west Iine to the norih fine of the aliey tirst south of West Cwvision Street

Thence continuing south across said alley 10 the mierseci:on of the south Ing of said alley with the

west line of the east 14 feet ¢f Lot 43 in said Block 22

Thence south along sard west ing to a point 6f ntersection with the narth line o:

point being also the east Uine of vacated West Haddan Avenue

Thenze south along said easl line ot vacated West Haddon Avenue 1o the cent

Haddon Avenue,

Thence west along said cenler ling of vacated West Haddan Avenue and ifs wes! exlznsion io the

west line of North Noble Street,

Thence narth along said wesi line to the south ling of Lot 42 of Block 1 1n Cnathetn s Addion 1o

Chicago. being 2 Subdivision of Blacks 16 and 17 in Canal Trustees’ Subdvision,

Thence west along said south line o the west kne ot said Lol 42 of Block 1

Thence narth 2long said west ling and its narth extension ta the nor:h Tine of the aliey first south 6!

Wes® Division Sireet lying betwesn Noith Noble Street and North Cleaver Sireel.

Therce west alang said nofth hag and its wes! gxlensian 1o the west hng of Horth Cleaver Stree

Therice south along said west hine 1o the south line of Lot 39 of lock 2 1n said Chatfield s Add

to Chicage,

nence wes! along said south line and ds west extensian 19 the sauthwesi iing of the aliey st

northeast 6f North Milwaukee Avenue lying between West Division Street and Morth Moble Street

Thence along said line 10 the cen: of the vacated portion of Norin Noble

Streel by Document 20583296,

Thence south alang sard centerling {0 the north fine of the 20 foat vacated portior of West Thamas

Street, said vacaed portion lying north of and abuiting the arik: b s 1 through 4 1n the

Resubdvision of Lots §1 to 54 of Block i5 i Elsion’s Aadition ta Chicago,

M:n:nn east along said north line 1o the easi ine of said vacazed partion o1 said West Thoras
ireel,

Thence south along said east line to the south ling of West Thomas Street,

Thence east aigng saw sauth bine ta the sauihwest tine of West Cartar Street,

Thence aleng said line to the hine of Let ¢ in Block 15 1n Efstens

Additian to Chicago in Sectian 5. Township 39 North, Range 14 East of the Third Prircipal Mendian

Thence southwest along said line to the sauthwesterly l:ne of Lots 40 10 44 in said Block 15

Thence soulheast along said southwesterly kng {0 the south corner of said Lat 40.

Thence southerly on a straight kre to the nerth corner ci Lot 16 wn said Block 15 s2id kne also being

lacated on the west line of the alley, souihwvest of West Cortez Sireet,

Thence southeast along the nortneast ine o! s Lot 1€ and its southeast exiensien t Lhe wesiecly

line of the Jahn Fitzgerald Kennedy Expre 2y,

Thence soutnesty along said westerly tine to the northeast ing ¢t Norih Milwaukes Averue

Thence sautheast along said northeas: line 19 the south line 6t West Augusia Boulevard,

Thence east alarg said souzh ing 1o the southwest ling of the alley hrst nertrisas! of North Mitwausee

Avenue, sguth f West Augusta Baulevard ane west of North Wallare Court

Thence southeast along said sci st Lne 12 the west ing of North Wil

Thence sauth along said wesl line to the west exteasion of 1he north ine of Lo 19 in 8leck 12

Canal Trustees” Subdivision of the wesi halt of Section 5, Township 39 Norta, Range 14 Easi of the

Third Principal Mendian (excep: the scutheast cuarter of the norihwest guarler ang the norih2as

Guarter of the southwest quarer),

Thence easl along sard extension. said nerth lirs and ils east extznsion io tha ceatachne ol the alley

vacaied by Document Number 16560438, March 27, 1857,

Therce scutheast alang said centeskre to ihe nertheas! extension of the scL

said Block 12 of Canal Truslees Subdiviston,

Therce Southwest along said extens'cn ard said southeast ine to the rertn hne of Lot 25 i s

Block 12 of Canal Trustees’ Subdivision,

Thence east along said norih hine ta the west line of North Racine Averue,

Thence south along said west ling to the narth kne of Lot 26 in said 8lack 12 of Sanal

Subdivision,

Thence wast alang said rorih line to ike west hine of the eas1 40 feet ¢* saic Lot 26.

Therice south along said west fine to the sauth ling of said Lot 26,

Thence east along said south line to the west line of North Racire Avenue,

Thence south along said west fine o the norlhsast [ine of Nortn Milwauaee Avenue.

Thence southeast along sa:d noniheast hne 10 the west ing of 101 1 10 Massuda’s Respzeivision of

Lots 6110 64, both inclusive, ir Black 11 Elston’s Addition Lo Chicago alsa thal cast af Lot 65 10

Assessor’s Plat,

Therce north along said west line to the narth line ¢! said Lot 1,

Therce east along said nazth ling 1o the west ling of North Elston Avenve.

parallel vath as

[=3

csi Walion Street,

tk 23 and 23 and

ne 3 West Auni

hne al North Ml

iacdon Avenue said

e of vacaied West

d Cour

eas! l:ne of Loi 24 1a

rusless’

Thence south along said west ire g wes? extension of the south line of West Fry Sireat;
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e that the a0 appe
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tec altey 10 3T nonheity ot mn Biock 3 of e

Publication Date

Trus E-Sheet{t) is provid

af Caral Trusiees’ Subdwisior.

<her.ge wesh aang sad gouth kg 13 e pastiine £t a2l Dot LIS ey saw atley ce

by GIOMAINET passed May 19, 1037 argl recorden July 16 1937 as Dot rent 12027388

Thence south ateng said east Ine 1o e ceter Line 6f 542 vacatsd aley

Thence west 2long It Lend nrin of ine aforesmd 7acaleg 20 oDl Lasiwts) ALY 1g ine ROMPE

extangian Of the west {ine of Lot 41 1aihe Subew.con of Black 1 pl Canal Truste2 ¥ Sub2Wison

Thence south along the alargsait rortherly eviansion of (he west 1ing of Lot 41 o the nartl

cnemar gt Lot 41

Thence west alang the nosih n2 al Lats 28 thegugh 43 10 the Subdwisian ¢ Algck 1 o

Trogiet's Subgnision fo the a5t hne of Hoah paulira Sirees.

Thence west across Naath paulina Stree: to the aoriheast carrer of Lot 49 in she Subd

wun_ﬁwwc_ Block 2 Canal Trustee’s Suncwision. accotcing 1a the Bl inergot recerded Ozieoer

Trence west aiong e norh ting b LOIS 49 hreugn 720 {he Subgision 5 1re Horh ¥ ot Bipis 2

10 Cznal Trustee's Subdwsion 1o the east line of Hoah Wood Streel,

Thence west across North Wcod Streel 1o the netheast teiner of Lat 24 1n Ie Sybaras:on of e

East ¥ ot Block 3 @ Canal Trustee's Suddwsian. accotding 1o the slat thereal ecorded NV bt

19,1820 33 Document 206114,

Thenge west along the noith hine of Lois 13 thi ugn 24 1n e atoresd s Subdr:

the narth line o Lot 13 through 28 1n Johin \colson’s Suddwision accerd:ng (2

recarded Ocioder 4. 1578 as Dacument 195642, ta Lhe east bine af Narth welgeh Awente.

Thence west aCrass Nortn Walcort Averue L the nartheast coraer 3t Lot o Besyli

Lots 47 1050, according to the plat thereof recorded June 3, 1887 25 Cogument E2E477

Thense west 3long the ngstn hre ¢! the afgresaig Let 4 ant Ine north ing 01 2C8 2 thraugh 46 n K

M Thompson's Resubdivisioa ot Block & 1o the narthwest carrer 9% .01 2

Thenge 5oUH along the west wne of the aoresad Lot 28 ang its soutnerly Balenmch 1o the sain

{:nz 0f Wesl Supenol Sireel.

Thange west along 1ne south kne of west Sugenor S

Thompson's Resubd:ision af Blazk 4.

Thence south 2lond thg west hae of LGS 74 and 77N 10e atoresad B W

of Block 412 the aorth line of West Huzon Streat,

Thence wesl along said north hae 10 the sawnwest corner ol Lot 50 Blagk 2 vt J W Cochrans

Subdwisian of Black 5 n Canal Trustee s Subdwisen,

Thence north along the west g o 19 atoresaid Lot 50 and s noft estersion 13 the o

ruu alley st souih of Wssl Supeiiot Suee! tying LeweEn 1ilh Darasn Auenue and Hol
venue,

Thence wesi alorg sag nofth hing 10 he west bne

Subdmsian,

Thence ncrh along sand west ling and £5 north extension 1o the npsth hne o} West Sppenie! 3

Thence east along said north hne 10 the west ine oflet i flock 3044 W Cochrans Subgrizicn.

Thence north along saig west hne o {ne south kne ot West Leg Place

Thence west alang the south tine of West Lee Place to the southerly ex:ension cf the wes! ine af Lot

9 Block 1ot LW Cochran's Subdrision.

Thenge north along the atoresaid southesty extensian a0d the west hne ot Lot 59 to ihe nofd

corner of Lol 48,

Thence west aleng the north ine €1 Lots 44 inrough 48 1n sai¢ Block 101J W Cochtar’s Si bdwisic

of Black § in Canal Trustae's Subdwrsion 0 the northwest carnef of Lat 44.

Thence south algng the westine of said Lot 44 1o the non hns of West Lea Plate,

Thepce west alsng the nacth lne of West e Place 1 *he southwest corne: ¢t Lo d) nsad Block

10fJ W Cochran’s Subdvision.

Therice north long {tie west e of 1ne @ oresaid Lot 40 1o the portiwest corer of Lot a0,

Thence west alang the aacth line of 1015 26 taraugh 39 sd Blgck 1atJ W Gacka s Subd

10 the east hine of North Heyag Avenue,

Tnence south along the east line of North Hoyne Avenue {p the easierly BXIErsILs o1 the

Lats 26 through 50 10 he Subdivision o} Block b in Canal Trustze's Subdvisich.

Thence west along the atoresaid easlerly extansion ang the north line ¢t Lols 26 tnroug 50 f0 1he

east ling of North Leawitt Steeet,

Thence west across North Leavitt Streel 12 the intersection of the wes; kne of Norh Leavilt Stigsl

n the soth hine of the 18 tpol tasi-wes! atiey Wing souih of and connguous 1 Loty 1 ‘Taough 25

1n the Subdnision o) Block 710 Canal Truslee's Sihdivision,

Thence west 2org the atoresard south Uine of the 12 fou, east-west a2y ¥

Dakiey Avenue.

Tnence wesl 20rGSS Narth Dakiey Avente 10 the intersection ot e west line o! No! Dakley Avenus

with the sauth has aof the 16 faat east-west alley Iying sauth a! and canliguats 1 Lats 1 theugh 27

mE Manchester Michol's Addition 1o Chacage according to the plat iheseol retorted Rord 17 8%

as Docwinent 3085258,

Thence vest alang the atcresaid seuth kne o the 18 fo0t past-wesl Algy 1o e zast kne of N

Weslern Avenue,

n nce nofth along sad east loe ta the Paint ¢! Baginning, all 1a the City of Chue.
Hnows

Legal Descriplion revised July & 201¢

Alfeeg Benesch & Cempany

i vag

InH M

oMpson’s

h ne OF

Lot 3 n Block 2 of J W Cochrans

25t

5167

Grin

the east kine of o

4

10, Suo¥ Caudty,

\.I\Il\)\\l

lingts peglessianal Land Surveyat NG 3685

Ligerss expires nevember 20, 2014

1705302633900C. 17652630326000. 1705303035300 1705303042000 17553100626709
17053150030003. 1705321029100 7052210291002, 052216292004 7453220430050,
17553220419000, 1705324042€000. 1705324043000, 7053240440055 17553240661001
1705320651002, 1705324065104 1705325000002 17053250250005 17053230273009
17053250280000, 7053250491001, 7553250491002, 17053250231004 7053250487009,
1705325055 1006. 1705325056000, 1705325040002, 7053260178000 (53260250000,
1705326026000 1765329028000, 17053290601002. 17053290601307 17054150311601
:omh_mcw:o;. _uowb_ucu:Oum. 17054170180000. 1705447047000 7054200130000
1705420014006C. 17054200150000. 7054200150000 1705420017060 1765120015600
179632803 10000, 7063280320000 17063280370000 7063280390000 170632B0400000.
17063310360000. 1706331037000 1706331038000, 17063310330000. 17063310419099
17063310420000, 17063310840000. 1706331050000 17063310541003. 17064120120002,
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Agreement for Special Service Area #29-2014

between

the CITY OF CHICAGO

(Represented by the Special Service Arca Commission)

and

WEST TOWN CHICAGO CHAMBER OF COMMERCE

effective January 1, 2015 through December 31, 2015

Rahm Emanuecl
Mayor
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AGREEMENT

This Agreement for the management of Special Service Area Number 29-2014 is entered
into on , 2015 by and between West Town Chicago Chamber of Commerce, an
[llinois not-for-profit corporation ("Contractor"), and the City of Chicago ("City"), a municipal
corporation and home rule unit of local government existing under the Constitution of the State
of lllinois, acting through the Special Service Area Commission at Chicago, Illinois.

RECITALS

WIEREAS, special service areas may be established pursuant to Article VII, §§ 6(1) and
7(6) of the Constitution of the State of Illinois, and pursuant to the provisions of the Special
Service Area Tax Law, 35 ILCS 200/27-5 et seq.; and

WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Chicago ("City Council") has established a
special service area known and designated as "Special Service Area Number 29-2014" ("Area"),
to provide special services in addition to those services provided generally by the City ("Special
Services"). The City Council has further authorized the levy of an annual ad valorem real
property tax in the Area sufficient to produce revenues required to provide those Special Services
but not to exceed .47% of the equalized assessed value of all property within the Area ("Service
Tax"), all as provided in the Establishment Ordinance (hereinafter defined); and

WHEREAS, the City Council, on , 2014, authorized the levy of the
Service Tax and appropriation of the funds therefrom for the Area for fiscal year 2015 for the
provision of the Special Services in the Area, and the City wishes to provide that the Contractor,
beginning on January 1, 2015, and continuing until December 31, 2015, may use those funds to
provide the Services, subject to the terms and conditions of this Agreement; and

WHEREAS, the Contractor and the City desire to enter into this Agreement to provide
such Special Services in the Area and the Contractor is ready, willing and able to enter into this
Agreement to provide the Special Services to the full satisfaction of the City;

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual promises contained in this
Agreement, the City and the Contractor agree as follows:

ARTICLE 1 INCORPORATION OF RECITALS

The recitals set forth above are incorporated by reference as if fully set forth herein.



ARTICLE 2 DEFINITIONS

The following words and phrases shall have the following meanings for purposes of this
Agreement:

"Agreement” means this Special Service Arca Agreement, including all exhibits attached
to it and incorporated in it by reference, and all amendments, modifications or revisions made in
accordance with its terms.

"Commissioner” means the Commissioner of the Department of Planning and
Development or a duly authorized representative of the Commissioner of the Department of
Planning and Development. '

"Construction” means that work of a nature constituting “public works™ as defined in
820 ILCS 130/2, such as landscaping and building activitics, including but not limited to,
physical building improvements, installations and other fixed works, but does not include pre-
development work (design and preparation of specifications).

"Days" means business days in accordance with the City of Chicago business calendar.
"Department" means the City of Chicago Department of Planning and Development.

"Establishment Ordinance" means the ordinance enacted by City Council on December
8, 2004, , and any subsequent amendments thereto authorizing imposition of the Service Tax and
setting forth the Special Services to be provided in the Area.

“Late Collections” means any tax revenue received by the City during the term of this
Agreement attributable to the levy of the Service Tax in prior years in the SSA, along with any
interest income on such revenue.

"Risk Management Division" means the Risk Management Division of the Department
of Finance which is under the direction of the Comptroller of the City and is charged with
reviewing and analyzing insurance and related liability matters for the City.

"Security Firm" means a business entity certified by the State of Illinois pursuant (o the
Private Detective, Private Alarm, Private Security, Fingerprint Vendor, and Locksmith Act of
2004, 225 JLCS 447 et seq., and whose employces are licensed by the State of Illinois.

"Services" means, collectively, the services, dutics and responsibilities described in
Article 3 and Exhibit | (Scope of Services & Budget) of this Agreecment and any revisions
thereof and any and all work necessary to complete them or carry them out fully and to the
standard of performance required in this Agreement.

"Service Tax Funds" means the amount actually collected pursuant to the Service Tax.
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"Special Service Area Commission ('SSAC')" means the body cstablished pursuant to
the Estabhishment Ordinance to prepare the Budget, identify a Contractor and supervise the
provision of the Special Services in the Area.

"Subcontractor” means any person or entity with whom Contractor contracts to provide
any part of the Services, including subcontractors of any tier. subconsultants of any tier, suppliers
and materialmen, whether or not in privity with the Contractor.

"Surplus Funds". also referred to as “Carry-Over Funds”, means those Service Tax
FFunds already collected and disbursed to the Contractor in prior years for the provision of Special
Services in the Arca which remain unspent, including any interest earned thercon.

ARTICLE 3 DUTIES AND RESPONSIBILITIES OF CONTRACTOR
3.01 Scope of Services

The Services which the Contractor shall provide include, but are not limited to, those
described in this Article 3 and in Exhibit 1 which is attached hereto and incorporated by
reference as if fully set forth here. The SSAC reserves the right to require the Contractor to
perform revised services that are within the general scope of services of this Agreement and of
the Special Services identified in the Establishment Ordinance subject to the same terms and
conditions herein. Revised services are limited to changes or revisions to the line items in the
Budget, do not affect the maximum compensation and require the prior written approval of the
SSAC. The SSAC may, by written notice to the Department and the Contractor, delete or amend
the figures contained and described in the Budget attached hereto as Exhibit 1 and incorporated
by reference as if fully set forth herein. The Contractor shall provide the Services in accordance
with the standards of performance set forth in Section 3.02.

3.02 Standard of Performance

The Contractor shall perform all Services required of it with that degree of skill, care and
diligence normally shown by a contractor performing services of a scope, purpose and magnitude
comparable with the nature of the Services to be provided hereunder. The Contractor shall at all
times use every reasonable cffort on behalf of the City to assure timely and satisfactory rendering
and completion of'its Services.

The Contractor shall at all times act in the best interests of the City consistent with the
professional obligations assumed by it in entering into this Agreement. The Contractor shall
perform all Services in accordance with the terms and conditions of this Agreement and to the
full satisfaction of the SSAC. The Contractor shall furnish cfficient business administration and
supervision to render and complete the Services at reasonable cost.

The Contractor shall assure that all Services that require the exercise of prolessional skills

-
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or judgment are accomplished by professionals qualified and competent in the applicable
discipline and appropriately licensed, if required by law. The Contractor remains responsible for
the professional and technical accuracy of all Services provided, whether by the Contractor or its
Subcontractors or others on its behalf.

If the SSAC determines that the Contractor has failed to comply with the loregoing
standards. the Contractor shall perform again, at its own expense, all Services required to be
reperformed as a direct or indirect result of such failure. Any review, approval, acceptance or
payment for any or all of the Services by the City does not relieve the Contractor of its
responsibility for the professional and technical accuracy of its Services. This provision in no
way limits the City's rights against Contractor, either under this Agreement, at law or in equity.

3.03 Personnel
A. Key Personnel

The Contractor shall, immediately upon receiving a fully executed copy of this
Agreement, assign and maintain during the term of this Agreement and any extension thereol an
adequate staff of competent personnel, who are fully equipped, licensed as appropriate, available
as needed, qualified and assigned to perform the Services. Contractor shall pay the salaries and
wages due all its employees performing Services under this Agreement unconditionally and at
least once a month without deduction or rebate on any account, except only for such payroll
deductions as are mandatory by law or are permitted under applicable law and regulations.

B. Prevailing Wages

If the Contractor engages in Construction, it shall comply, and shall cause all of its
Subcontractors to comply by inserting appropriate provisions in their contracts, with 820 ILCS
130/0.01 et _seq. regarding the payment of the general prevailing rate of hourly wage for all
laborers, workers, and mechanics employed by or on behalf of the Contractor and all
Subcontractors in connection with any and all Construction work. The prevailing rates of wages
applicable at the time of execution of this Agreement are included in Exhibit 5 to this
Agreement, which is incorporated by reference as though fully set forth herein.

C. lllinois Workers, Veterans Preference and Steel Products

If the Contractor engages in Construction, it shall comply, and shall cause all of its
Subcontractors to comply by inserting appropriate provisions in their contracts, with the
Employment of Illinois Workers on Public Works Act, 30 ILCS 570/0.01 et seq., the Veterans
Preference Act, 330 ILCS 55/0.01 et seq., and the Steel Products Procurement Act, 30 ILCS
30/565/1 et seq.



3.04 Nondiscrimination
A, Contractor

(1) Federal Requirements

Contractor must not engage in unlawful employment practices, such as (1) failing or
refusing (o hire or discharging any individual, or otherwise discriminating against any
individual with respect to compensation or the terms, conditions or privileges of the
individual’s employment, because of the individual's race, color, religion, sex, age,
handicap/disability or national origin; or (2) limiting, segregating or classilying
Contractor’s employees or applicants for employment in any way that would deprive or
tend to deprive any individual of employment opportunities or otherwise adversely affect
the individual’s status as an employee, because of the individual's race, color, religion,
sex, age, handicap/disability or national origin.

Contractor must comply with, and the procedures Contractor utilizes and the Services
Contractor provides under this Agreement must comply with, the Civil Rights Act of
1964, 42 U.S.C. § 2000e et seq. (1981), as amended and the Civil Rights Act of 1991,
P.L. 102-166. Attention is called to: Exec. Order No. 11246, 30 Fed. Reg. 12,319
(1965), reprinted in 42 U.S.C. § 2000e note, as amended by Exec. Order No. 11375, 32
Fed. Reg. 14,303 (1967) and by Exec. Order No. 12086, 43 Fed. Reg. 46,501 (1978); Age
Discrimination Act, 42 U.S.C. §§ 6101-6106 (1981); Age Discrimination in Employment
Act, 29 U.S.C. §§ 621-34; Rehabilitation Act of 1973, 29 U.S.C. §§ 793-794 (1981);
Americans with Disabilities Act, 42 U.S.C. §12101 et seq.; 41 C.F.R. Part 60 et seq.
(1990); and all other applicable federal statutes, regulations and other laws.

(i1) State Requirements

Contractor must comply with, and the procedures Contractor utilizes and the Services
Contractor provides under this Agreement must comply with, the I[llinois Human
Rights Act, 775 ILCS 5/1-101 et seq.(1990), as amended and any rules and regulations
promulgated in accordance with it, including the Equal Employment Opportunity Clause,
44 11l. Admin. Code § 750 Appendix A. Furthermore, Contractor must comply with the
Public Works Employment Discrimination Act, 775 ILCS 10/0.01 et seq.(1990), as
amended, and all other applicable state statues, regulations and other laws.

(i)  City Requirements

Contractor must comply with, and the procedures Contractor utilizes and the Services
Contractor provides under this Agreement must comply with, the Chicago Human Rights
Ordinance, ch. 2-160, Section 2-160-010 et _seq. of the Municipal Code of Chicago
(1990), as amended, and all other applicable City ordinances and rules.



B. Subcontractors

Contractor must incorporate all of this Section 3.04 by reference in all agreements entered
into with any suppliers of materials, turnisher of services, Subcontractors ol any tier, and labor
organizations that furnish skilled. unskilled and craft union skilled labor, or that may provide any
such materials, fabor or services in connection with this Agreement.  Further, Contractor must
furnish and must cause each of its Subcontractor(s) to furnish such reports and information as
requested by the federal, state and local agencies charged with enforcing such laws and
regulations, including the Chicago Commission on Human Relations.

3.05 Insurance

The Contractor shall comply with the insurance provisions attached hereto as Exhibit 3
and incorporated by reference as if fully set forth herein, or such other insurance provisions as
may be required in the reasonable judgment of the Risk Management Division. [f the Contractor
enters into a subcontract with a Security Firm such Security Firm shall comply with the insurance
provisions attached hereto as Exhibit 4 and incorporated by reference as it fully set forth herein,
or such other insurance provisions as may be required in the reasonable judgment of the Risk
Management Division. If the Contractor subcontracts with a Subcontractor other than a Security
Firm, such Subcontractor shall comply with the Contractor insurance provisions attached hereto
as Exhibit 3.

The Risk Management Division may waive or reduce any of the insurance requirements
set forth herein.

3.06 Indemnification

A. On written notice from the City of Losses the City believes are Losses Arising
under this Agreement as defined in this Section 3.06, the Contractor shall defend, indemnify, and
hold completely barmless the City Indemnitees from and against such Losses, regardless of
whether Contractor challenges the City’s belief.  The defense, indemnification and hold
harmless obligations of the Contractor toward City Indemnitees remain an atfirmative obligation
of Contractor following the City’s notice of Losses the City believes are Losses Arising under
this Agreement, unless and until a court of competent jurisdiction finally determines otherwise
and all opportunities for appeal have been exhausted or have lapsed.

B. For purposes of this Section 3.06,

“City Indemnitees™ means, individually and collectively, the City of Chicago, its
officials, agents, employees and SSAC members.

“Losses™ means, individually and collectively, all kinds of habilities, losses. suits,
claims, damages, judgments, fines, and demands, including all reasonable costs for investigation,
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reasonable attorneys™ lees, court costs, and experts’ fees, arising by reason of mjury or death of
any person, damage to property. patent or copyright infringement.

“Arising under this Agreement” means (1) arising out ol awarding this Agreement, (ii)
arising out of the enforcement of this Agreement. including the enlorcement ol this
indemnification provision; (iii) arising out of or in connection with Contractor’s performance or
non-performance of this Agreement (including the acts or omission ol Coutractor, 1ts officers,
agents, cmployees, consultants, subcontractors, licensees. or invitees), any breach by any of them
of any warranty made under this Agreement, or any failure by any of them to meet any applicable
standard of performance under this Agreement; or (iv) any combination of any of the foregoing.

C. To the extent permissible by law, Contractor waives any limits on Contractor’s
liability that it would otherwise have by virtue ot the Worker’s Compensation Act or any other
related law or judicial decision (such as Kotecki v. Cyclops Welding Corporation, 146 111. 2d 155
(1991)). The City. however, does not waive any limitations it may have on its liability under the
Worker's Compensation Act or under the Illinois Pension Code.

D. The City has the right, at its option and at its own cxpense, o participate in the
defense of any suit without relieving Contractor of any of its obligations under this indemnity
provision. The requirements set forth in this indemnity provision are separate from and not
limited by the amount of insurance Contractor is required to obtain under this Agreement or by
its bonds pursuant to other provisions in this Agreement. Further, the indemnitees contained in
this provision survive the expiration or termination of this Agreement.

3.07 Records and Audits

The Contractor shall deliver or cause to be delivered all documents, data, studies, reports,
findings or information to the SSAC promptly in accordance with the time limits prescribed
herein and if no time limit is specified, then upon rcasonable demand therefore, or upon
termination or completion of the Services hereunder.

The Contractor agrees to adopt at its own expense such financial controls, including,
without limitation, the employment of a fiscal agent approved by the Commissioner, as
determined by the Commissioner in his sole discretion and communicated in writing to the
Contractor after the date of execution of this Agreement, to ensure that the Contractor is fulfilling
the terms of this Agreement.

The Contractor and any Subcontractors shall furnish the SSAC with semi-annual reports
or provide such information as may be requested relative to the performance and cost of the
Services. The Contractor shall maintain records showing actual time devoted and costs incurred.
The Contractor shall keep books, documents, paper, records and accounts in connection with the
Scrvices open to inspection, copying, abstracting. transcription, and an independent audit by City
cmploycees or agents or third parties, and shall make these records available to the City and any
other interested governmental agency at reasonable times during the performance of its Services.
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Contractor must maintain any such records including Deliverables not delivered to the City or
demanded by the City for a period that is the longer of (A) 5 years after the final payment made
in connection with this Agreement (or, 6 vears after the {inal payment made in connection with
this Agreement. with respect to any records that are required to be maintained pursuant to the
Contractor’s obligations under the regulations implementing the Health Insurance Portability and
Accountability Act of 1996 (HIPAA) and the Health Information Technology for Economic and
Clinical Health Act (HITECH), which was part of the American Recovery and Reinvestment Act
of 2009, specifically 45 C.F.R. § 164.530(})), or (B) as directed by the Local Records Act (50
IL.CS 205) and relevant records retention schedule. Contractor must not dispose of such records
following the expiration of the relevant period without notification of and written approval from
the City in accordance with Article 10.

In addition to the records to be stored by Contractor, all records that are possessed by
Contractor in its service to the City to perform a governmental function are public records of the
City pursuant to the [llinois FFreedom of Information Act (“FOIA™), unless the records are exempt
under the Act. FOIA requires that the City produce records in a very short period of time. If the
Contractor receives a request from the City to produce records, the Contractor shall do so within
72 hours of the notice.

THE CONTRACTOR SHAILL NOT COMMINGLE SERVICE TAX FUNDS WITH
FUNDS FROM OTHER SOURCES, and to the extent that the Contractor conducts any business
operations separate and apart from the Services hereunder using, for example, personnel,
equipment, supplies or facilities also used in connection with this Agreement, then the Contractor
shall maintain and make similarly available to the City detailed records supporting the
Contractor's allocation to this Agreement of the costs and expenses attributable to any such
shared usages.

The Contractor shall provide an annual audited financial statement (a “Third Party
Audit”) to the Department and the SSAC within 120 calendar days afier the end of the calendar
year, and the system of accounting shall be in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles and practices, consistently applied throughout. Contractor must comply with the
requirements in Exhibit 8 with respect to any Third Party Audit. If any Third Party Audit shows
that Contractor or any of its Subcontractors has overcharged the City in any period, the City will
notify Contractor, and Contractor must then promptly reimburse the City for any amounts the
City has paid Contractor due to the overcharges. Any failure to comply with the audit
requirements set forth in Exhibit 8 of the Agreement shall constitute an event of default under the
Agreement. If such event of default is not corrected to the City’s satisfaction within the cure
period identified by the City, the City may incur costs to conduct any supplementary audit it
deems necessary, and Contractor must then promptly reimburse the City for any such costs. No
provision in this Agreement granting the City a right of access to records and documents is
intended to impair, limit or alfect any right of access to such records and documents that the City
would have had in the absence of such provisions.

The City may in its sole discretion audit the records of Contractor or its Subcontractors,
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or both, at any time during the term of this Agreement or within five ycars after the Agreement
ends, in connection with the goods, work, or services provided under this Agreement. Each
calendar year or partial calendar year is considered an “audited period.” If, as a result of such an
audit, it is determined that Contractor or any of its Subcontractors has overcharged the City in the
audited period, the City will notify Contractor. Contractor must then promptly reimburse the
City for any amounts the City has paid Contractor due to the overcharges and also some or all of
the cost of the audit, as follows:

A. Il the audit has revealed overcharges to the City representing less than 3% of the
total value, based on the Agreement prices, of the goods, work, or services provided in the
audited period, then the Contractor must reimburse the City for 50% of the cost of the audit and
50% of the cost of each subsequent audit that the City conducts;

B. If, however, the audit has revealed overcharges to the City representing 5% or
more of the total value, based on the Agreement prices, of the goods, work, or services provided
in the audited period, then Contractor must reimburse the City for the full cost of the audit and of
cach subsequent audit.

If the City is unable to make a determination regarding overcharges to City as a result of
Contractor’s not having maintained records as required under this Agreement, Contractor must
promptly reimburse the City for some or all of the cost of the audit, as determined in the sole
discretion of the City. Failure of Contractor to promptly reimburse the City in accordance with
this Section 3.07 is an event of default under Section 7.01 of this Agreement, and Contractor will
be liable for all of the City’s costs of collection, including any court costs and attorneys’ fees.

3.08 Subcontracts and Assignments

The Contractor shall not assign, delegate, subcontract or otherwise transfer all or any part
of its rights or obligations under this Agreement or any part hereof, unless otherwise provided for
herein or without the express written consent of the SSAC. The absence of such provision or
written consent shall void the attempted assignment, delegation or transfer and shall be of no
effect as to the Services or this Agreement.

All subcontracts, all approvals of Subcontractors and any assignment to which the SSAC
consents are, regardless of their form, deemed conditioned upon performance by the
Subcontractor or assignee in accordance with the terms and conditions of this Agreement.

If the Contractor subcontracts for security services, the Subcontractor shall be a Security
Firm certified by the State of Illinois and the Security Firm's employees shall be licensed by the
State of Illinois. The Contractor, upon entering into any subcontract with a Security Firm, shall
furnish the SSAC and the Department with a copy of the subcontract for their approval. The City

l expressly reserves the right to approve all Security Firm subcontracts. :
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3.09 License, Permits and Safety Considerations
A. Licenses and Permits

I the Contractor engages in Construction, it is responsible for and. i a timely manner
consistent with its obligations hereunder, shall secure and maintain at its expense such permits,
licenses, authorizations and approvals as are necessary lor it to engage Construction under this
Agreement

B. Satety Considerations

If the Contractor cngages in Construction, it shall at all times exercise reasonable care.,
shall comply with all applicable provisions of federal, state and local laws to prevent accidents or
injurics, and shall take all appropriate precautions to avoid damage to and loss of City property
and the property of third partics in connection with the Construction. The Contractor shall erect
and properly maintain at all times all necessary sateguards, barriers. flags and lights for the
protection of its and its Subcontractors' employees, City employces and the public.

[ the Contractor engages in Construction, it shall report to the Department any damage
on, about, under or adjacent to City property or the property of third persons resulting from its
performance under this Agreement. The Contractor is responsible for any damage to City
property and the property of third parties due, in whole or in part, to the Contractor's
Construction activities under this Agreement, and the Contractor shall repair such damage to a
reasonably acceptable standard.

3.10 Performance Bond

If the Contractor engages in Construction work where expenditures exceed $100,000, it
shall, not later than the date the Contractor begins such work or executes a subcontract for such
work, provide or cause to be provided to the Department a performance and payment bond in the
amount allocated for the Construction work (but not including the amount allocated for design
and preparation of specifications), by a surety or sureties acceptable to the City. The
performance bond shall be in the form and to the effect of Exhibit 6 hereto. which is incorporated
by reference as if fully set forth here.

If any of the sureties on such bond at any time fail financially, or are deemed to be
insufficient security for the penalty of the bond, then the City may, on giving 10 days notice
thereof in writing. require the Contractor to furnish a new and additional bond with sureties
satisfactory to the City. and, il so required. Contractor must promptly provide such bond.

ARTICLE 4 TERM OF SERVICES

This Agrcement shall take cffect as of January 1, 2015 ("Effective Date") and shall
continue through December 31, 2015, or until the Agreement is terminated earlicr in accordance
with its terms.
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ARTICLE 5 COMPENSATION
5.01 Basis of Payment

The maximum compensation that the Contractor may be paid under this Agreement
between January 1, 2015 and December 31, 2015 is the sum of (a) $539,785 or the total amount
ol Service Tax Funds actually collected, plus interest earned on those lunds, for tax year 2014,
whichever is less; (b) the total amount of Surplus Funds in the amount of $0 which are being
carried over from previous program years and which contractor hereby acknowledges are in its
possession; and (¢) Late Collections in an amount not to exceed $0; the maximum compensation
that the Contractor may be paid under this Agreement between January 1, 2015 and December
31, 2015, therefore, shall not exceed $539,785.

5.02 Budget for Services

The Contractor in conjunction with the SSAC has prepared a Budget through December
31, 2015, attached hereto as Exhibit | and incorporated by reference as if fully set forth here,
covering all services described in the Scope of Services. Subject to the restriction that the
maximum amount that may be spent in calendar year 2015 may not exceed $539,785, the SSAC
reserves the right to transfer funds between line items or make Budget revisions that do not affect
the maximum compensation set forth in Section 5.01. The SSAC shall revise the Budget if any
part of the Contractor's Services is terminated.

5.03 Method of Payment

Pursuant to a schedule to be determined by the Commissioner, after the performance of
Services pursuant to the terms of this Agreement, Contractor may submit invoices to the City to
request reimbursement for such expenses. The Contractor must provide, along with the invoices,
such additional documentation as the Commissioner requests to substantiate the Services. Upon
the Commissioner's determination that the invoices are accurate, the City will process payment of
the invoices.

The Contractor shall establish a separate checking account ("Account") in a bank
authorized to do business in the State of [llinois that is insured by the I'ederal Deposit Insurance
Corporation. All Service Tax Funds that the Comptroller transfers to the Contractor shall be
deposited in the Account and disbursements from the Account shall be pursuant to this
Agreement. THE CONTRACTOR IS RESPONSIBLE FOR RECONCILING THE ACCOUNT
MONTHLY AND ACCOUNTING FOR ALL SERVICE TAX FUNDS. THE CONTRACTOR
MUST REQUIRE ITS AUDITOR TO REPORT ON THE ACTIVITIES THAT ARE
SUPPORTED BY THESE FUNDS IN A SEPARATE AUDIT TO ACCOUNT FOR CURRENT
AND PRIOR YEARS’ SERVICE TAX FUNDS.

The Contractor shall provide to the SSAC the signature card and sample check from the
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bank which shows the signature(s) of the Contractor's authorized representative(s). The SSAC
reserves the right to audit the account and require the Contractor to refund any funds that were
not spent pursuant to the Budget or that were not approved by the SSAC. The name and address
of the bank 1s o ___and the wire transfer
and the Account numbers are

All funds remaining in the Account at the expiration or early termination of this
Agreement, including any interest earned, belong to the City for the benefit of the Area and shall
be returned to the City to be used only for Special Services.

5.04 Criteria for Payment

The SSAC shall determine the reasonableness, allocability and allowability of any rates,
costs and expenses charged or incurred by the Contractor.

5.05 Funding

Payments under this Agreement shall be made from Service Tax Funds in fund number
and are subject to the availability of funds therein.

5.06 Non-Appropriation

In the event that no funds or insufficient funds are appropriated and budgeted in any City
fiscal period for payments to be made under this Agreement, then the City ‘will notify the
Contractor of such occurrence and this Agreement shall terminate on the earlier of the last day of
the fiscal period for which sufficient appropriation was made or whenever the funds appropriated
for payment under this Agreement are exhausted. No payments shall be made or due to the
Contractor under this Agreement beyond those amounts appropriated and budgeted by the City to
fund payments hercunder.

ARTICLE 6 SPECIAL CONDITIONS
6.01 Warranties and Representations

In connection with the execution of this Agreement, the Contractor warrants and
represents:

A. That it is financially solvent; that it and each of its employees, agents, and
Subcontractors are competent to perform the Services required; that it is legally authorized to
execute and perform or cause to be performed this Agreement under the terms and conditions
stated herein.

B. That it shall not knowingly use the scrvices of any ineligible Subcontractor for any
purpose in the performance of the Services.
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C. That it and its Subcontractors are not in default at the time of the execution of this

Agreement, or deemed by the Department to have, within five years immediately preceding the
date of this Agreement, been found to be in default on any contract awarded by the City.

D. That it and, to the best of its knowledge, its Subcontractors are not in violation of
the provisions of § 2-92-320 of the Municipal Code of Chicago, 720 IL.CS 5/33E-1 et seq. of the
Criminal Code of 1961, and 65 ILCS 5/11-42.1-1 of the Hlinois Municipal Code.

E. That it, all Subcontractors and their respective officers, directors, agents, partners,
and employees shall cooperate with the Inspector General or Board of Ethics in any investigation
or hearing undertaken pursuant to Chapters 2-56 or 2-156 of the Municipal Code of Chicago; that
it understands and will abide by all provisions of Chapter 2-56 and 2-156 of the Municipal Code
of Chicago and all subcontracts shall inform Subcontractors of such provision and require
understanding and compliance therewith.

k. That, except only for those representations, statements or promises expressly
contained in this Agrecement and any exhibits attached hereto, no representation, statement or
promise, oral or written, or of any kind whatsoever, by the City, its officials, agents or
employees, has induced the Contractor to enter into this Agreement.

G. That the Contractor understands and agrees that any certification, affidavit or
acknowledgment made under oath in connection with this Agreement is made under penalty of
perjury and, if false, is also cause for termination for defaulit.

H. That neither Contractor nor an Affiliate of Contractor (as defined below) appears
on the Specially Designated Nationals List, the Denied Persons List, the unverified List, the
Entity List or the Debarred List as maintained by the Office of Foreign Assets Control of the U.S.
Department of the Treasury or by the Bureau of Industry and Security of the U.S. Department of
Commerce (or their successors), or on any other list of persons or entities with which the City
may not do business under any applicable law, rule, regulation, order or judgment. “Affiliate of
Contractor” means a person or entity that directly (or indirectly through one or more
intermediaries) controls, is controlled by or is under common control with Contractor. A person
or entity will be deemed to be controlled by another person or entity if it is controlled in any
manner whatsoever that results in control in fact by that other person or entity (either acting
individually or acting jointly or in concert with others) whether directly or indirectly and
whether through share ownership, a trust, a contract or otherwise.

L. Contractor will abide by any policies promulgated by the Department or other City
departments.
J. Contractor understands and will abide by, and will cause Subcontractors to abide

by, the terms of Chapter 2-55 of the Municipal Code of Chicago pertaining to coopcration with
the Office of the Legislative Inspector General. Contractor understands and will abide by the
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terms of Section 2-154-020 of the Municipal Code of Chicago. Failure by the Contractor or any
controlling person (as defined in Section 1-23-010 of the Municipal Code of Chicago) thercof to
maintain eligibility to do business with the City of Chicago as required by Section 1-23-030 of
the Municipal Code of Chicago shall be a default for which no cure is available and grounds for
termination of this Agrecment.

6.02 Economic Disclosure Statement and Affidavit

The Contractor has provided the City with an Economic Disclosure Statement (IEDS) and
Affidavit, “Familial Relationships with Elected City Officials and Department Heads,” which is
attached hereto as Exhibit 2 and incorporated by reference as if fully set forth herein. Contractor
shall apprise the Department promptly of any changes in the information provided in the EDS by
completing and submitting a revised EDS.

In addition, the Contractor shall provide the City with copies of its latest articles of
incorporation, by-laws and resolutions, or partnership or joint venture agreement, as applicable,
and evidence of its authority to do business in the State of [llinois, including without limitation,
registrations of assumed names or limited partnerships and certifications of good standing with
the Office of the Secretary of State of Illinois.

6.03 Conflict of Intcrest

Pursuant to Chapter 2-156 of the Municipal Code of Chicago, and 65 ILCS 5/3.1-55-10,
no member of the governing body of the City or other unit of government, no other officer,
employee, SSAC member, or agent of the City or other unit of government who exercises any
functions or responsibilities in connection with the Services to which this Agreement or any
related subcontract pertain, and no relative of any SSAC member shall have any personal
economic or financial interest, directly or indirectly, in this Agreement or any such subcontract
except to the extent that such benefits are provided equally to all residents and/or business
owners in the Area. Furthermore, no SSAC member, relative of any SSAC member, City
official, agent or cmployee shall be a Subcontractor or have any financial intcrest in any
Subcontractor, employee or shareholder of the Contractor or receive anything of value {rom the
Contractor.

No member of or delegate to the Congress of the United States or the Illinois General
Assembly and no alderman of the City or City employee shall be admitted to any share or part of
this Agreement or to any financial benefit to arise from it. The Contractor acknowledges that any
agreement entered into, negotiated or performed in violation of any of the provisions of Chapter
2-156 shall be voidable by the City.

The Contractor covenants that it, its officers, directors and employees, and the officers,
directors and employees of each of its members il a joint venture, and Subcontractors presently
have no financial interest and shall acquire no interest, direct or indirect, in the Services
undertaken by the Contractor pursuant to the Agrcement that would conflict in any manner or
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degree with the performance of the Services. The Contractor further covenants that in the
performance of this Agreement no person having any such interest shall be employed. The
Contractor agrees that if the Commissioner in his reasonable judgment determines that any of the
Contractor's services for others conflict with the Services the Contractor is to provide for the City
under this Agreement, the Contractor shall terminate such other services immediately upon
request of the City.

6.04 Non-liability of Public Officials

No official, employee or agent of the City shall be charged personally by the Contractor,
or by any assignee or Subcontractor of the Contractor, with any liability or expenses of defense or
be held personally liable to them under any term or provision hereof, because of the City's
exccution or attempted execution hercof, or because of any breach hereof.

6.05 Indcpendent Contractor

(a) The Contractor shall perform under this Agreement as an independent contractor to
the City and not as a representative, employee, agent or partner of the City.

(b) (1) The City is subject to June 24, 2011 the “City of Chicago Hiring Plan” (the
“City Hiring Plan”) entered in Shakman v. Democratic Organization of Cook County,
Case No 69 C 2145 (United State District Court for the Northern District of Illinois).
Among other things, the City Hiring. Plan prohibits the City from hiring persons as
governmental employees in non-exempt positions on the basis of political reasons or
factors.

(i1) Contractor is aware that City policy prohibits City employees from directing
any individual to apply for a position with Contractor, either as an employee or as a
subcontractor, and from directing Contractor to hire an individual as an employee or as a
subcontractor. Accordingly, Contractor must follow its own hiring and contracting
procedures, without being influenced by City employees. Any and all personnel provided
by Contractor under this Agreement are employees or subcontractors of Contractor, not
employees of the City of Chicago. This Agreement is not intended to and does not
constitute, create, give rise to, or otherwise recognize an employer-employee relationship
of any kind between the City and any personnel provided by Contractor.

(ii1) Contractor will not condition, basc, or knowingly prejudice or affect any term
or aspect of the employment of any personnel provided under this Agreement, or offer
employment to any individual to provide services under this Agreement, based upon or
because of any political reason or factor, including, without limitation, any individual’s
political affiliation. membership in a political organization or party, political support or
activity, political financial contributions, promises of such political support, activity or
tinancial contributions. or such individual’s political sponsorship or recommendation. For
purposes of this Agreement, a political organization or party is an identifiable group or

1
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entity that has as its primary purpose the support of or opposition to candidates for elected
public office. Individual political activities are the activitics ol individual persons in
support of or in opposition to political organizations or parties or candidates tor elected
public olfice.

(iv) In the event of any communication to Contractor by a City employee or City
official in violation of Section (11) above, or advocating a violation of Section (iii) above,
Contractor will, as soon as is reasonably practicable, report such communication to the
Hiring Oversight Section of the City's Oflice of the Inspector General, and also to the
head of the relevant City Department utilizing services provided under this Agreement.
Contractor will also cooperate with any inquiries by OIG Hiring Oversight related to the
contract.

(c) The partics agree that this Contract is solely for the benefit of the parties and
nothing herein is intended to create any third party beneficiary rights for subcontractors or
other third parties.

6.06 Business Relationships with Elected Officials

Pursuant to MCC Sect. 2-156-030(b), it is illegal for any elected official, or any person
acting at the direction of such official, to contact either orally or in writing any other City official
or employee with respect to any matter involving any person with whom the elected official has
any business relationship that creates a financial interest on the part of the official, or the
domestic partner or spouse of the official, or from whom or which he has derived any income or
compensation during the preceding twelve months or from whom or which he reasonably expects
to derive any income or compensation in the following twelve months. In addition, no elected
official may participate in any discussion in any City Council committee hearing or in any City
Council meeting or vote on any matter involving the person with whom the elected official has
any business relationship that creates a f{inancial interest on the part of the official, or the
domestic partner or spouse ol the official, or from whom or which he has derived any income or
compensation during the preceding twelve months or {rom whom or which he reasonably expects
to derive any income or compensation in the following twelve months.

Violation of MCC Sect. 2-156-030 by any elected official with respect to this contract
will be grounds for termination of this contract. The term financial interest is defined as set forth
in MCC Chapter 2-156.

6.07 Chicago “Living Wage” Ordinance

(a)  Section 2-92-610 of the Municipal Code of Chicago provides for a living
wage for certain categories of workers employed in the performance of City contracts,
specifically non-City employed security guards, parking attendants, day laborers, home and
health care workers, cashicrs, elevator operators, custodial workers and clerical workers
("Covered Employces”).  Accordingly, pursuant to Section 2-92-610 and regulations
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promulgated under it:
(1) If Contractor has 235 or more full-time employees. and

(1) If at any time during the performance of this Agreement, Contractor and/or
any Subcontractor or any other entity that provides any portion of the Services
(collectively "Performing Parties”) uses 25 or morce full-time security guards, or
any number of other full-time Covered LEmployees, then

(1) Contractor must pay its Covered Employees, and must assure that
all other Performing Parties pay their Covered Employees, not less than
the minimum hourly rate as determined in accordance with this provision
(the "Base Wage") for all Services performed under this Agreement.

(b) Contractor’s obligation to pay, and to assure payment of, the Base Wage will
begin at any time during the term of this Agreement when the conditions set forth in (a)(i) and
(a)(i1) above are met, and will continue until the end of the term of this Agreement.

(© As of July 1, 2014, the Base Wage is $11.93 per hour, and each July 1 thereafter,
the Base Wage will be adjusted, using the most recent federal poverty guidelines for a family of
four as published annually by the U.S. Department of Health and Human Services, to constitute
the following: the poverty guidelines for a family of four divided by 2000 hours or the current
base wage, whichever is higher. At all times during the term of this Agreement, Contractor and
all other Performing Parties must pay the Base Wage (as adjusted in accordance with the above).
If the payment of prevailing wages is required for Services done under this Agreement, and the
prevailing wages for Covered Employees are higher than the Base Wage, then Contractor and all
other Performing Parties must pay the prevailing wage rates.

(d) Contractor must include provisions in all subcontracts requiring its
Subcontractors to pay the Base Wage to Covered Employees. Contractor agrees to provide the
City with documentation acceptable to the Chiet Procurement Officer demonstrating that all
Covered Employees, whether employed by Contractor or by a Subcontractor, have been paid the
Base Wage, upon the City’s request for such documentation. The City may independently audit
Contractor and/or Subcontractors to verify compliance with this section. Failure to comply with
the requirements of this section will be an event of default under this Agreement, and further,
failure to comply may result in incligibility for any award of a City contract or subcontract for up
to 3 years.

(e) Not-for-Profit Corporations: It Contractor is a corporation having federal
tax-cxempt status under Section 501(¢)(3) of the Internal Revenue Code and is recognized under
Illinois not-for-profit law, then the provisions of Sections (a) through (d) above do not apply.



6.08 Deemed Inclusion

Provisions required by law. ordinances. rules, regulations or executive orders to be
inserted in this Agreement are deemed inserted in this Agreement whether or not they appear in
this Agreement or, upon application by either party, this Agreement will be amended to make the
insertion; however, in no event will the failure to insert the provisions before or alter this
Agreement is signed prevent its enforcement.

6.09 Environmental Warrantics and Representations

In accordance with Section 11-4-1600(e) of the Municipal Code of Chicago, Contractor
warrants and represents that it, and to the best of its knowledge, its subcontractors have not
violated and are not in violation of the following sections of the Code (collectively, the Waste
Sections):

7-28-390 Dumping on public way;

7-28-440 Dumping on real estate without permit;
11-4-1410 Disposal in waters prohibited;

11-4-1420 Ballast tank, bilge tank or other discharge;
11-4-1450 Gas manufacturing residue;

11-4-1500 Treatment and disposal of solid or liquid waste;
11-4-1530 Compliance with rules and regulations required;
11-4-1550 Operational requirements; and

11-4-1560 Screening requirements.

During the period while this Agreement is executory, Contractor’s or any subcontractor’s
violation of the Waste Sections, whether or not relating to the performance of this Agreement,
constitutes a breach of and an event of default under this Agreement, for which the opportunity to
cure, if curable, will be granted only at the sole designation of the Commissioner. Such breach
and default entitles the City to all remedies under the Agreement, at law or in equity.

This section does not limit Contractor’s and its subcontractors’ duty to comply with all
applicable federal, state, county and municipal laws, statutes, ordinances and executive orders, in
effect now or later, and whether or not they appear in this Agreement.

Non-compliance with these terms and conditions may be used by the City as grounds for
the termination of this Agreement, and may further affect Contractor's eligibility for future
contract awards.

6.10 EDS / Certification Regarding Suspension and Debarment
Contractor certifies, as further evidenced in the EDS attached as Exhibit 2, by iis
acceplance of this Agreement that neither it nor its principals is presently debarred, suspended,

proposed for debarment. declared ineligible or voluntarily excluded from participation in this
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transaction by any federal department or agency. Contractor further agrees by cxecuting this
Agreement that it will include this clause without modification in all lower tier transactions,
solicitations, proposals. contracts and subcontracts. 1f Contractor or any lower tier participant is
unable to certify to this statement, it must attach an explanation to the Agreement.

6.11 Ethics

(a) In addition to other warranties and representations. Contractor warrants:
(1) no officer, agent or employee of the City is employed by Contractor or has

a financial interest directly or indirectly in this Agreement or the compensation to be paid under
this Agrcement except as may be permitted in writing by the Board of Ethics established under
Chapter 2-156 of the Municipal Code .

(i1) no payment, gratuity or offer of employment will be made in connection
with this Agreement by or on behalf of any Subcontractors to Contractor or higher tier
Subcontractors or anyone associated with them, as an inducement for the award of a subcontract
or order.

(b) Contractor must comply with Chapter 2-156 of the Municipal Code. Contractor
acknowledges that any Agreement entered into, negotiated or performed in violation of any of the
provisions of Chapter 2-156, including any contract entered into with any person who has
retained or employed a non-registered lobbyist in violation of Section 2-156-305 of the
Municipal Code is voidable as to the City. '

6.12 MacBride Ordinance

The City of Chicago through the passage of the MacBride Principles Ordinance seeks to
promote fair and equal employment opportunities and labor practices for religious minorities in
Northern Ireland and provide a better working environment for all citizens in Northern Ireland.

In accordance with Section 2-92-580 of the Municipal Code of the City of Chicago, if
Contractor conducts any business operations in Northern Ireland, the Contractor must make all
reasonable and good faith efforts to conduct any business operations in Northern Ireland in
accordance with the MacBride Principles for Northern Ireland as defined in Illinois Public Act
85-1390 (1988 Ill. Laws 3220).

The provisions of this Section 6.12 do not apply to contracts for which the City receives
funds administered by the United States Department of Transportation, except to the extent
Congress has directed that the Department of Transportation not withhold funds from states and
localities that choose to implement selective purchasing policies based on agreement to comply
with the MacBride Principles for Northern Ireland, or to the extent that such funds are not
otherwise withheld by the Department of Transportation.
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6.13  Duty to Report Corrupt or Unlawful Activity

Pursuant to §2-156-018 of the Municipal Code, it is the duty of the Contractor to report to
the Inspector General, dircctly and without undue delay, any and all information concerning
conduct which it knows to involve corrupt activity. “Corrupt Activity” means any conduct set
forth in Subparagraph (a)(1), (2) or (3) of §1-23-020 of the Municipal Code. Knowing failure to
make such a report will be an event of default under this Agreement. Reports may be made to the
Inspector General’s toll free hotline, 866-1G-TIPLINE (866-448-4754).

ARTICLE 7 EVENTS OF DEFAULT, REMEDIES, TERMINATION, RIGHT
TO OFFSET, SUSPENSION

7.01 Events of Default Defined

The following constitute events of default:

A. Any material misrepresentation, whether negligent or willful and whether in the
inducement or in the performance, made by Contractor to the City.

B. Contractor's material failure to perform any of its obligations under the Agreement
including, but not limited to, the following:

(1) failure to commence or ensure timely completion of the Services due to a
reason or circumstance within Contractor's reasonable control;

(2) failure to perform the Services in a manner satisfactory to the City;

(3) failure to promptly re-perform within a reasonable time Services that were
rejected as erroneous or unsatisfactory;

(4) discontinuance of the Services for reasons within the Contractor's reasonable
control;

(5) failure to comply with a material term of this Agreement, including but not
limited to the provisions concerning insurance and nondiscrimination; and

(6) any other acts specifically and expressly stated in this Agreement as
constituting an event of default.

C. The Contractor's default under any other agreement it may presently have or may
enter into with the City during the lifc of this Agreement. The Contractor acknowledges and
agrees that in the event of a default under this Agreement the City may also declare a default
under any such other agreements.
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7.02 Remedices

The occurrence of any event of default which the Contractor fails to cure within 14
calendar days after receipt of notice specifying such default or which, if such event of default
cannot reasonably be cured within 14 calendar days after notice, the Contractor fails, in the sole
opinion of the Commissioner, to commence and continue diligent efforts to cure, permits the City
to declare the Contractor in default. Whether to declare the Contractor in default is within the
sole discretion of the Commuissioner. Written notification of the default, and any intention of the
City to terminate the Agreement, shall be provided to Contractor and such decision is final and
effective upon Contractor's receipt of such notice. Upon receipt of such notice, the Contractor
must discontinue any services, unless otherwise directed in the notice, and deliver all materials
accumulated in the performance of this Agreement, whether completed or in the process of
completion, to the City. At such time the City may invoke any legal or equitable remedy
available to it including, but not limited to, the following:

A. The right to take over and complete the Services or any part thereof as agent for
and at the cost of the Contractor, either directly or through others. The Contractor shall have, in
such event, the right to offset from such cost the amount it would have cost the City under the
terms and conditions herein had the Contractor completed the Services.

B. The right to terminate this Agreement as to any or all of the Services yet to be
performed, effective at a time specified by the City.

C. The right of specific performance, an injunction or any other appropriate equitable
remedy.

D. The right to money damages.

E. The right to withhold all or any part of Contractor's compensation hereunder.

T3

The right to deem Contractor non-responsible in future contracts to be awarded by
the City.

If the City considers it to be in its best interest, it may elect not to declare default or to
terminate this Agreement. The parties acknowledge that this provision is solely for the benefit of
the City and that if the City permits the Contractor to continue to provide the Services despite
onc or more events of default, the Contractor is in no way relieved of any of its responsibilities,
duties or obligations under this Agreement nor doces the City waive or relinquish any of its rights.
No delay or omission to exercise any right accruing upon any event of default impairs any such
right nor shall it be construed as a waiver of any event of default or acquiescence therein, and
every such right may be exercised from time to time and as often as may be deemed expedient.



7.03 Right to Offsct

The City reserves its rights under § 2-92-380 of the Municipal Code of Chicago and the
Commissioner shall consult with the SSAC before exercising such rights.

7.04 Suspension

The City may at any time request that the Contractor suspend its Services, or any part
thereof, by giving 15 days prior written notice to the Contractor or upon no notice in the event of
emergency. No costs incurred after the eftective date of such suspension shall be allowed. The
Contractor shall promptly resume its performance upon written notice by the Department. The
Budget may be revised pursuant to Section 5.02 to account for any additional costs or expenses
actually incurred by the Contractor as a result of recommencing the Services.

7.05 No Damages for Delay

The Contractor agrees that it, its members, if a partnership or joint venture and its
Subcontractors shall make no claims against the City for damages, charges, additional costs or
hourly fees for costs incurred by reason of delays or hindrances by the City in the performance of
its obligations under this Agreement.

7.06 Early Termination

In addition to termination for default, the City may, at any time, elect to terminate this
Agreement or any portion of the Services to be performed under it at the sole discretion of the
Commissioner by a written notice to the Contractor. If the City elects to terminate the
Agreement in full, all Services shall cease and all materials accumulated in performing this
Agreement, whether completed or in the process of completion, shall be delivered to the
Department within 10 days after receipt of the notice or by the date stated in the notice.

During the final ten days or other time period stated in the notice, the Contractor shall
restrict its activities, and those of its Subcontractors, to winding down any reports, analyses, or
other activities previously begun. No costs incurred after the effective date of the termination are
allowed. Payment for any Services actually and satistactorily performed before the effective date
of the termination shall bc on the same basis as set forth in Article 5 hereof, but if any
compensation is described or provided for on the basis of a period longer than ten days, then the
compensation shall be prorated accordingly.

If a court of competent jurisdiction determines that the City's election to terminate this
Agreement for default has been wrongful, then such termination shall be deemed to be an early
termination.



ARTICLE 8 GENERAL CONDITIONS
8.01 Entirc Agreement

This Agreement, and the exhibits attached hereto and incorporated hereby, shall
constitute the entire agreement between the parties and no other warranties, inducements,
considerations, promises, or interpretations shall be implied or impressed upon this Agreement
that are not expressly addressed herein.

8.02 Counterparts

This Agreement is comprised of several identical counterparts, each to be fully executed
by the parties and each to be deemed an original having identical legal effect.

8.03 Amendments

No changes, amendments. modifications or discharge of this Agreement, or any part
thereof, shall be valid unless in writing and signed by the authorized agent of the Contractor and
the Commissioner, or their successors and assigns. The City shall incur no liability for revised
services without a written amendment to this Agreement pursuant to this Section.

8.04 Compliance with All Laws

The Contractor shall at all times observe and comply with all applicable laws, ordinances,
rules, regulations and executive orders of the federal, state and local government, now existing or
hereinafter in effect, which may in any manner affect the performance of this Agreement.

8.05 Compliance with ADA and Other Accessibility Laws

if this Agreement involves services to the public, the Contractor warrants that all Services
provided hereunder shall comply with all accessibility standards for persons with disabilities or
environmentally limited persons including, but not limited to the following: Americans with
Disabilities Act of 1990, 42 U.S.C. § 12101 et seq. and the Rehabilitation Act of 1973, 29 U.S.C.
§8 793-94. In the event that the above cited standards are inconsistent, the Contractor shall
comply with the standard providing greater accessibility.

If this Agreement involves design for construction and/or Construction, the Contractor
warrants that all design documents produced and/or used under this Agreement shall comply with
all federal, state and local laws and regulations regarding accessibility standards for persons with
disabilities or environmentally limited persons including, but not limited to, the following:
Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990, 42 U.S.C. § 12101 et seq. and the Americans with
Disabilities Act Accessibility Guidelines for Buildings and Facilities; the Architectural Barriers
Act, P.L. 90-480 and the Uniform Federal Accessibility Standards; and the Environmental
Barriers Act, 410 ILCS 25/1 et seq.. and the regulations promulgated thereto at 1ll. Admin. Code
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tit. 71. ch. I, § 400.110. In the cvent that the above cited standards are inconsistent, the
Contractor shall comply with the standard providing greater accessibility. 1f the Contractor fails

to comply with the foregoing standards. it shall perform again at no expense all services required
to be reperformed as a direct or indirect result of such failure.

8.06 Assigns
All of the terms and conditions of this Agreement shall be binding upon and inure to the benefit
of the partics hereto and their respective legal representatives, successors, transferees and
assigns.

8.07 Cooperation

The Contractor agrees at all times to cooperate tully with the City and to act in the City's
best interests. Upon the termination or expiration ol this Agreement, the Contractor shall make
every effort to assure an orderly transition to another provider of the Services, if any, orderly
demobilization of its operations in connection with the Services, uninterrupted provision of
Scrvices during any transition period and shall otherwise comply with reasonable requests of the
Department in connection with this Agreement's termination or expiration.

8.08 Scverability

If any provision of this Agreement is held or deemed to be or shall in fact be inoperative
or unenforceable as applied in any particular case in any jurisdiction or in all cases because it
conflicts with any other provision hereof or of any constitution, statute, ordinance, rule of law or
public policy, or for any other reason, such circumstances shall not have the effect of rendering
such provision inoperative or unenforceable in any other case or circumstances, or of rendering
any other provision herein invalid, inoperative, or unenforceable to any extent. The invalidity of
any one or more phrases, sentences, clauses or sections herein shall not affect the remaining
portions of this Agreement or any part thereof.

8.09 Interpretation

All headings in this Agreement are for convenience of relerence only and do not define or
limit the provisions thercof. Words of gender are deemed to include correlative words of the
other gender. Words importing the singular number include the plural number and vice versa,
unless the context otherwise indicates. All references to exhibits or documents are deemed to
include all supplements and/or amendments to such exhibits or documents if entered into in
accordance with the terms and conditions hereof and thercof. All references to persons or
entities arec deemed to include any persons or eatitics succceding to the rights, duties, and
obligations of such persons or entities in accordance with the terms and conditions herein.

8.10 Miscellaneous Provisions

Whenever under this Agreement the City by a proper authority waives the Contractor's
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performance in any respect or waives a requirement or condition to the Contractor's performance,
the waiver, whether express or implied, applies only to that particular instance and is not a
waiver forever or for subsequent instances of the performance, requirement or condition. No
waiver shall be construed as a modilication of the Agreement regardless of the number of times
the City may have waived the performance, requirement or condition.

8.11 Disputes

Except as otherwise provided in this Agreement, Contractor must and the City may bring
any dispute arising under this Agreement which is not resolved by the parties to the Chief
Procurement Officer for decision based upon the written submissions of the parties. (A copy of
the "Regulations of the Department of Procurement Services for Resolution of Disputes between
Contractors and the City of Chicago"” is available in City Hall, 121 N. LaSalle Street, Room 301,
Bid and Bond Room, Chicago. Hlinois 60602.) The Chiet Procurement Officer will issue a
written decision and send it to the Contractor and the SSAC by mail. The decision of the Chief
Procurement Officer is final and binding. The sole and exclusive remedy to challenge the
decision of the Chief Procurement Officer is judicial review by means of a common law writ of
certiorarl.

8.12 Contractor Affidavit

The Contractor must provide to the City, no later than thirty days after the end of each
year May 1* of each year, a fully executed and notarized Affidavit certifying the expenditures
and Services provided for the prior year. The Contractor must also provide to the City, no later
than June 1* of each year, a Full-Year Assessment.  The forms of this Affidavit and Full-Year
Assessment are attached as Exhibit 7 and incorporated by reference.

8.13 Prohibition on Certain Contributions

No Contractor or any person or entity who directly or indirectly has an ownership or
beneficial interest in Contractor of more than 7.5% ("Owners"), spouscs and domestic partners of
such Owners, Contractor’s Subcontractors, any person or entity who directly or indirectly has an
ownership or beneficial interest in any Subcontractor of more than 7.5% ("Sub-owners") and
spouses and domestic partners of such Sub-owners (Contractor and all the other preceding
classes of persons and entities are together, the "Identified Parties"), shall make a contribution of
any amount to the Mayor of the City of Chicago (the "Mayor™) or to his political fundraising
committee during (1) the bid or other solicitation process for this Contract or Other Contract,
including while this Contract or Other Contract is executory. (ii) the term of this Contract or any
Other Contract between City and Contractor, and/or (ii1) any period in which an extension of this
Contract or Other Contract with the City is being sought or negotiated.

Contractor represents and warrants that since the date of public advertisement of the
specification, request for qualifications, request for proposals or request for information (or any
combination of those requests) or, if not competitively procured, from the date the City
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approached the Contractor or the date the Contractor approached the City, as applicable,
regarding the formulation of this Contract, no Identified Parties have made a contribution of any
amount (o the Mayor or to his political fundraising committee.

Contractor shall not: (a) coerce, compel or intimidate its employees to make a contribution of
any amount to the Mayor or to the Mayor’s political fundraising committee; (b) rcimburse its
employees for a contribution ol any amount made to the Mayor or to the Mayor’s political
fundraising committee; or (¢) bundle or solicit others to bundle contributions to the Mayor or to
his political fundraising committee.

The Identified Parties must not engage in any conduct whatsoever designed to intentionally
violate this provision or Mayoral Executive Order No. 2011-4 or to entice, direct or solicit others
to intentionally violate this provision or Mayoral Executive Order No. 2011-4.

Violation of, non-compliance with. misrepresentation with respect to, or breach of any covenant
or warranty under this provision or violation of Mayoral Executive Order No. 2011-4 constitutes
a breach and default under this Contract. and under any Other Contract for which no opportunity
to cure will be granted. Such breach and default entitles the City to all remedies (including
without limitation termination for default) under this Contract, under Other Contract, at law and
in equity. This provision amends any Other Contract and supersedes any inconsistent provision
contained therein.

If Contractor violates this provision or Mayoral Executive Order No. 2011-4 pridr to award of the
Contract resulting from this specification, the Commissioner may reject Contractor’s bid.

For purposes of this provision:

"Other Contract" means any agreement entered into between the Contractor and the City that is
(i) formed under the authority of MCC Ch. 2-92; (ii) for the purchase, sale or lease of real or
personal property; or (iii) for materials. supplies, equipment or services which are approved
and/or authorized by the City Council. '

"Contribution" means a "political contribution" as defined in MCC Ch. 2-156, as amended.

"Political fundraising committee” means a "political fundraising committec" as defined in MCC
Ch. 2-156, as amended.

8.14  Firms Owned or Operated by Individuals with Disabilities
The City encourages Contractors to use Subcontractors that are firms owned or

operated by individuals with disabilities. as defined by Section 2-92-586 of the Municipal
Code of the City of Chicago. where not otherwise prohibited by federal or state law.
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8.15 Governing Law and Jurisdiction

This Agrecement is governed as 1o performance and interpretation in accordance with
the laws of the State of Illinois.

ARTICLE 9 NOTICES

Notices provided tor herein shall be in writing and may be delivered personally or by
United States mail, first class, certified, return receipt requested, with postage prepaid and
addressed as follows:

If to the City: West Town Special Service Area Commission
1819 W. Chicago Ave
Chicago, Illinois 60622

Department of Planning and Development
City Hall, Room 1000

121 North L.aSalle Street

Chicago, Illinois 60602

Attention: Commissioner

With Copies to: Department of Law
Room 600, City Hall
121 North LaSalle Street
Chicago, lllinois 60602
Attention: Corporation Counsel

If to Contractor: West Town Chicago Chamber of Commerce
1819 W. Chicago Ave
Chicago, Illinois 60622
Attention: Kara Hughes Salgado

Changes in the above-referenced addresses must be in writing and delivered in
accordance with the provisions of this Section. Notices delivered by mail shall be deemed
received 3 days after mailing in accordance with this Section. Notices delivered personally
shall be deemed effective upon receipt.

ARTICLE 10 CITY ACTION
In the event that there is no duly constituled SSAC during the term of this

Agreement, the City will retain all of the rights and obligations afforded to the SSAC
hereunder.
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ARTICLE 11 MULTI-PROJECT LABOR AGREEMEN'T

The City has entered into the Multi-Project Labor Agreement (“PLLA”) with various
trades regarding projects as described in the PLA, a copy of which, without appendices, is
attached hereto as Exhibit 9. A copy of the PLA, with appendices, may also be found on the
City's website at hitp://www.cityotchicago.org/PLA. Contractor acknowledges familiarity
with the requirements of the PLA and its applicability to any Services under this Agrecment,
and shall comply in all respects with any applicable provisions of the PLA.




IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the City and the Contractor have executed this
Agreement on the date first set forth above, at Chicago, [Hlinois.

Recommended by:

SSAC Chairperson
CITY OF CHICAGO
By:

Commissioner, Department of
Planning and Development

as of .20
CONTRACTOR
By:
Its:
Attested By:
Its:

State of

County of

This instrument was acknowledged before me on (date) by
(name/s of person/s) as (type of authority, e.g., officer, trustee, etc.) of

(name of party on behalf of whom instrument was exccuted).

(Signature of Notary Public)
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EXHIBIT 1

Scope of Services & Budget
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CITY OF CHICAGO
ECONOMIC DISCLOSURE STATEMENT and AFFIDAVIT
Related to Contract/Amendment/Solicitation
EDS # 59241

SECTION | -- GENERAL INFORMATION

A. Legal name of the Disclosing Party submitting the EDS:
West Town Chicago Chamber of Commerce

Enter d/b/a if applicable:

The Disclosing Party submitting this EDS is:
the Applicant
B. Business address of the Disclosing Party:

1819 W. Chicago Ave.
Chicago, IL 60622
United States

C. Telephone:

312-850-9390

Fax:

312-850-9414

Email:
ksalgado@westtownchamber.org
D. Name of contact person:

Ms. Kara Hughes Salgado



E. Federal Employer Identification No. (if you have one):

F. Brief description of contract, transaction or other undertaking (referred to below as
the "Matter”) to which this EDS pertains:

To allow the West Town Chicago Chamber of Commerce to enter
into a service provider agreement with the City of Chicago in
order to provide special services within SSA #29-2014.

Which City agency or department is requesting this EDS?
DEPT OF PLANNING AND DEVELOPMENT

Specification Number
Contract (PO) Number
Revision Number
Release Number

User Department Project Number

SECTION II -- DISCLOSURE OF OWNERSHIP INTERESTS

A. NATURE OF THE DISCLOSING PARTY

1. Indicate the nature of the Disclosing Party:

Not-for-profit corporation

Is the Disclosing Party also a 501(c)(3) organization?

No

Is the Disclosing Party incorporated or organized in the State of lllinois?

Yes

B. DISCLOSING PARTY IS A LEGAL ENTITY:



1.a.1 Does the Disclosing Party have any directors?
Yes

1.a.3 List below the full names and titles of all executive officers and all directors,
if any, of the entity. Do not include any directors who have no power to select the
entity's officers.

Officer/Director: Ms. Julie Ghatan
Title: President

Role: Both
Officer/Director: Mr. Ty Fujimara
Title: Director

Role: Director
Officer/Director: Mrs. Kara Hughes Salgado
Title: Executive Director
Role: Both
Officer/Director: Ms. Shanita Steele
Title: Secretary

Role: Both
Officer/Director: Mr. Greg Whipple
Title: Treasurer

Role: Both
Officer/Director: Mr. Bob Markey
Title: Director

Role: Director
Officer/Director: Ms. Maureen Longua
Title: Vice President
Role: Both
Officer/Director: Mr. Chad Johnson
Title: Director

Role: Director

1.a.5 Are there any members of the non-for-profit Disclosing Party which are Iegél
entities?



No

SECTION Ill -- BUSINESS RELATIONSHIPS WITH CITY ELECTED
OFFICIALS

Has the Disclosing Party had a "business relationship,” as defined in Chapter 2-156
of the Municipal Code, with any City elected official in the 12 months before the date
this EDS is signed?

No

SECTION IV -- DISCLOSURE OF SUBCONTRACTORS AND OTHER
RETAINED PARTIES

The Disclosing Party must disclose the name and business address of each
subcontractor, attorney, lobbyist, accountant, consultant and any other person or
entity whom the Disclosing Party has retained or expects to retain in connection
with the Matter, as well as the nature of the relationship, and the total amount of the
fees paid or estimated to be paid. The Disclosing Party is not required to disciose
employees who are paid solely through the Disclosing Party's regular payroll.

"Lobbyist" means any person or entity who undertakes to influence any legislative or
administrative action on behalf of any person or entity other than: (1) a not-for-profit
entity, on an unpaid basis, or (2) himself. "Lobbyist" also means any person or
entity any part of whose duties as an employee of another includes undertaking to
influence any legislative or administrative action.

If the Disclosing Party is uncertain whether a disclosure is required under this
Section, the Disclosing Party must either ask the City whether disclosure is required
or make the disclosure.

1. Has the Disclosing Party retained any legal entities in connection with the Matter?
Yes

2. List below the names of all legal entities which are retained parties.

Name: Traffic PR
Anticipated/ Anticipated
Retained:

Business Address: 4209 N. Bernard St

Chicago, IL 60618 United States

Relationship: Subcontractor - non MWDBE



Fees

($$ or %):
Estimated/Paid:

Anticipated/
Retained:

Business Address:

Relationship:

Fees

(5% or %):
Estimated/Paid:

Anticipated/
Retained:

Business Address:

Relationghip:

Fees
(88 or %):

Estimated/Paid:

........... deenrcoucvnsenunsnnanman

Name:

Anticipated/
Retained:

Business Addressa:

Relationship:

Fees

($$ or %):
Estimated/Paid:

Anticipated/
Retained:

Business Address:

Relationsghip:

$24,500

Estimated

Chicago Event Graphics

Anticipated

400 N. Hart Street
Chicago, IL 60622 United States

Subcontractor - non MWDBE
$40, 000

Estimated

Cleanslate

Anticipated

1540 South Ashland, Suite 105
Chicago, IL 60608 United States

Subcontractor - non MWDBE
$122, 000

Estimated

Bartlett Tree Experts
Anticipated

1960 0ld Willow Road

Northbrook, IL 60062 United States

Subcontractor - non MWDBE
$25,000

Estimated

Ukietech
Anticipated

1646 N. Bosworth, Suite A
Chicago, IL 60642 United States

Subcontractor - non MWDBE



Fees $500.00

($$ or %):

Estimated/Paid: Estimated

Name Christy Webber Landscapes
Anticipated/ Anticipated

Retained:

Business Address:

Relationship:

2900 W. Ferdinand Street
Chicago, IL 60612 United States

Subcontractor - non MWDBE

Fees $6,000

($3 or %):

Estimated/Paid: Estimated

Name Dilious Solutions
Anticipated/ Anticipated
Retained:

Business Address:

4201 W. Belmont Ave
Chicago, IL 60641 United States

Relationship: Subcontractor - non MWDBE
Fees "$1,500

($$ or %):

Egtimated/Paid: Estimated

3. Has the Disclosing Party retained any persons in connection with the Matter?

No
SECTION V -- CERTIFICATIONS

A. COURT-ORDERED CHILD SUPPORT COMPLIANCE

Under Municipal Code Section 2-92-415, substantial owners of business entities that
contract with the City must remain in compliance with their child support obligations
throughout the contract's term.

Has any person who directly or indirectly owns 10% or more of the Disclosing Party
been declared in arrearage of any child support obligations by any lllinois court of
competent jurisdiction?

No



B. FURTHER CERTIFICATIONS

1. Pursuant to Municipal Code Chapter 1-23, Article | ("Article I")(which the Applicant
should consult for defined terms (e.g., "doing business") and legal requirements), if
the Disclosing Party submitting this EDS is the Applicant and is doing business with
the City, then the Disclosing Party certifies as follows:

i. neither the Applicant nor any controlling person is currently indicted or charged
with, or has admitted guilt of, or has ever been convicted of, or placed under
supervision for, any criminai offense involving actual, attempted, or conspiracy
to commit bribery, theft, fraud, forgery, perjury, dishonesty or deceit against an
officer or employee of the City or any sister agency; and

ii. the Applicant understands and acknowledges that compliance with Article | is a
continuing requirement for doing business with the City.

NOTE: If Article | applies to the Applicant, the permanent compliance timeframe in
Article | supersedes some five-year compliance timeframes in certifications 2 and 3

below.
I certify the above to be true

2. The Disclosing Party and, if the Disclosing Party is a legal entity, all of those
persons or entities identified in Section [1.B.1. of this EDS:

a. are not presently debarred, suspended, proposed for debarment, declared
ineligible or voluntarily excluded from any transactions by any federal, state or
local unit of government;

b. have not, within a five-year period preceding the date of this EDS, been
convicted of a criminal offense, adjudged guilty, or had a civil judgment
rendered against them in connection with: obtaining, attempting to obtain,
or performing a public (federal, state or local) transaction or contract under
a public transaction; a violation of federal or state antitrust statutes; fraud;
embezziement; theft; forgery; bribery; falsification or destruction of records;
making false statements; or receiving stolen property;

c. are not presently indicted for, or criminally or civilly charged by, a governmental
entity (federal, state or local) with committing any of the offenses set forth in
clause B.2.b. of this Section V;

d. have not, within a five-year period preceding the date of this EDS, had one or
more public transactions (federal, state or local) terminated for cause or default;
and

e. have not, within a five-year period preceding the date of this EDS, been
convicted, adjudged guilty, or found liable in a civil proceeding, or in any criminal
or civil action, including actions concerning environmental violations, instituted
by the City or by the federal government, any state, or any other unit of local
government.



I certify the above to be true

3. Neither the Disclosing Party, nor any Contractor, nor any Affiliated Entity of either
the Disclosing Party or any Contractor nor any Agents have, during the five years
before the date this EDS is signed, or, with respect to a Contractor, an Affiliated
Entity, or an Affiliated Entity of a Contractor during the five years before the date of
such Contractor's or Affiliated Entity's contract or engagement in connection with the
Matter:

a. bribed or attempted to bribe, or been convicted or adjudged guilty of bribery or
attempting to bribe, a public officer or employee of the City, the State of lllinois,
or any agency of the federal government or of any state or local government in
the United States of America, in that officer's or employee's official capacity;

b. agreed or colluded with other bidders or prospective bidders, or been a party
to any such agreement, or been convicted or adjudged guilty of agreement
or collusion among bidders or prospective bidders, in restraint of freedom of
competition by agreement to bid a fixed price or otherwise; or

c. made an admission of such conduct described in a. or b. above that is a matter
of record, but have not been prosecuted for such conduct; or

d. violated the provisions of Municipal Code Section 2-92-610 (Living Wage

Ordinance).

I certify the above to be true

4. Neither the Disclosing Party, Affiliated Entity or Contractor, or any of their
employees, officials, agents or partners, is barred from contracting with any unit of
state or local government as a resuit of engaging in or being convicted of

- bid-rigging in violation of 720 ILCS 5/33E-3;

+ bid-rotating in violation of 720 ILCS 5/33E-4; or

« any similar offense of any state or of the United States of America that contains
the same elements as the offense of bid-rigging or bid-rotating.

I certify the above to be true

5. Neither the Disclosing Party nor any Affiliated Entity is listed on any of the
following lists maintained by the Office of Foreign Assets Control of the U.S.
Department of the Treasury or the Bureau of Industry and Security of the U.S.
Department of Commerce or their successors: the Specially Designated Nationals
List, the Denied Persons List, the Unverified List, the Entity List and the Debarred
List.

I certify the above to be true

6. The Disclosing Party understands and shall comply with the applicable
requirements of Chapters 2-55 (Legislative Inspector General), Chapter 2-56




{Inspector General) and Chapter 2-156 {Governmental Ethics) of the Municipal
Code.

I certify the above to be true

7. To the best of the Disclosing Party's knowledge after reasonable inquiry, the
following is a complete list of all current employees of the Disclosing Party who were,
at any time during the 12-month period preceding the execution date of this EDS, an
employee, or elected or appointed official, of the City of Chicago.

None

8. To the best of the Disclosing Party's knowledge after reasonable inquiry, the
following is a complete list of all gifts that the Disclosing Party has given or caused
to be given, at any time during the 12-month period preceding the execution date

of this EDS, to an employee, or elected or appointed official, of the City of Chicago.
For purposes of this statement, a "gift" does not include: (i) anything made generally
available to City employees or to the general public, or (ii) food or drink provided

in the course of official City business and having a retail value of less than $20 per
recipient.

None

C. CERTIFICATION OF STATUS AS FINANCIAL INSTITUTION

The Disclosing Party certifies that, as defined in Section 2-32-455(b) of the Municipal
Code, the Disclosing Party

is not a "financial institution"”

D. CERTIFICATION REGARDING INTEREST IN CITY BUSINESS

Any words or terms that are defined in Chapter 2-156 of the Municipal Code have
the same meanings when used in this Part D.

1. In accordance with Section 2-156-110 of the Municipal Code: Does any official or
employee of the City have a financial interest in his or her own name or in the name
of any other person or entity in the Matter?

No
E. CERTIFICATION REGARDING SLAVERY ERA BUSINESS

If the Disclosing Party cannot make this verification, the Disclosing Party must
disclose all required information in the space provided below or in an attachment in
the "Additional Info" tab. Failure to comply with these disclosure requirements may



make any contract entered into with the City in connection with the Matter voidable
by the City.

The Disclosing Party verifies that the Disclosing Party has searched any and all
records of the Disclosing Party and any and all predecessor entities regarding
records of investments or profits from slavery or slaveholder insurance policies
during the slavery era (including insurance policies issued to slaveholders that
provided coverage for damage to or injury or death of their slaves), and the
Disclosing Party has found no such records.

I can make the above verification

SECTION VI -- CERTIFICATIONS FOR FEDERALLY-FUNDED
MATTERS

|s the Matter federally funded? For the purposes of this-Section VI, tax credits
allocated by the City and proceeds of debt obligations of the City are not federal
funding.

No

SECTION VIl -- ACKNOWLEDGMENTS, CONTRACT
INCORPORATION, COMPLIANCE, PENALTIES, DISCLOSURE

The Disclosing Party understands and agrees that:

A. The certifications, disclosures, and acknowledgments contained in this EDS
will become part of any contract or other agreement between the Applicant and
the City in connection with the Matter, whether procurement, City assistance, or
other City action, and are material inducements to the City's execution of any
contract or taking other action with respect to the Matter. The Disclosing Party
understands that it must comply with all statutes, ordinances, and regulations on
which this EDS is based.

B. The City's Governmental Ethics and Campaign Financing Ordinances,
Chapters 2-156 and 2-164 of the Municipal Code, impose certain duties
and obligations on persons or entities seeking City contracts, work,
business, or transactions. A training program is available on line at
www.cityofchicago.org/city/en/depts/ethics.html, and may also be obtained from
the City's Board of Ethics, 740 N. Sedgwick St., Suite 500, Chicago, IL 60610,
(312) 744-9660. The Disclosing Party must comply fully with the applicable
ordinances.

I acknowledge and consent to the above
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The Disclosing Party understands and agrees that:

C. If the City determines that any information provided in this EDS is false,
incomplete or inaccurate, any contract or other agreement in connection with
which it is submitted may be rescinded or be void or voidable, and the City may
pursue any remedies under the contract or agreement (if not rescinded or void),
at law, or in equity, including terminating the Disclosing Party's participation in
the Matter and/or declining to allow the Disclosing Party to participate in other
transactions with the City. Remedies at law for a false statement of material fact
may include incarceration and an award to the City of treble damages.

D. Itis the City's policy to make this document available to the public on its Internet
site and/or upon request. Some or all of the information provided on this EDS
and any attachments to this EDS may be made availabie to the public on the
Internet, in response to a Freedom of Information Act request, or otherwise. By
completing and signing this EDS, the Disclosing Party waives and releases any
possible rights or claims which it may have against the City in connection with
the public release of information contained in this EDS and aiso authorizes the
City to verify the accuracy of any information submitted in this EDS.

E. The information provided in this EDS must be kept current. In the event of
changes, the Disclosing Party must supplement this EDS up to the time the
City takes action on the Matter. If the Matter is a contract being handled by the
City's Department of Procurement Services, the Disclosing Party must update
this EDS as the contract requires. NOTE: With respect to Matters subject
to Article | of Chapter 1-23 of the Municipal Code (imposing PERMANENT
INELIGIBILITY for certain specified offenses), the information provided herein
regarding eligibility must be kept current for a longer period, as required by
Chapter 1-23 and Section 2-154-020 of the Municipal Code.

I acknowledge and consent to the above
The Disclosing Party represents and warrants that:

F.1. The Disclosing Party is not delinquent in the payment of any tax administered
by the lllinois Department of Revenue, nor are the Disclosing Party or its Affiliated
Entities delinquent in paying any fine, fee, tax or other charge owed to the City. This
includes, but is not limited to, all water charges, sewer charges, license fees, parking
tickets, property taxes or sales taxes.

I certify the above to be true

F.2 If the Disclosing Party is the Applicant, the Disclosing Party and its Affiliated
Entities will not use, nor permit their subcontractors to use, any facility listed by the
U.S. E.P.A. on the federal Excluded Parties List System ("EPLS") maintained by the
U.S. General Services Administration.

- 11 -



I certify the above to be true

F.3 If the Disclosing Party is the Applicant, the Disclosing Party will obtain

from any contractors/subcontractors hired or to be hired in connection with

the Matter certifications equal in form and substance to those in F.1. and F.2.
above and will not, without the prior written consent of the City, use any such
contractor/subcontractor that does not provide such certifications or that the
Disclosing Party has reason to believe has not provided or cannot provide truthful
certifications.

I certify the above to be true

FAMILIAL RELATIONSHIPS WITH ELECTED CITY OFFICIALS AND
DEPARTMENT HEADS

This question is to be completed only by (a) the Applicant, and (b) any legal entity
which has a direct ownership interest in the Applicant exceeding 7.5 percent. It is not
to be completed by any legal entity which has only an indirect ownership interest in
the Applicant.

Under Municipal Code Section 2-154-015, the Disclosing Party must disclose
whether such Disclosing Party or any "Applicable Party" or any Spouse or Domestic
Partner thereof currently has a "familial relationship" with any elected city official or
department head. A "familial relationship" exists if, as of the date this EDS is signed,
the Disclosing Party or any "Applicable Party" or any Spouse or Domestic Partner
thereof is related to the mayor, any alderman, the city clerk, the city treasurer or
any city department head as spouse or domestic partner or as any of the following,
whether by blood or adoption: parent, child, brother or sister, aunt or uncle, niece

or nephew, grandparent, grandchild, father-in-law, mother-in-law, son-in-law,
daughter-in-law, stepfather or stepmother, stepson or stepdaughter, stepbrother or
stepsister or half-brother or half-sister.

"Applicable Party" means (1) all corporate officers of the Disclosing Party, if

the Disclosing Party is a corporation; all partners of the Disclosing Party, if the
Disclosing Party is a general partnership; all general partners and limited partners

of the Disclosing Party, if the Disclosing Party is a limited partnership; all managers,
managing members and members of the Disclosing Party, if the Disclosing Party is a
limited liability company; (2) all principal officers of the Disclosing Party; and (3) any
person having more than a 7.5 percent ownership interest in the Disclosing Party.
"Principal officers" means the president, chief operating officer, executive director,
chief financial officer, treasurer or secretary of a legal entity or any person exercising
similar authority.

-12-



Does the Disclosing Party or any "Applicable Party" or any Spouse or Domestic
Partner thereof currently have a "familial relationship” with an elected city official or
department head?

No

ADDITIONAL INFO

Please add any additional explanatory information here. If explanation is longer than
1000 characters, you may add an attachment below. Please note that your EDS,
including all attachments, becomes available for public viewing upon contract award.
Your attachments will be viewable "as is" without manual redaction by the City. You
are responsible for redacting any non-public information from your documents before
uploading.

List of vendor attachments uploaded by City staff
None.

List of attachments uploaded by vendor

None.
CERTIFICATION

Under penalty of perjury, the person signing below: (1) warrants that he/she is
authorized to execute this EDS on behalf of the Disclosing Party, and (2) warrants
that all certifications and statements contained in this EDS are true, accurate and
complete as of the date furnished to the City.

/s/ 11/25/2014

Ms. Kara Hughes Salgado

Executive Director

West Town Chicago Chamber of Commerce

This is a printed copy of the Economic Disclosure Statement, the original of which
is filed electronically with the City of Chicago. Any alterations must be made
electronically, alterations on this printed copy are void and of no effect.

-13-



CERTIFICATE OF FILING FOR

CITY OF CHICAGO ECONOMIC DISCLOSURE STATEMENT

EDS Number: 59241 Date of This Filing:11/25/2014 01:04 PM
Certificate Printed on: 11/25/2014 Original Filing Date:08/20/2014 01:32 PM
Disclosing Party: West Town Chicago Title:Executive Director

Chamber of Commerce
Filed by: Ms. Kara Hughes Salgado

Matter: To allow the West Town Chicago
Chamber of Commerce to enter into a service
provider agreement with the City of Chicago
in order to provide special services within SSA
#29-2014.

Applicant: West Town Chicago Chamber of
Commerce

Specification #:

Contract #:

The Economic Disclosure Statement referenced above has been electronically filed with
the City. Please provide a copy of this Certificate of Filing to your city contact with other

required documents pertaining to the Matter. For additional guidance as to when to provide this
Certificate and other required documents, please follow instructions provided to you about the

Matter or consult with your City contact.

A copy of the EDS may be viewed and printed by visiting

https://webapps| .cityofchicago.org/EDSWeb and entering the EDS number into the EDS
Search. Prior to contract award, the filing is accessible online only to the disclosing party and
the City, but is still subject to the Illinois Freedom of Information Act. The filing is visible
online to the public after contract award.
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3)

4)

EXHIBIT 3
CONTRACTOR INSURANCE PROVISIONS

INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS
Special Services Area

Contractor must provide and maintain at Contractor’s own expense, during the term of the
Agreement and time period following expiration if Contractor is required to return and
perform any of the Services or Additional Services under this Agreement, the insurance
coverage and requirements specified below, insuring all operations related to the
Agreement.

INSURANCE TO BE PROVIDED

1) Workers Compensation and Employers Liability

Workers Compensation Insurance, as prescribed by applicable law, covering all
employees who are to provide a service under this Agreement and Employers Liability
coverage with limits of not less than $100,000 each accident, illness or disease.

Commercial General Liability (Primary and Umbrella)

Commercial General Liability Insurance or equivalent with limits of not less than
$1.000,000 per occurrence for bodily injury, personal injury and property damage
liability. Coverages must include the following:  All premises and operations,
products/completed operations, separation of insureds, defense and contractual liability
(not to include Endorsement CG 21 39 or equivalent). The City of Chicago is to be
named as an additional insured on a primary, non-contributory basis for any liability
arising directly or indirectly from the work or Services.

Automobile Liability (Primary and Umbrella)

When any motor vehicles (owned, non-owned and hired) are used in connection with
Services to be performed, Contractor must provide Automobile Liability Insurance with
limits of not less than $500,000 per occurrence for bodily injury and property damage.
The City of Chicago is to be named as an additional insured on a primary, non-
contributory basis.

Professional Liability




When any professional consultants (e.g.; CPA’s, Attorney, Architects, Engineers)
perform work in connection with this Agreement, Professional Liability Insurance
covering acts, errors, or omissions must be maintained with limits of not less than
$500,000. When policies are renewed or replaced, the policy retroactive date must
coincide with, or precede start of work on the Contract. A claims-made policy which is
not renewed or replaced must have an extended reporting period of two (2) years.

5)  Crime

The Contractor is responsible for all persons handling funds under this Agreement,
against loss by dishonesty, robbery, burglary, theft, destruction or disappearance, computer
fraud, credit card forgery and other related crime risks.

B. SECURITY FIRMS

If the Contractor enters into a subcontract with a Security Firm, such Security Firm must be
certified by State of Illinois, and the Security Firm’s employees must be registered and certified
by the State. Contractor must ensure and require any Security Firm subcontractor to comply with
the Risk Management Division approved Security Firm Insurance Provision set forth in Exhibit 4
of this Agreement, attached hereto and incorporated by references as though fully set forth
herein.

C. ADDITIONAL REQUIREMENTS

Contractor must furnish the City of Chicago, Department of Planning and Development (DPD),
City Hall, Room 1006, 121 North LaSalle Street 60602, original Certificates of Insurance, or
such similar evidence, to be in force on the date of this Agreement, and Renewal Certificates of
Insurance, or such similar evidence, if the coverages have an expiration or renewal date
occurring during the term of this Agreement. Contractor must submit evidence of insurance on
the City of Chicago Insurance Certificate Form (copy attached as Exhibit-) or equivalent prior to
execution of this Agreement. The receipt of any certificate does not constitute agreement by the
City that the insurance requirements in the Agreement have been fully met or that the insurance
policies indicated on the certificate are in compliance with all Agreement requirements. The
failure of the City to obtain certificates or other insurance evidence from Contractor is not a
waiver by the City of any requirements for the Contractor to obtain and maintain the specified
coverages. Contractor must advise all insurers of the Agreement provisions regarding insurance.
Non-conforming insurance does not relieve Contractor of the obligation to provide insurance as
specified in this Agreement. Nonfulfillment of the insurance conditions may constitute a
violation of the Agreement, and the City retains the right to suspend this Agreement until proper
evidence of insurance is provided, or the Agreement may be terminated.



The Contractor must provide for 60 days prior written notice to be given to the City in the cvent
coverage is substantially changed, canceled or non-renewed.

Any deductibles or self-insured retentions on referenced insurance coverages must be borne by
Contractor.

Contractor hereby waives and agrees to require their insurers to waive their rights of subrogation
against the City of Chicago, its employees, elected officials, agents or representatives.

The coverages and limits furnished by Contractor in no way limit the Contractor's liabilities and
responsibilities specified within the Agreement or by law.

Any insurance or self-insurance programs maintained by the City of Chicago do not contribute
with insurance provided by Contractor under this Agreement.

The required insurance to be carried is not limited by any limitations expressed in the
indemnification language in this Agreement or any limitation placed on the indemnity in this
Agreement given as a matter of law.

If Contractor is a joint venture or limited liability company, the insurance policies must name the
joint venture or limited liability company as a named insured.

Contractor must require all Subcontractors to provide the insurance required in this Agreement,
or Contractor may provide the coverages for Subcontractors. All Subcontractors are subject to
the same insurance requirements of Contractor unless otherwise specified in this Agreement.

If Contractor or Subcontractor desire additional coverages, the party desiring the additional
coverages is responsible for the acquisition and cost.

Notwithstanding any provision in the Contract to the contrary, the City of Chicago Risk
Management Department maintains the right to modify, delete, alter or change these
requirements.



EXHIBIT 4

SECURITY FIRM INSURANCE PROVISIONS

CONTRACT INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS

The Security Firm must provide and maintain at Security Firm's own expense, until Contract
completion and during the time period following expiration if Security Firm is required to return
and perform any additional work, the insurance coverages and requirements specified below,
insuring all operations related to the Contract.

A.

)

2)

3)

4)

INSURANCE TO BE PROVIDED

Workers Compensation and Emplovers Liability

Workers Compensation Insurance, as prescribed by applicable law covering all
employees who are to provide work under this Contract and Employers Liability
coverage with limits of not less than $500,000 each accident, illness or disease.

Commercial General Liability (Primary and Umbrella)

Commercial General Liability Insurance or equivalent with limits of not less than
$1.000,000 per occurrence for bodily injury, personal injury, and property damage
liability. =~ Coverages must include the following: All premises and operations,
products/completed operations, separation of insureds, defense, and contractual liability
(not to include Endorsement CG 21 39 or equivalent but coverage must include
Endorsement CG 22 74). The SSAC, City of Chicago and Contractor are to be named as
an additional insureds on a primary, non-contributory basis for any liability arising
directly or indirectly from the work.

Automobile Liability (Primary and Umbrella)

When any motor vehicles (owned, non-owned and hired) are used in connection with
work to be performed, the Security Firm must provide Automobile Liability Insurance
with limits of not less than $_1,000,000 per occurrence for bodily injury and property
damage. The SSAC, City of Chicago and Contractor are to be named as an additional
insureds on a primary, non-contributory basis.

Professional Liability




Professional Liability Insurance covering acts, errors, or omissions must be maintained by the
Security Firm with limits of not less than $1,000,000. When policies are renewed or replaced,
the policy retroactive date must coincide with, or precede, start of work on the Contract. A
claims-made policy which is not renewed or replaced must have an extended reporting period of

two (2) years.
B. ADDITIONAL REQUIREMENTS

The Security Firm must furnish the Contractor and City of Chicago, Department of Planning and
Development (DPD), City Hall, Room 1006, 121 North LaSalle Street 60602, original
Certificates of [nsurance, or such similar evidence, to be in force on the date of this Contract, and
Renewal Certificates of Insurance, or such similar evidence, if the coverages have an expiration
or renewal date occurring during the term of this Contract. The receipt of any certificate does
not constitute agreement by the Contractor that the insurance requirements in the Contract have
been fully met or that the insurance policies indicated on the certificate are in compliance with
all Contract requirements. The failure of the Contractor to obtain certificates or other insurance
evidence from Security Firm is not a waiver by the Contractor of any requirements for the
Security Firm to obtain and maintain the specified coverages. The Security Firm shall advise all
insurers of the Contract provisions regarding insurance. Non-conforming insurance does not
relieve Security Firm of the obligation to provide insurance as specified herein. Nonfulfillment
of the insurance conditions may constitute a violation of the Contract, and the Contractor retains
the right to stop work until proper evidence of insurance is provided, or the Contract may be
terminated.

The Security Firm must provide for 60 days prior written notice to be given to the Contractor in
the event coverage is substantially changed, canceled, or non-renewed.

Any deductibles or self insured retentions on referenced insurance coverages must be borne by
Security Firm.

The Seccurity Firm hereby waives and agrees to require their insurers to waive their rights of
subrogation against the Contractor and the City of Chicago, its employees, elected officials,
agents, or representatives.

The coverages and limits furnished by Security Firm in no way limit the Security Firm's
liabilities and responsibilities specified within the Contract or by law.

Any insurance or self insurance programs maintained by the Contractor do not contribute with
insurance provided by the Security Firm under the Contract.

The required insurance to be carried is not limited by any limitations expressed in the
indemnification language in this Contract or any limitation placed on the indemnity in this
Contract given as a matter of law.



If Security Firm is a joint venture or limited lability company, the insurance policies must name
the joint venture or limited liability company as a named insured.

The Security Firm must require all subcontractors to provide the insurance required herein, or
Security Firm may provide the coverages for subcontractors. All subcontractors are subject to
the same insurance requirements of Security Firm unless otherwise specified in this Contract.

[f Security Firm or subcontractor desires additional coverages, the party desiring the additional
coverages is responsible for the acquisition and cost.

Notwithstanding any provision in the Contract to the contrary, the City of Chicago Risk
Management Department maintains the right to modify, delete, alter or change these
requirements.
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Cook County Prevailing Wage for December 2014

{(See explanation of column headings at bottom of wages)

RG FRMAN M-F>8 OSA OSH /W
ASBESTOS ABT 38.700 1.5 1.5 2.0 13 0.60G 0.%00
ASBESTOS ART- BLD 35.100 37.600 1.5 1.5 2.0 11. 0.000 6.726
BOILERMAKER BLD 44,240 48.220 2.0 2.0 2.0 6.970 0.000 0.350
BRICK MASON BLD 42.580 46.840 1.5 1.5 2.0 9.850 0.000 1.030
CARPENTFER ALL 43.350 45.350 1.5 1.5 2.0 13.29 13.75 0.000 0.630
CEMENT MASON ALL 43.100 45.100 2.0 1.5 2.0 12.70 13.24 0.000 0.450
CERAMIC TITLLE FMNSHER BELD 35.810 0.000 1.5 1.5 2.0 10.55 8.440 0.000 0.710
COMM. ELECT. ELD 39.000 41.800 1.5 1.5 2.0 8.420 11.98 1.100 0.700
ELECTRIC PWR ZQMT OF ALL 46.100 51.100 1.5 1.5 2.0 10.76 14.87 0.000 ©.46C
ELECTRIC PWR DMAN ALL 35.960 51.100 1.5 1.5 2.0 8.390 11.60 0.000 0.350
ELECTRIC FWR LINEMAN ALL 46.100 51.100 1.5 1.5 2.0 10.76 14.87 0.000 9.46C
ELECTRICIAN ALL 44.000 47.000 1.5 1.5 2.0 13.33 14.77 G.000 G.750
ELEVATOR CONSTRUCTOR BLD 49,900 56.140 2.0 2.0 2.0 12.73 13.46 3.9%0 0.&00
FENCE ERECTOR ALL 35.840 37.840 1.5 1.5 2.0 13.01 11.51 0.000 ©.300
GLAZIER BLD 40.000 41.500 1.5 2.0 2.0 12.49 15.99 0.000 0.940
HT/FROST INSULATOR BLD 48.450 50.950 1.5 1.5 2.0 11.47 12.16 0.000 0.720
IRON WORKER ALL 43.000 45.000 2.0 2.0 2.0 13.45 20.65 0.000 0.350
LABORER ALL 38.000 38.750 1.5 1.5 2.0 13.78 10.12 0.000 0.500
LATHER ALL 43.350 45.350 1.5 1.5 2.0 13.29 13.75 0.000 0.630
MACHINIST BLD 44.350 46.850 1.5 1.5 2.0 6.760 8.950 1.850 0.000
MARBLE FINISHERS ALL 31.400 32.970 1.5 1.5 2.0 9.850 13.10 0.000 0.600
MARBLE MASON BLD 41.780 45.960 1.5 1.5 2.0 9.850 13.42 0.000 0.760
MATERIAL TESTER I ALL 28.000 0.000 1.5 1.5 2.0 13.78 10.12 0.000 0.500
MATERIALS TESTER II ALL 33.000 0.000 1.5 1.5 2.0 13.78 10.12 0.000 0.500
MILLWRIGHT ALL 43.350 45.350 1.5 1.5 2.0 13.29 13.75 0.000 0.630
OPERATING ENGINEER BLD 1 47.100 51.100 2.0 2.0 2.0 17.10 11.80 1.900 1.250
OPERATING ENGINEER BLD 2 45.800 51.100 2.0 2.0 2.0 17.10 11.80 1.900 1.250
OPERATING ENGINEER BLD 3 43.250 51.100 2.0 2.0 2.0 17.10 11.80 1.900 1.250
OPERATING ENGINEER BLD 4 41.500 51.100 2.0 2.0 2.0 17.10 11.80 1.800 1.250
OPERATING EMGINEELR BLD 5 50.85%0 51.100 2.0 2.0 2.0 17.10 11.80 L.4900 1.2Z0
OPERATING ENGINLER BLC 6 48.100 51.100 2.0 2.0 2.0 17.10 11.80 1.300 1.
OPERATING ENGINEER BLD 7 50.100 51.100 2.0 2.0 2.0 17.10 11.80 1.3500¢ 1.
OPERATING ENGINEER FLT 1 52.450 52.450 1.5 1.5 2.0 16.60 11.05 1.900 1.25
OPERATING ENGINEER FLT 2 50.950 52.450 1.5 1.5 2.0 16.60 11.05 1.900 1.25¢
OPERATING ENGTNEER FLT 3 45.350 52.450 1.5 1.5 2.0 16.60 11.05 1.900 1.250
OPERATING ENGINEER FLT 4 37.700 52.450 1.5 1.5 2.0 16.60 11.05 1.900 1.250
OPERATING KNGINEER FLT 5 53.950 52.450 1.5 1.5 2.0 16.60 11.05 1.900 1.250
OPERATING ENGTNEER HWY 1 45.300 49.300 1.5 1.5 2.0 17.10 11.80 1.900 1.250
OPERATING KNGINEER HWY 2 44.750 49.300 1.5 1.5 2.0 17.10 11.80 1.%00 1.250
OPERATING ENGINEER HWY 3 42.700 49.300 1.5 1.5 2.0 17.10 11.80 1.90& 1.250
OPERATING HWY 4 41.300 49,300 1.5 1.5 2.0 17.10 11.80 1.9006 Z.250C
OPERATING HWY 5 40.100 49.300 1.5 1.5 2.0 17.10 11.80 1.900 :.250
OPERATING : HWY 6 42,300 49.30C 1.5 1.5 2.0 17.10 11.80 1.900 1.250
OPERATING ENGINEER HWY 7 46.300 49.300 1.5 1.5 2.0 17.10 11.80 1.665 1.250
ORNAMNTT, IRRON WORKER ALL 43.900 46.400 2.0 2.0 2.0 13.36 17.24 0.000 0.650
PAINTER ALL 40.750 45.500 1.5 1.5 1.5 10.75 11.10 0.000 0.770
PAINTER SIGNS BLD 33.920 38.090 1.5 1.5 1.5 2.600 2.710 0.000 0.000
PILEDRIVER ALL 43.350 45.350 1.5 1.5 2.0 13.29 13.75 0.000 0.63D
PIPEFITTER BLD 46.000 45.000 1.5 1.5 2.0 9.000 15.85 0.00G 1.730
PLASTEREIR BLD 42.250 4£4.790 1.5 1.9 2.0 11.40 12.19 0.020 0,430
lol8 ~ 27272014 10:47 AM




Cook County Prevairling Wage for December 2014 : http/hwvwwalhinois.govidol/Laws-Rules/CONMED/KRates/ 20 1 4/dec...

8 11.46 0.

[Sx]

16.650 48.650

PLUMBLER 1. 1.5 2.0 13.18
" 39.700 42.700 1.5 1.5 2.0 8.280 0
4]1.530 44.850 1.5 1.5 2.0 1 3 4
31.310 33.810 1.5 1.5 2.0 4.8 ¢
46,200 51.200 1.5 1.5 2.0 11.2 8
STEEL EF A2.870 44.C070 2.0 2.0 2.0 13.4°F 3 0.
STONE M 42.580 46.840 1.5 1.5 2.0 9.850 5000
SURVEY WORKFER 37.000 37.750 1.5 1.5 2.0 12.97 a38 0.
TERRAZZD FPINISHER 37.040 0.000 1.5 1.5 2.0 10.55 10.32 O
TERRAZZO MASON 40.880 43.880 1.5 1.5 2.0 10.55 11.63 0
TILE MASON 12.840 46.840 1.5 1.5 2.0 10.55 10.42 0
TRAFFIC SAFETY WRKR 32.750 34.350 1.5 1.5 2.0 6.550 6.450 0
TRUCK DRIVER E 1 33.850 34.500 1.5 1.5 2.0 8.150 8.500 0
TRUCK DRIVER I 2 34.100 34.500 1.5 1.5 2.0 8.150 8.500 0
TRUCK DRIVER E 3 34.300 34.500 1.5 1.5 2.0 8.150 B8.500 9
TRUCK DRIVER L 4 34.500 34.500 1.5 1.5 2.0 8.150 8.500 0
TRUCK DRIVER W 1 32.550 33.100 1.5 1.5 2.0 6.500 4.350 0
TRUCK DRIVER (4 2 32.700 33.100 1.5 1.5 2.0 6.500 4.350 O
TRUCK DRIVFER W 3 32.900 33.100 1.5 1.5 2.0 6.500 4.350 0
TRUCK DRTVER W 4 33.100 33.100 1.5 1.5 2.0 6.500 4.350 0.
TUCKPOINTER 42.800 43.800 1.5 1.5 2.0 8.180 12.66 0

Legend: ks
TYP (Trad= Typn - AllL,liighway, Building, Floating, 011 & Thip,Rivers)

C (Cliass)

Base (Base Wage Rate}

FRMAN (Foreman Rate)

M-F>8 (OT required for any hour greater than ¥ worked each day, Mon through Fri.
OSA (Overtime (0T} is required for every hour worked on Saturday)

OSH (Overtime is required for every hour worked on Sunday and Holidays)

H/W (Health & Welfare Insurance)

Pensn (Pension)

Vac (Vacation)

Trng {(Training)

2310n)

Explanations

COOK CQUNTY

The following list is considered as those days for which holiday rates
of wages for work performed apply: New Years Day, Memorial Day,

Fourth of July, Labor Day, Thanksgiving Day, Christmas Day and
Veterans Day in some classifications/counties. Generally, any of
these holidays which fall on a Sunday is celebrated on the following
Monday. This then makes work performed on that Monday payable at the
appropriate overtime rate for holiday pay. Common practice in a given
local may alter certain days of celebration. If in doubt, please
check with IDOL.

TRUCK DRIVERS (WEST) - That part of the county West of Barrington
Road.

EAPLANATION OF CLASSES

ASBESTOS - Ci AL - removal of asbestes material/mold and hazardous
materials from any place in a builiding, including mechanical systems
where thosce mechanical systens are to be removed. This includes the
removal ol asbestos materials/mold and hazardous materials from
ductwork or pipes 1n a2 buirlding when the building i1s to be demolished

2008 . . ce b T RS 12722014 10,47 AM
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ASBESTOS - Mz of as

systems, such as pipes, ducts, and bolilers, whiiére the mechanical

restos material from mecgi

U2noyal

systems are Lo remain.

CERA

The grouting, cleaning, and polishing of all classes of tile, whe
rior purposes, all burned, glazed or unglazed
products; all comg 1tion materials, granite tiles, warning detectable
tiles, cement tiles, epory conposite materials, pavers, glass,
mosaics, fipmergiass, and a&ll substitute materials, for tile made in
tile-li1ke units; all mixtures in tile like form of cement, metals, and
other materials that are for and intended for use as a finished floor
surface, stair troads, vromenade roofs, walks, walls, ceilings,
swimming pocls, and all other places where tile is to form a finished
interior or exterior. The mixing of all setting mortars including but
not limited to thin-set mortars, epoxies, wall mud, and any other

sand and cecment mixtures or adhesives when used in the preparation,
installation, repair, or maintenance of tile and/or similar materials.

for interior or

The handling and unicading of all sand, cement, lime, tile,

fixtures, cguipment, adhesives, or any other materials to be used 1n
the preparation, installation, repair, or maintenance of tile and/or
similar materials. Ceramic Tile Finishers shall fill all joints and
voids regardless of method on all tile work, particularly and
especially after installation of said tile work. Application of any
and all protective coverings to all types of tile installations
including, but not be limited to, all soap compounds, paper products,
tapes, and all polyethylene coverings, plywood, masonite, cardboard,
and any new type of products that may be used to protect tile
installations, Blastrac equipment, and all floor scarifying equipment
used in preparing floors to receive tile. The clean up and removal of
all waste and materials. All demolition of existing tile floors and
walls to be re-tiled.

COMMUNICATIONS ELECTRICIAN

Tnstallation, operation, inspection, maintenance, repair and servicec
of radio, television, rec ing, vorce sound vision producticn and
reproduction, telephone and telephone interconnect, facsimile, dala
apparatus, coaxial, fibre optic and wireless equipment, appliances and
systems used for the transmission and reception of signals of any
nature, business, domestic, commercial, education, entertainment, and
residential purposes, including but not limited to, communication and
telephone, electronic and sound equipment, fibre optic and data
communication systoems, and the performance of any task directly
related to such installation or service whether at new or existing
sites, such tasks to 1nclude the placing of wire and cable and
electrical cvower conduit or other raceway work within the equipment
room and puliing wire and/or cable through conduit and the
installation of any incidental conduit, such that the employees
covered hereby can complete any job in full.

MARBLE FINISHER
Loading and unloading trucks, distribution of all materials (all

stone, sand, etc.}, stocking of floors with material, performing ail
work, the harcdling c¢f all material thai may bhe

rigging fcor heavy

12/
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aded Ior ins : :
ffolding, polishing if needed, patching, waxing of materzal if
daimaged, po:inting up, caulking, grouting and cleaning of marble,
holding water on diamond or Carborundum blade or saw for setiers
cutting, use of tub saw or any other saw needed for preparation of
material, drilling of hol: for wires that anchor material set by
setters, mixing up of molding plaster for installation of matcrial,
mixing up thin sat for the installation of material, mixing up of sand
to cement for the installation of material and such other work as may
be required in helping a Marble Setter in the handling of all

é in the erection or installation of interior marble, slate,
travertine, art marple, =cerpentine, alberene stone, blue stone,
granite and other sto (meaning as to stone any foreign or domestic
materials as arz spocified and used in building interiors and
exteriors and customarily known as stone in the trade), carrara,
sanionyx, vitrolite and similar opaque glass and the laying of all
marble tile, terrazzo tLile, slate tile and precast tile, steps, risers
treads, base, or any cobther materials that may be used as substitutes
for any of the aforementioned materials and which are used on interior
and exterior which a installed in a similar manner.

@
]
o)

ins

of such maiterials, buiriding of

4]
O

e

MATERIAL TESTER I: Hand coring and drilling for testing of matervials;
field 1inspection of uncured concrete and asphalt.

MATERIAL TESTER II: Field inspection of welds, structural steel,
fireproofing, masonry, soil, facade, reinforcing steel, formwork,
cured concrete, and concrete and asphalt batch plants; adjusting
proportions of bituminous mixtures.

OPERATING ENGINEER - BUILDINC

Class 1. Asphalt Plant; Asphalt Spreader; Autograde; Backhoes with
Caisson Attachment; Batch Plant; Benoto (requires Two Engineers);
Boiler and Throttle Valve; Caisson Rigs; Central Redi-Mix Plant;
Combination Back Hoe Front End-loader Machine; Compressor and Throttle
Valve; Concrete Breaker (Truck Mounted); Concrete Conveyor; Concrete
Conveyor (Truck Mountied); Concrete Paver Over 27E cu. ft; Concrete
Paver 27E cu. ft. and Under: Concrete Placer; Concrete Placing Boom;
Concrete Pump (Truck Mounted); Concrete Tower; Cranes, All; Cranes,
Hammerhead; Cranes, (GCI and similar Type); Creter Crane; Spider
Crane; Crusher, Stone, c¢tc.; Derricks, All:; Derricks, Traveling:;
Formless Curb and Gutter Machine; Grader, Elevating; Grouting
Machines; Heavy Duty Self-Propelled Transporter or Prime Mover;
Highlift Shovels or Front Endloader 2-1/4 yd. and over; Hoists,
Elevators, outside type rack and pinion and similar machines; Hoists,
One, Two and Thres Drum; Hoists, Two Tugger One Floor; Hydraulic
Backhoes; Hydraulic Boom Trucks; Hydro Vac (and similar equipment);
Locomotives, All; Mo.Lcr Patrol; Lubrication Techniciar; Manipulators;
Pile Drivers and Skid Rig:; Post Hole Digger; Pre-Stress Machine; Pump
Cretes Dual Ram; Pump Cretes: Squeeze Cretes-Screw Type Pumps; Gypsum
Bulker and Pump; Raised and Blind Hole Drill; Roto Mill Grinder;
Scoops - Tractor Drawn; Slip-Form Paver; Straddle Buggies; Operation
of Tie Back Machine; Tournapull; Tractor with Boom and Side Boom;
Trenching kaechines.

)~

Class 2. Boilers; Broom, Al]l Power Propelled; Bulldozers; Concrete
Mixzer (Two Bag and Over); Conveyor, Portable; Torklift Trucks:

dof 87 - S N Tl 1272201410017 AM
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Highliftc Shovels or Front Endloaders under 2-1/4 yd.:. Hoists,

Automat1c; Hoists, Inside Flevators: Hoists, Sewer Dragging Machineg;
Howsts, Tugger Single Drum; Laser Scre
Rechk D (Truck Mourled); Rcllers, All;

1
All; Traztor Drawn Vib

ecd; Rock Drill (3Se

i-Frooelled) s
it Generators; '

1
A4

noo

m

tory Rollier; Wi:nch Trucks with "A" [r

Class 3. Ai1r Compressor; Combination Small Equipment Operator;
Generators; Heaters, Machanical; Hoists, Inside Elevators (remodeliing
or renovation work); Hydraulic Power Units (Pile Driving, Euxtracting,
and Drillaing):; Pumps, over 3" (1 to 3 not to exceed a toral of 300
ft.); Low Boys; Pumps, Waell Points:; Welding Machines (2 through 5);
Winches, 4 Small Slectric Drill Winches.

Class 4. PBobcats and/or other Skid Steer Loaders; Ollers; and Brick
Forkliit.

Class 5. Agsistant Crafl Foreman.
Class 6. Gradall.

Class 7. Mechanics; Welders.

OPERATING ENGINEERS - HIGHWAY CONSTRUCTION

Class 1. Asphalt Plant; Asphalt Heater and Planer Combination; Asphalt
Heater Scarfire; Asphalt Spreader; Autograder/GOMACO or other similar
type machines: ABG Paver; Backhoes with Caisson Attachment; Ballast
Regulator; Belt Loader; Caisson Rigs; Car Dumper; Central Redi-Mix
Plant; Combination Backhoe Front Endloader Machine, (1 cu. yd. Backhoe
Bucket or over or with attachments); Concrete Breaker (Truck

Mounted); Concrete Conveyor; Concrete Paver over 27E cu. ft.; Concrete
Placer; Concrete Tube Float; Cranes, all attachments; Cranes, Tower
Cranes of all types: Creter Crane: Spider Crane; Crusher, Stone, etc.:;
Derricks, All; Derrick Boats; Derricks, Traveling; Dredges;

Elevators, Outside type Rack & Pinion and Similar Machines; Formless
Curb and Gutter Machine; Grader, Elevating; Grader, Motor Grader,
Motor Patrol, Auto Patrol, Form Grader, Pull Grader, Subgrader; Guard
Rail PostL Driver Truck Mounted; Hoists, One, Two and Three Drum; Hesavy
Duty Seclf-Propelied ''ransporter or Prime Mover; Hydraulic Backhoes;
Backhoes with shear attachments up to 40' of boom reach; Lubrication
Technician; Manipulators; Mucking Machine; Pile Drivers and Skid Rig;
Pre-Stress Machine; Pump Cretes Dual Ram; Rock Drill - Crawler or Skid
Rig; Rock Drill - Truck Mounted; Rock/Track Tamper; Roto Mill

Grinder; Slip-Form Paver; Snow Melters; Soil Test Drill Rig (Truck
Mounted); Straddle Buggies; Hydraulic Telescoping Form (Tunnel);
Operat:ion of Tieback Machine; Tractor Drawn Belt Loader; Tractor
Drawn Belt Loader (with attached pusher - two engineers); Tractor with
Boom; Tractaire with Attachments; Traffic Barrier Transfer Machine;
Trenching; Truck Mounted Concrete Pump with Boom; Raised or Blind Hole
Drills (Tunnel Shaft); Underground Boring and/or Mining Machines 5

ft. 1n diameter and over tunnel, etc; Underground Boring and/or Mining
Machincs under 5 ft. in diameter; Wheel Lxcavator; Widener (APSCO).

Class 2. Bazch Plant; Bi:tumwincus Mixer; Boiler and Throttle Valve;
Tar Loadcr Trailing Conveyors; Combkination Backhoe Front
) C than 1 cu. yd. Backhoe Buckeit or over or with
atrachmenls); Compressor and Threttle Vaive; Conpressor, Common

Bulldozaers

End]

nine (T,
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Receiver (3); Conorote Breaker or Hydro Hammzr; Concrete Gii
Machine; Concret=s Mixer or Paver 7S5 Scries to and including
ft.; Concrete Spreader; Concrete Curing Machine, Burlap Machine,
Belting Machine and Sealing Machine; Concrete Wheel Saw:; Conveyor Muck
Cars (Haglund or Similar Type); Draills, All; Finishing Machine -

o]

Concrete; iiaghlrft Shovels or Front Endloader; Holst - Sewer Dragging
dydraulic Boom Trucks (All Attachments); Hydro-Blaster; Hydro
luding hose work); Laser Screed; All Locomotives,
Hauling Units (including articulating) Nor

ng Zject ioump; Pump Cretes: Squeeze Cretes - Screw TyDs
Pumps, Gy Bulker and Pump; Roller, Asphalt; Rotary Snow Plows;
Rototil:ier, aman, =Lc., self-propelled; Self-Propelied Conpactor;
Spreader - Chip - 3tone, etc.; Scraper - Single/Twin Engine/Push and
Pull; Scraper - Prime Mover in Tandem (Regardless of Size); Tractors
pulling attachments, Sheeps Foot, Disc, Compactor, etc.; Tug Boats.

Machine;
Excavating (¢
Dinky; Off~Roa

Self-Load

()

j!

t

Class 3. Boilers; Brooms, All Power Propelled; Cement Supply Tender;
Compressor, Common Receiver (2); Concrete Mixer (Two Bag and Over);
Conveyor, Portable; Farm-Type Tractors Used for Mowing, Seeding, ctc.;
Forklift Trucks; Grouting Machine; Hoists, Automatic; Hoists, All
Elevators; Hoists, Tugger Single Drum; Jeep Diggers; Low Boys; Pipe
Jacking Machines; Post-Hole Digger; Power Saw, Concrete Power Driven;
Pug Mills; Rollers, other than Asphalt; Seed and Straw Blower; Steam
Generators; Stump Machine; Winch Trucks with "A" Frame; Work Boats;
Tamper-Form-Motor Driven.

Class 4. Air Compressor; Combination - Small Equipment Operator;
Directional Boring Machine; Generators; Heaters, Mechanical; Hydraulic
Power Unit (Pile Driving, Extracting, or Drilling); Light Plants, All
(1 through 5); Pumps, over 3" (1 to 3 not to exceed a total of 300
ft.); Pumps, Well Points; Vacuum Trucks (excluding hose work); Welding
Machines (2 through 5); Winches, 4 Small Electric Drill Winches.

Class 5. SkidSteer Loader (all); Brick Forklifts; Oilers.
Class 6. Field Mechanics and Field Welders

Class 7. Dowell Machine with Air Compressor; Gradall and machines of
like nature.

OPERATING ENGINEER - FLOATING

Class 1. Craft Foreman; Master Mechanic; Diver/Wet Tender; Engineer;
Engineer (Hydraulic Dredge).

Class 2. Cranece/Backhoe Operator; Boat Operator with towing
endorsement; Mcchantc/Welder; Assistant Enginecr (Hydraulic Dredge);
Leverman (Hydraulic Dredge); Diver Tender.

Class 3. Deck Equipment Operator, Machineryman, Maintenance of Crane
(over 50 ton capacity) or Backhoe (115,000 lbs. or more); Tug/Launch

Operator:; Loader/Dozer and like equipment on Barge, Breakwater Wall,

Slip/Dock, or Scow, Teck Machinery, etc.

Class 4. Deck Eguipment Operator, Machineryman/Fireman (4 Equioment
Units or More); Off Road Trucks; Deck Hand, Tug Engineer, Crane
Maintenance (50 Ton Capacity and Under) or Backhoe Weighing (115,000

pounds cor ) Assaistant Tug Operator.

12/2/2014 10
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Class 5. Friction or Laluice Boom Cranes.

SURVEY WORKER - Operat
G.P.S. and robholrc
transiits.

ed survey equipment including data colloclors,
“ruiient s, as well as conventional levals

TERRAZZO FINISHFR

The handling of sand, cement, marble chips, and all other materials
hat may be used by Lhce Mesaic Terrazzo Mechanic, and the mi

b

ing,

: : cleaning and sealing of all Marble, Mcsaic, and
lerrazzo work, floors, hase, stairs, and wainscoting by hand or
machine, and in addition, assisting and aiding Marble, Masonic,
Terrazzo Mechanics.

TRAFFIC SAFETY

Work associated with barricades, horses and drums used Lo reduce lane
usage on highway work, the installation and removal of temporary lane
markings, and the installation and removal of temporary road signs.

TRUCK DRIVER - BUILDING, HEAVY AND HIGHWAY CONSTRUCTION - EAST & WEST

Class 1. Two or three Axle Trucks. A-frame Truck when used for
transportation purposes; Air Compressors and Welding Machines,
including those pulled by cars, pick-up trucks and tractors;
Ambulances; Batch Gate Lockers; Batch Hopperman; Car and Truck
Washers; Carry-alls; Fork Lifts and Hoisters; Helpers; Mechanics
Helpers and Greasers; Oil Distributors 2-man operation; Pavement
Breakers; Pole Trailer, up to 40 feet; Power Mower Tractors;
Self-propelled Chip Spreader; Skipman; Slurry Trucks, 2-man operation;
Slurry Truck Conveyor Operation, 2 or 3 man; Teamsters; Unskilled
Dumpman; and Truck Drivers hauling warning lights, barricades, and
portable toilets on the job site.

Class 2. TFour axle trucks; Dump Crets and Adgetors under 7 vyards;
Dumpsters, Track Trucks, Euclids, Hug Bottom Dump Turnapulls or
Turnatrailers when pulling other than self-loading equipment or
similar equipment under 16 cubic vyards; Mixer Trucks under 7 yards;
Ready-mix Plant Hopper Operator, and Winch Trucks, 2 Axles.

Class 3. Five axle trucks; Dump Crets and Adgetors 7 vards and over;
Dumpsters, Track Trucks, Euclids, Hug Bottom Dump Turnatrailers or
turnapulls when pulling other than self-loading equipment or similar
equipment over 16 cupic yards; Explosives and/or Fission Material
Trucks:; Mixer Trucks 7 vards or over; Mobile Cranes while 1n transit:
0Oil Distributors, l-man operation; Pole Trailer, over 40 feei; Pole
and Expandable Trailers hauling material over 50 fect long; Siurry
trucks, l-man operation; Winch trucks, 3 axles or more;
Mechanic--Truck Welder and Truck Painter.

Class 4. Six axle trucks; Dual-purpose vehicles, such as mounted
crane trucks with hoist and accessories; Foreman; Master Mechanic:
Self-loading equipmnent like P.B. and trucks with scoops on the front.

Other Classifications of Work:

7o0f8§ R o 12/2/20104 10:17 AM
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Yor definitions of classifications not otharwise set oul,
Deparumen:s generally has on file such definitions which
o be perfermed is noft subject to one of
seT oui, the Department will upon

conLac nich neighboring counity has such a classaifi and
provide such raite, such rate being deemed to exist by 1n

o
this decument. if no neighbhoring county rate applies to the task,

Department shall undertake a special determination, such special
:riminacion being then decmed to have existed under Lthis

the

ac : ration.  [I a project reqguires these, or any ciass
listed, please contact IDOL at 217-782-1710 for wage rates or

clarifications.
LANDSCAPING

Landscaping work falls under the existing classifications for laborerx,
operating engineer and truck driver. The work performed by

landscape plantsman and landscape laborer is covered by the existing
classification of laborer. The work performed by landscape operators
(regardless of cquipment used or its size) is covered by the
classificacions of operating engineer. The work performed by
landscape truck drivers {regardless of size of truck driven) is

ad by the c¢lassifications of truck driver.

cove
MATERIAL TESTER & MATERIAL TESTER/INSPECTOR I AND II

Notwithstanding the difference in the classification title, the
classification entitled "Material Tester 1" involves the same job
duties as the classification entitled "Material Tester/Inspector I".
Likewise, the classification entitled "Material Tester II" involves
the same job duties as the classification entitled "Material
Tester/Inspector II".

Sof§ RPN 12722014 10:17 AM~
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CONTRACTOR’S PERFORMANCE & PAYMENT BOND

Fuoto All Men by these Presents,  Thaiwe,

Principal, hereinafter referred 10 as Contractor, and
. Surety

of the County of Cook and State of Illinois, are held and firmly bound unto the CITY OF CHICAGO in the penal sum of

lawful money of the United States, for the payment of which sum of money, well and truly 1o be made, we bind ourselves, our heirs,

executors, administrators, successors and assigns, jointly and severally, firmly by these presents.

ﬁBH[Bh with our seals and dated this day of AD, 20
The @ondition of the Above Obligation is such,

That whereas the above bounden Contractor has cntered into a certain contract with the CITY OF CHICAGO, bearing

Contract No. and Specification No. all in conformity with said contract, for,

The said contract is incorporated herein by reference in its entirety, including without limitation, any and all indemnification provisions.

Now, if the said Contractor shall in all respects well and truly keep and perform the said contract on its part, in accordance with
the terms and provisions of all of the Contract Documents comprising said contract, and in the time and manner therein prescribed, and
further shall save, indemnify, and keep harmless the City of Chicago against all loss, damages, claims, liabilities, judgements, costs and
expenses which may in anywise accrue against said City of Chicago, in consequence of the granting of said contract, or which may in
anywise result therefrom, or which may result from strict liability, or which may in anywise result from any injuries to, or death of, any
person, or damage to any real or personal property, arising directly or indirectly from or in connection with, work performed or to be
performed under said contract by said Contractor, its Agents, Employees or Workmen, assignecs, subcontractors, or anyone else, in any
respect whatever, or which may result on account of any infringement of any patent by reason of the materials, machinery, devices or
apparatus used in the performance of said contract, and moreover, shall pay to said City any sum or sums of money determined by the
Purchasing Agent, and/or by a court of competent jurisdiction, to be due said City by reason of any failure or neglect in the performance
of the requirements, of said contract, wherefore the said Purchasing Agent shall have elected to suspend or cancel the same, and shall pay
all claims and demands whatsoever, which may accrue to each and every materialman and subcontractor, and to each and every person
who shall be employed by the said Contractor or by its assignees and subcontractors, in or about the performance of said contract, and
with wages paid at prevailing wage rates if so required by said contract, and shall insure its liability to pay the compensation, and shall
pay all claims and demands for compensation which may accrue to each and every person who shall be employed by them or any of them in or
about the performance of said contract, or which shall accrue to the beneficiaries or dependents of any such person, under the provisions
of the Workers” Compensation Act, 820 ILCS 305, as amended, and the Workers" Occupational Disease Act, 820 ILCS 310, as amended
(hereinafter referred to as “Acts™) then is this obligation to be null and void, otherwise to remain in full force and effect.



And it is hereby expressly understood and agreed, and made a condition hereof, that any judgement rendered aganst smd City in
any suit based upon any loss. damages, claims, habihties. judgements. costs or expenses which may n anywise accruc against said City
as a consequence of the granting of said contract, or which may 1n anywise result therefrom, or which may in anywise result from any
injuries to, or death of, any person, or damage to any real or personal property, arising directly or indirectly from, or in connection with,
work performed. or to be performed under said contract by said Contractor or 1ts agents, employees or workmen, assignees, subcontrac-
tors, or anyone else and also any decision of the [ndustrial Commission of the State of lllinois, and any order of court based upon such deci-
sion, or judgement thercon, rendered against said City of Chicago in any suit or claim ansing under the aforementioned Acts when notice
of the pendency or arbitration proceedings or suit shall have been given said Contractor, shall be conclusive against each and all parties
to this obligation, as to amount, {iability and all other things pertaining thereto.

Every person furnishing material or performing labor in the performance of said contract. either as an individual, as a subcontractor,
or otherwise, shall have the right to suc on this bond in the name of the City of Chicago for his use and benefit and in such suit said person
as plainuff, shall file a copy of this bond, certified by the party or parties in whose charge this bond shall be, which copy shall be, unless
execution thereof be denied under oath, prima facie evidence of the execution and delivery of the original; provided, that nothing in this
bond contained shall be taken to make the City of Chicago liable to any subcontractor, materialman, laborer or to any other person to any
greater extent than it would have been liable prior to the enactment of the Public Construction Bond Act, 30 ILCS 550, as amended:
provided further, that any person having a claim for labor and materials furnished in the performance of this contract shall have no right of
action unless he shall have filed a verified notice of such claim with the Clerk of the City of Chicago within 180 days after the date of the
last item of work or the furnishing of the last item of materials, and shall have fumished a copy of such verified notice to the contractor
within 10 days of the filing of the notice with the City of Chicago. Such claim shall be verified and shall contain the name and address of
the claimant, the business address of the claimant within the State of Illinois, if any, or if the claimant be a foreign corporation having no
place of business with the State the principal place of business of said corporation, and in all cases of partnership the names and residences
of each of the partners, the name of the contractor for the City of Chicago, the name of the person, firm or corporation by whom the
claimant was employed or to whom such claimant furnished materials, the amount of the claim and a brief description of the public
improvement for the construction or installation of which the contract is to be performed. Provided, further, that no defect in the notice
herein provided for shall deprive the claimant of his right of action under the terms and provisions of this bond unless it shall affirmatively
appear that such defect has prejudiced the rights of an interested party asserting the same; provided, further, that no action shall be
brought until the expiration of one hundred twenty (120) days after the date of the last item of work or of the furnishing of the last item of
material, except in cases where the final settlement between the City of Chicago and the Contractor shall have been made prior to the
expiration of the 120 day period in which case action may be taken immediately following such final settlement, and provided, further, that
no action of any kind shall be brought later than six (6) months after the acceptance by the City of Chicago of the completion of work.
Any suit upon this bond shall be brought only in a circuit court of the State of linois in the judicial district in which the contract shall have
been performed.

The said Surety, for value received, hereby stipulates and agrees that no change, extension of time, alteration or addition to the terms
of any of the Contract Documents comprising said contract, or to the work to be performed thereunder, shall in anywise affect the
obligations on this bond, and it does hereby waive notice of any such change, extension of time, alteration or addition to the terms of said
Contract Documents or to the work.

(Seal)

Approved 20

(Seal)

(Seal)

Purchasing Agent

(Seal)

Approved as to form and legality: (Seal)

(Seal)

Assistant Corporation Counsel



PRINCIPAL
IF CORPORATION

STATE OF ILLINOIS,

- = . - SS.
COUNTY OF COOK,
IR . a Notary Poblic 1n and for the County and State
aforesaid. DO HEREBY CERTIFY that President and

Secretary of the

who are personally known to me to be the same persons whose names are subscribed in the foregoing instrument as

such President and Secretary, appeared
before me this day in person and acknowledged that they signed, sealed and delivered the said instrument of writing as

their free and voluntary act, and as the free and voluntary act of the said
for the uses and purposes therein set forth, and caused the corporate seal of said Company to be thereto attached.

GIVEN under my hand and Notarial Seal this day of 20

Notary Public

N\
r STATE OF ILLINOIS,}
COUNTY OF COOK,
8 ’ . a Notary Public in and for the County and State
@ aforesaid, DO HEREBY CERTIFY that
=
é of the who, personally known
§ to be the same person whose name, subscribed in the foregoing instrument as such
8 , appeared before me this day in person and acknowledged that
E, signed, sealed and delivered the said instrument of writing as free and voluntary act, and as the free
H .
gﬂl and voluntary act of the said
=) for the uses and purposes therein set forth, and caused the corporate seal of said Company to be thereto attached.
95}
GIVEN under my hand and Notarial Seal this day of 20
\ Notary Public
(' STATE OF ILLINOIS, |
COUNTY OF COOK,
L , a Notary Public in and for the County and State
j aforesaid, DO HEREBY CERTIFY that
-
=
é e who personally known to me to be the same persons whose name subscribed in the foregoing
—
Q
E é instrument, appeared before me this day in person and acknowledged that he signed, scaled and delivered the
B ko said instrument of writing as free and voluntary act, for the uses and purposes therein set forth.
GIVEN under my hand and Notarial Seal this day of 20

Nowary Public

GRC-160211-26-1



RIDER TO CONTRACTOR’S PERFORMANCE AND PAYMENT BOND

This Rider supplements Contractor's Performance and Payment Bond (“Bond”) on that certain
contract with the City of Chicago (“City") bearing Contract No. and Specification No.
(“Contract”). Surety acknowledges that the Contract requires Contractor to obtain from each of its
subcontractors consent to a collateral assignment of their contracts with Contractor to the City. The
Contract further grants the City the right, upon Contractor's default for failure to comply with Chapter
4-36 of the Municipal Code of the City, and at the City’s sole option, to take over and complete the
work to be performed by Contractor through the City’s assumption of some or all of Contractor's
subcontracts. If the City, in its sole discretion, exercises this right, then Surety waives any rights it
may have to cure Contractor’s default by performing the work itself or through others and remains
bound by its other obligations under the Bond.




Contractor Afhdavit
Contractor Name:
Special Service Area Number:

Agreement (“Agreement™):

Agreement between the City of Chicago and dated
, relating to the provision of special services.

AFFIDAVIT
The undersigned, , as , and on behalf
of . having been duly sworn under oath, certifies that in the
year . it performed that portion of the Services described in Lxhibit 1 of the Agreement

in accordance with the terms of the Agrecment, to the extent described in the attached Full-Year
Assessment Form and that it spent that portion of funds obtained from the City in connection with that
Agreement on the Services described in Exhibit 1, to the extent described in the attached Full-Year
Assessment Form . The Full-Year Assessment Form shall be in the form prescribed by the City and shall
contain such level of detail as the City may require from time to time.

Nothing in this Affidavit may be construed as limiting Contractor’s obligations under the Agreement.
All terms not defined in this Affidavit will be as defined in the Agreement.

Under penalty of perjury, I certify that 1 am authorized to execute this Affidavit on behalf of the

Contractor, that | have personal knowledge of the certifications made in this Affidavit, and that they are
true and correct.

NAME OF CONTRACTOR:

Signature of Authorized Officer

Name of Authorized Officer (Print or Type)

State of
County of

Sworn to and acknowledged before me by i} {name of signatory] as
[title] of name of
contracting party] this day of .20

Signature of Notary




INSERT FULL-YEAR ASSESSMENT I'ORM




EXHIBIT 8

Special Service Area - Additional Audit Requirements
Accounting System
The Department requires that the Contractor maintain its accounting system in a manner which
allows the Contractor’s expenditures to be categorized in its statement of activities according o
the categories listed in the budget approved by the City for each Area.

Guidance for the Contractor’s Selection of a CPA Firm (Independent Auditor)

The Contractor must use the following guidelines for cngaging a qualified CPA Firm:

1. Issue a Request for Proposal (“RFP”) that sets forth all of the terms and conditions of the
engagement, evaluation criteria, and scope of the work required. Audit firm evaluations

can replace an annual RFP process; an RFP process every three years is preferred.

2. Distribute and publicize the RFP sufficiently to ensure full and open competition.
3. Request in the RFP that bidders provide detail on:
a. How the CPA Firm will conduct the audit.
b. Qualifications of the CPA Firm, management, and staff, including experience in
auditing like entities.
c.  Policies on notification of changes in key personnel. ,
d. Whether the proposed staff has received continuing professional education that is
relevant to the performance of this engagement during the previous 2 years,
e. Whether the CPA Firm has received a positive peer review within the last 3 years.
f. Whether the CPA Firm is independent, as defined by applicable auditing
standards.
g. Whether the CPA Firm has been the object of any disciplinary action during the
past 3 years.
h. Confirmation the CPA Firm and key personnel assigned to this engagement

maintains an active license in the State of Illinois and attached a copy of a current license with
the RFP response or annually.

1. Confirmation the CPA Firm is not on the City’s debarred vendor list.
] The audit fee.
4. Evaluate the proposals based on:

a. The CPA Firm’s understanding of the audit requirements, including the needs of
the Area and the final products to be delivered.

b. Soundness of technical approach to the audit. including the meeting of the
Contractor’s specific deadlines and other requirements.

C. Qualifications of the CPA Firm.

d. Qualitications of the audit tcam.

e. The information provided by respondents in response to the RFP, including cost



and independence.

5. Rate the proposals as follows:
a. Proposals should be evaluated as submitted.
b. Make a list of strengths and weaknesses for each to support its technical rating.
c. Review the proposed fees offered by the bidders after completion of the technical
evaluation.
d. Ask questions of the bidders to eliminate any ambiguities.
e. Select a proposal that is most advantageous to the Area based on the evaluation

criteria set forth in the RFP.

6. Once a CPA Firm is chosen based upon the foregoing criteria, require a written
engagement letter to avoid misunderstandings that specifies: '

a. Audit scope, objectives, and purposes.

b. Deadlines for the work to be performed.

C. Audit fees.

d. Report format, including providing a PDF digital version of the final audit.

e. Type and timing of support to be provided to the CPA Firm by the Special Service
Area Commission (“SSAC”).

f. Professional auditing standards to be followed in performing the audit.

g. Independence of the CPA Firm to the SSAC.

h. Terms of making changes to the scope of the agreement.

i. CPA Firm’s ownership of the work papers, retention period, and requirement for

availability to the City upon request.
Summary Schedule of Findings.

In order to properly conduct the certified audit of the books and records of the Contractor, it is
necessary for the CPA Firm to read and understand the requirements contained in the Agreement.
Particular attention should be given to Sections 3 and 5 of the Agreement.

The CPA Firm must test the Contractor’s compliance with the requirements contained in the
Agreement. Should the CPA TFirm find exception to the requirements of the Agreement, it must
disclose all exceptions in a separate schedule, which shall be entitled “Summary Schedule of
Findings”. Each finding shall be listed separately. The schedule shall be incorporated with the
other required financial statements.

If the CPA Firm finds no exceptions to the Agreement requirements, it shall still include a
“Summary Schedule of Findings”. On that schedule the CPA Firm shall make an affirmative
statement indicating it has read the Agreement and, after conducting the audit, has determined
that no exceptions were noted.

Subsections to note in Section 5 include:
a. Section 5.01, Basis of Payment, describes ““carry over™ as the amount of Service



Tax Funds collected for prior tax years which remain previously unspent.

b. Section 3.02, Budget for Services, restricts the maximum amount that may be
spent in a calendar year to the amount stated in the Agreement.
c. Section 3.03. Method of Pavment, states that the Contractor shall establish a

separate checking account and that Area funds shall not be commingled with other sources.
Audit of Financial Statements

As discussed in Section 3.07, “Records and Audits”, the Contractor shall provide an annual
audited financial statement to the Department and SSAC within 120 calendar days after the end
of the calendar year and the system of accounting shall be in accordance with generally accepted
accounting principles and practices, consistently applied throughout.

Audit Documents
The City requires an audit conducted in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles
to include the following documents:

l. Statement of Financial Position.

2. Statement of Activities: Budget and Actual (period being audited compared to the
previous year, e.g. columns should be 2015 Budget, 2015 Actual, Variance, 2014 Budget, 2014
Actual, Variance).

3. Statement of Cash Flows.
4. Notes to the Financial Statements.
5. Summary Schedule of Findings that also includes the management response to any audit

findings and any subsequent CPA Firm and/or City’s and/or management responses until the
CPA Firm and/or the City consider the findings sufficiently remedied.

Expense descriptions included in the Statement of Activities must correspond to the expense
descriptions in the budget submitted to the City.

CPA Firm License

The CPA Firm shall attach as an exhibit to the audit the firm’s active license and key personnel
to this engagement in the State of lllinois.

Audit Presentations

The CPA Firm shall attend at least one (1) SSAC meeting and be available for other meetings as
requested by the City to present the draft and/or final audit and respond to questions.

Debarment

Upon issuance of the final audit, the CPA Firm shall confirm 1t is not on the City’s debarred
vendor list.
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CITY OF CHICAGO

MULTI- PROJECT LABOR AGREEMENT

This Model Multi-Project Labor Agreement ("Agreement”) is entered into by and between City
of Chicago, an lllinois municipal corporation, as Owner, on behalf of itself and each of its contractors,
subcontractors of whatsoever tier performing construction work on any project to which this Agreement
shall be applicable, and each of the undersigned labor organizations signatory hereto.

Whereas, Owner is responsible for construction, demolition, rehabilitation, maintenance, and/or
renovation of real property located in Chicago, lllinois; Due to the size, scope, cost and duration of the
multitude of Projects traditionally performed by the City of Chicago, the parties to this Agreement have
determined that it is in their interest to have these Projects completed in the most timely, productive,
economical and orderly manner possible, and withou# labor disruptions of any kind that might interfere
with, or delay, any of these Projects;

Whereas, the parties have determined that it is desirable to eliminate the potential for friction and
diSruption of these Projects by using their best efforts and ensuring that all work is performed by the trade
unions that are signatory hereto and which have traditionally performed and have trade and geographic
jurisdiction over such work. Experience has proven the value of such cooperation, and that such mutual
undertakings should be maintained, and if possible, strengthened, and that the ultimate bencficiarics
remain the Owner of the project; and,

Whereas, the Owner acknowledges that it has a serious and ongoing concern regarding labor
relations associated with the Projects and through its completion irrespective of the existence of a
collective bargaining relationship with any of the signatory labor organizations.

NOW THEREFORE, in order to further these goals and objectives and to maintain the spirit of
harmony, labor-management cooperation and stability, the parties agree as follows: -

1. During the term of this Agreement, Owner its representatives and agents shall not
contract or subcontract, nor permit any other person, firm, company, or entity to contract
or subcontract, any construction, démolition, rehabilitation or renovation work for the
Project work covered under this Agreement or within the trade sjurisdiction of the
signatory labor organization, to be performed at the Site of construction or ofF-site solely
for installation at the Site (including all tenant improvements, if applicable), unless such -
work is performed only by a person, firm or company signatory, or willing to become
signatory, to the applicable area-wide collective bargaining agreement(s) with the
union(s) or the appropriate trade/craft union(s) or subordinate body or affiliate of the
Chicago & Cook County Building & Construction Trades Council ("Council") or the
Teamsters' Joint, Council No. 25. Copies of all such current collective bargaining
agreements constitute Appendix "A" of this Agreement, attached hereto and made an
integral part hereof, and as may be modified from time to time during the term of this
Agreement. Said provisions of this Agreement shall be included in all Requests for Bids
and/or Proposals and shall be explicitly included in all contracts or subcontracts of
whatsoever tier by all contractors and subcontractors; provided that the total Project value
exceeds $25,000.00. In no event shall contracts be “split” so as to avoid the applicability
of this Agreement. In the event a dispute arises with respect to the applicability of this
Multi-Project Labor Agreement to a particular project, the partics agree to submit said
dispute to final and binding arbitration before a Permanent Umpire who shall be
mutually agreed to by the parties.
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With respect to a contractor or subcontractor who is the successful bidder, but is not
signatory to the applicable collective bargaining agreement, the collective bargaining
agreement(s) executed by said- bidder shall be the relevant ‘area-wide agreement(s)

"“Tegulating or govérning wages, hours and other térms and conditions of employment.

During the term of this Agreement, the Owner or any Project contractor and sub-
contractor shall engage in no lockout.

During the term of this Agreement, no labor organization signatory hereto, or any of its
members, officers, stewards, agents, representatives, or employees shall instigate,
authorize, support, sanction, maintain, or participate in any strike, walkout, work
stoppage, work slowdown, work curtailment, cessation or interruption of production, or
in any picketing of any Site covered under this Agreement for any reason whatsoever,
including but not limited to the expiration of any of thé collective bargaining agreements
referred to on Appendix A. In the event of an economic strike or other job action upon
the termination of an existing collective bargaining agreement, in no event shall any
adverse job action be directed against any covered Project. All provisions of the
subscquently negotiated collective bargaining agreement shall be retroactive for all
employees working at a Project Site, provided such a provision for retroactivity is
contained in the newly negotiated collective bargaining agreement.

Each Union signatory hereto agrees that it will use its best efforts to prevent any of the
acts forbidden in Paragraph 4, and that in the event any such act takes place or is engaged
in by any employee or group of employees, each Union signatory hereto further agrees
that it will use its best efforts (including its full disciplinary power under its Constitution
and/or By-Laws) to cause an immediate cessation thereof. L

Any contractor of subcontractor signatory or otherwise bound stipulated or required to
abide by and to any provisions of this Agreement shall have the right to discharge or
discipline any employee who violates the provisions of this Agreement. Such discharge
or discipline by a contractor or subcontractor shall be subject to the Grievance/Arbitration
procedure of the applicable collective bargaining agreement only as to the fact of such
employee's violation of this Agreement. If such fact is established, the penalty imposed
shall not be disturbed. Work at any Site covered under this Agreement shall continue
without disruption or hindrance of any kind during;any Grievance/ Arbitration procedure.

The parties expressly authorize a court of competent ijurisdiction to order appropriate
injunctive relief to restrain any violation of this Agreement, any form of self-help remedy
is expressly forbidden. Nothing in the foregoing shall restrict any party to otherwise
judicially enforce any provision of its collective bargaining agreement between any labor
organization and a contractor with whom it has a collective bargaining relationship.

This Agreement shall become effective, and shall be included in all Requests for Pro-
posals and/or Bids, all Purchase Orders, Contracts or other arrangements issued by the
City of Chicago for work described in Paragraph 1 above immediately subsequent to the
ratification of the Ordinance authorizing this Multi-Project Labor Agreement by the City
Council.

This Agreement shall expire on December 31, 2016 and shall be automatically extended
for an additional five (5) year term unless the parties issue a notice to terminate between
sixty (60) and (30) days prior to the initial expiration date.



a.)

b.)

c.)

12.

13,

In the event a dispute shall arise between any contractor or subcontractor of the Project
and any signatory labor organization and/or fringe benefit fund established under any of

the appropriate collective bargaining agreements as to the obligation and/or payment of

“fringe benefit contributions provided under the collective bargaining agreement, upon

proper notice to the contractor(s) or subcontractor(s) by the applicable labor organization
or fringe benefit fund and to the contractor or subcontractor, an amount sufficient to
satisfy the amount claimed shall be withheld from the contractor’s or subcontractor's
regularly scheduled periodic payment from the contractor or subcontractor, or their
agents until such time as said claim is resolved.

In the event of a jurisdictional dispute by and between any labor organizations signatory
hereto, such labor organizations shall take all steps.necessary to promptly resolve the dispute.
In the event of a dispute relating to trade or work jurisdiction, ail parties, including: the
employers, contractors or subcontractors, agree that a final and binding resolution of the
dispute shall be resolved as follows:

Representatives of the affected trades shall meet on the job site within forty-eight (48)
hours after receiving notice in an effort to resolve the dispute. (In the event there is a
dispute between local unions affiliated with the same International Union, the decision of
the General President, or his/her designee, as the internal jurisdictional authority of that
International Union, shall consfitute a find and binding decision and determination as to
the jurisdiction of work.)

- If no settlement is achieved subsequent to the preceding Para'g;aph. the matter shall be

referred to the Chicago & Cook County Building & Construction Trades Council, which shall
meet with the affected trades within forty-eight (48) hours subsequent to receiving notice. An
agreement reached at this.Step shall be final and binding.-

If no settlement agreements is reached during the proceedings contemplated by Paragraph "a'
or "b" abowve, the matter shall be immediately referred fo the Joint Conference Board,
established by the Standard Agreement between the Construction Employers' Association and
the Chicago & Cook County Building & Construction Trades Council, which may be
amended from time to time, for final and binding resolution of said dispute. Said Standard
Agreement is attached hereto as Appendix “B™ and specifically incorporated into this
Agreement.
B

This Agreement shall be incorporated into and become part of the collective bargaining
agreements between the Unions signatory hereto and contractors and subcontractors. In
the event of any inconsistency between this Agreement and any collective bargaining

agreement, the terms of this Agreement shall supersede and prevail except for all work
performed under the NT Articles of Agreement, the National Stack/Chimney Agreement,
the National Cooling Tower Agreement, all instrument calibrafion work and loop
checking shall be performed under the terms of the UA/IBEW Joint National Agreement
for instrument and Control Systems Technicians, and the National Agreement of the
International Union of Elevator Constructors with the exception of the content and
subject matter of Articles V, VI and VII of the AFL-CIO’s Building & Construction
Trades Department model Project Labor Agreement.

The parties agree that in the implementation and administration of this Agreement, it is
vitally necessary to maintain effective and immediate communication so as to minimize
the potential of labor relations disputes arising out of this Agreement. To that end, each
party hereto agrees to designate, in writing, a representative to whom problems can be
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directed which may arise during the term of this Agreement. Within forty-eight (48)
hours_after notice of the existence of any problem, representatives of each party shall
meet-to discuss -and, where possible, resolve such-problems. - The representative of the

“signatory unions shiall b Thomas Villanova, or his'désignee, President of the Chicago &

Cook County Building & Construction Trades Council. The representative of Owner
shall be the Corporation Counsel or his/her designee.

If any provision, section, subsection or other portion of this Agreement shall be
determined by any court of competent jurisdiction to be invalid, illegal, or unenforceable
in whole or in part, and such determination shall become final, such provision or portion
shall be deemed to be severed or limited, but only to the extent required to render the
remaining provisions and portions of this Agreement enforceable. This Agreement, as
thus amended, shall be enforced so as to give effect to the intention of the parties insofar
as that is possible. In addition, the parties hereby expressly empower a court of competent *
jurisdiction to modify any term or provision of this Agreement to the extent necessary to
comply with existing law and to enforce this Agreement as modified.

Owner and General Contractor, on bchalf of themselves and their contractors and
subcontractors agree that the applicable substance abuse policy (i.e., drug, alcohol, etc.)
applicable to the employees working on any covered Project shall be that as contained, or
otherwise provided for, in the area-wide collective bargaining agreements attached at
Appendix "A" to this Agreement. Nothing in the foregoing shall limit the Owners and/or
General Contractor, its contractors or subcontractors from instituting its own substance
abuse policy governing other employees performing work on a Project not otherwise
covered under this Agreement. In the event there is no substance abuse policy in the
applicable collective bargaining agrecment the pohcy adopted by the Owners and/or
General Contractor may apply.”.

The parties recognize a desire to facilitate the entry into the building and construction
trades of veterans who are interested in carcers in the building and construction industry.

The parties agree to utilize the services of the- Center for Military Recruitment,
Assessment and Veterans Employment (hereinafter referred to as the “Center”™) and the,
Center’s Helmets to Hardhats™ program to service as a resource. for preliminary
orientation, assessment of construction aptitude, referral to apprenticeship programs or
hiring halls, counseling and mentoring, support network, employment opportunities.agd
other needs as identified by the parties. The parties also agree to coordinate with the
Center to create and maintain an integrated database of veterans interested in working on
this project and of apprenticeship and employment opportunities for these Projects. To
the extent permitted by law, the parties will give appropriate credit to such veterans for
bona fide, provable past experience, in the building and construction industry.

The parties recognize the importance of facilitating the goals and objectives of the
Apprenticeship & Training Initiative agreed to by the parties in separate collective
bargaining agreements applicable to employees of the Owner. Additionally, parties agree
to incorporate the duties and responsibilities associated with the Supplemental Addendum
to the Multi-Project Labor Agreement between the signatory labor organizations and the
Chicago Public Schools attached hereto in Appendix “C” and incorporated herein.
Towards these ends, the undersigned labor organizations will assist and cooperate with
the Owner, the Chicago Public Schools, City Colleges and contractors in monitoring and
enforcing the foregoing commitments, including  providing relevant information
requested by the Owner for the purpose of such monitoring and enforcement, including



" the information provided for in Paragraph 3(E) of the'Supplemental Addendum with
CPS. Upon execution of this Agreement, representatives of the Owner and the Chicago

-Building Trades Council will immediately meet for the- purpose of establishing the

The parties hereto agree and acknowledge that the commitments set forth herein,
including those in the attached Appendix “C” are interdependent. In the event the goals
and commitments set forth in Appendix “C” are not realized, the City shall bring this to
the attention of the Chicago Building Trades Council (“Council™), and the parties shall
immediately meet for the purpose of identifying the cause(s) of said failure and
implement necessary measures to remedy the failure. Should the Council’s affiliate
members refuse to implement measures reasonably necessary to realize these goals and
commitments, the City may terminate this Agreement subsequent to January 13, 2013. If,
as of June 1, 2012, the City believes that the Council's affiliate members have failed to
implement measures reasonably necessary to realize these goals and commitments, the
City may at that time deliver to the Council formal written notice of intent to terminate
this Agreement on January 1, 2013. Upon deliverance of such notice, the parties shall
immediately meet to craft and implement additional measures to remedy such failure. If
the parties are unsuccessful in implementing satisfactory measures, the City may
implement said notice of termination on January I, 2013.

The parties acknowledge the Residency requirement for employees of contractors and
subcontractors in the standard City of Chicago construction contract. The parties also
agree to cooperatively work and monitor compliance with these requirements and to work
cooperatively to facilitate and work in good faith to the achievement of said required
Residency provision including union attendance at pre-bid conferences with prospective
‘contractors and subcontractors as-well as other reasonable undertakings to demonstrate.
progress in this regard.

17. The parties agree that contractors and subcontractors working under the provisions of this
Agreement shall be required to strive to utilize the maximum number of apprentices on
said Project as permitted under the applicable collective bargaining agreement as
contained in Appendix “A™.

18. This document, with each of the Attachments, constitutes the entire agreement of the
partics and may not be modified or changed except by the subsequent written agreement
of the parties. )

19. All parties represent that they have the full legal authority to enter into this Agreement.

The undersigned, as the Owner and Labor Organizations on the Project, agree to all of the terms
and conditions contained in this Agreement.

Dated this the 9" day of February, 2011 in Chicago, Cook County, Illinois.

On behalf of Owner:




Corporation Counsel

Duly Authorized Officer of the City of Chicago

On behalf of

(Insert Name of Labor Organization)

Its Duly Authorized Officer



LAW DEPARTMENT -
ORDINANCE TRANSMITTAL FORM

1. Date of transmittal: December 2, 2014 W

2. Title/subject matter of ordinance: Authorizes the establishment of Special Service Area Number
29-2014, a levy for tax year 2014 and a Service Provider Agreement.

3. Originating department: Department of Planning and Development
4, Originating department contact: Oneida Pate (Ext. 4-7471)
Mark Roschen (Ext. 4-1083)
5. Law Department contact: Ann Kaplan-Perkins (Ext. 4-8439)
Cynthia Shawamreh (Ext. 4-1015)
6. Bates No. (if applicable): N/A
7. Completed Economic Disclosure Statement (if required): N/A
8. Completed summary of ordinance (prepared by
originating department): N/A
9. Original and four copies of ordinance attached: X
10. To be introduced into:
City Council............ _
Council Committee X

If Committee, please specify and explain reason: Direct Introduction to the Committee on Finance at the

Department of Planning and Development request.

11. Date of requested introduction: December 82014

12. List of exhibits/appendices to ordinance: Exhibit 1: Legal Description; Exhibit 2: Map; Exhibit 3:
Permanent Index Numbers; Exhibit 4. Public Hearing Notice; Exhibit 5: Service Provider Agreement

13. Comments/remarks:

Prepared by: Ann R. Kaplan-Perkins
Assistant Corporation Counsel
Finance and Economic Development Division




